

Young's notes History of Chautauque County (Foote papers)  
1871-1873

Notes for HistofChaut. Co. 7087

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

The minority members of the court, Justices Benj. R. Curtis and John D'Lean, dissented from the opinion of their colleagues, maintained, that every free person born on the soil of a state, who is a citizen of that state, is also a citizen of the U. S. Judge Curtis cited the old constitutions of several states, to prove that, <sup>and laws</sup> when the National constitution was adopted, all the free inhabitants of those states were citizens and entitled to vote, if they possessed the necessary qualifications.

They also maintained the old doctrine established by the courts, that "all slavery has its origin in power, and is against right," and consequently requires, as essential to its existence, municipal regulations, which the constitution does not provide. They state that in eight instances, beginning with the first congress, had Cong. excluded slavery from the ter. of the U. S.; and in six instances had <sup>the</sup> usages congress recognized and continued slavery in organizing territorial governments. And these acts had been signed by the first six presidents.

The denial to the people of a territory the right to control slavery was considered as an abandonment of the doctrine of popular sovereignty, which had ~~been~~ counted their fundamental right "to form and regulate their domestic institutions in their own way."

The subject of slavery, until <sup>the</sup> adoption of the ~~the~~ draft of the constitution, had either constituted the chief grand issue between the two great parties until within the last few years. Hence just previous to our sketch of history of parties begins at least a brief notice reference to their views and measures during this eventful struggle, which terminated in the overthrow of slavery.

Original proposition to establish a city on ter. (Neb.) Douglass proposed a Bill the number of free and slave states being equal, 15 to 15, the admission of that ter. as a free state as within a short period, as was probable, would give to the free states a predominant influence. To prevent this, to preserve the equilibrium, the proposition was to <sup>a</sup> compromise. It was proposed to divide the territory into two a government for each portion, the Northern to be called Neb. <sup>the southern, Kansas.</sup> which was certain to remain free; the latter, Kansas, into which it was designed to introduce slavery.

Immediately after the passage of the Kansas-Nebr. act, migration from slave states commenced. It was the object of the settlers to establish slavery in the ter. They were soon followed by large numbers from the ~~other~~, free states, with the view of counteracting, defeating the purposes of the slaveholders. Meetings were held in the territory, and resolutions adopted, declaring that <sup>for</sup> protection they would afford no protection to no abolitionist as a settler, and declaring that recognizing slavery as already existing in the territory, and advising slaveholders to introduce their property as soon as possible.

John D. Bass. On the 24<sup>th</sup> of Nov. 1854, an election, <sup>an</sup> appointed by Gen. Banks, to choose a delegate to Cong. The election was decided in John W. Whitfield, a pro-slavery man, was declared elected; but his opponents, who had voted for J. A. Waterfield, declared preserved the election invalid, as large numbers of the votes for the former had been given cast by citizens of Missouri, who, returned after voting, returned. According to a report of a committee of investigation appointed by the house of rep. of Cong. in a view of <sup>as</sup> the election districts, of the aggregate number of voters, more than two-thirds were non-residents.

At the March, 1855, an election was held for choosing members of the legislature. Again complaints of <sup>on the refusal of their</sup> men were from Miss., and that denied to be allowed to vote without being sworn, <sup>and</sup> they dispersed the judges were dismissed, and new judges were chosen. On account of alleged frauds, in some districts and other irregularities, the government ordered a new election in the six contested districts, to be held in May. In five of the districts, the pro-slavery <sup>Confederate</sup> party, <sup>which</sup> had an interest in the election, and free state men were elected.

The legislature met at Pawnee City, July 2, 1855. The seats were refused to the free state men elected in May, and given to those elected in March. The government refused to sign several bills passed by this legislature; he was in July, he was removed from office by the president Pierce, and David Woodson, the secretary of the br. became acting governor.

Purposous slave laws were passed. To any person, for asserting that masters had no right to hold slaves in the territory, or circulating a paper containing such denial, was punishable by imprisonment for two years.

Not recognizing the authority of the existing government, the free state movement was made by the free state men <sup>in which movement</sup> states to form a state government; and all bona fide citizens were requested to participate. Delegates to constitutional convention were elected in Oct. (1855) and Gov. Rader was chosen a delegate to Congress. The convention met the same month, and formed a cons. which was adopted by the people on the 15th of December, by a nearly unanimous vote, 1731 to 46; the pro-slavery party ~~had~~ <sup>so far as not voting</sup>. Members of the state legislature and state offices were elected in Jan. 1856. A state govt was so organized by the legislature in March; Andrew W. Rader and James H. Lane were chosen US senators.

The Legislature, pursuant to adjt., and <sup>on</sup> the 4th of July; ~~they were~~ voted by a bill they were dispersed by a proclamation from President Pierce and one from Woodson, <sup>and</sup> the belief that the laws of the Slave state should be enforced, and by the appearance of two hundred Col. Indians at the head of two men in front of the hall.

Gov. Wilson Shannon, of Ohio, succeeded Gov. Rader in Sept. 1. 1855. By his pacificatory measures, he disappointed his proslavery friends; and in Aug. 1856 he was officially informed of his removal and Woodson again became acting-governor.

Pres. P., in his message of Dec. 1855, charged the free states with a disregard of their constitutional obligations, by their interferences in the institutions of the slave states, and vindicates the latter from the charge of aggression upon the rights and interests of the former. And by a speech over age in January, he denounces <sup>the</sup> propagandist colonization of the territory, to prevent the free and natural action of its inhabitants in its internal organization, and charges upon the Emigrant Aid Societies, "designs and acts" which had awakened emotions of intense indignation in states near Kansas, "and especially Missouri, whose peace was thus the most directly endangered."



Alvin Plumb



AUSTIN SMITH  
S. Stoddard & Co., Lith. City, N.Y.  
CITY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Austin Smith



Yours fr  
J. A. Osborne



COPYRIGHT CH

PRINTED IN U.S.A.  
BY THE HISTORICAL

BALTIMORE,  
MD., U.S.A.  
JULY 1861  
BY THE HISTORICAL  
LIBRARY OF THE  
UNIVERSITY OF  
BALTIMORE

Thomas B. Campbell



WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Warren Coach  
C. F. B. Gage



COUNTY

WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Jonathan S. Patterson



Truly yours  
John Wilson

May 2012

Gazetteer of the State of New York

by J. H. French A. A. D.

Member of the American Association for  
advancement of Science. Corresponding Member  
of the New York Historical Society of the Albany Institute

Published 1861

Wethersfield 2<sup>10</sup>

Elijah T. Foster (now of Amherstburg Can) for 20 years  
first Judge of Chautauque Co says the first settlement in the  
County ~~commenced~~ was made in 1794 by several persons  
from Erie Penn & Iammy Niles ~~were~~ <sup>wrote</sup> the latter & Loring  
These persons had been induced by prudent  
representatives to locate in Pennsylvania afterwards desired  
to leave their improvements & commence anew in the  
wilderness. They settled within the limits of Chautauque  
County but the precise place unknown

The first settlement in the county was made  
Amos Soltie in 1797 soon after making first in  
movement Soltie left and returned in 1801 with Mr  
Sidney & Rosecrantz

In 1802 Gen Paine spent part <sup>1803</sup> ~~2000~~ from  
Buffalo to Chautauque Chautauque to Pum he  
to enable one grants to reach western Reserve

J. H. French  
gazetteer of the  
State of Indiana  
Extracts from  
some entirely erroneous

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY, WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Giles, Wm. B., of Virginia, controversy with Adams, 429-41.  
Goodrich, Elizur, removal of, by Jefferson, 199.  
Gordon, Wm. F., of Virginia, proposes sub-treasury, 620.  
Gould, Judge, of Conn., publishes testimony against Adams, 456-8.  
Graham, Wm. A., of N. C., secretary of the navy, 910; candidate for vice-president, 938.  
Granger, Gideon, letter of Jefferson to, 201; postmaster-general, 198.  
Granger, Francis, candidate for lieutenant-governor of New York, and for governor, 465; for vice-president, 677; postmaster-general, 744.  
Great Britain, instructions of, on trade with the colonies, 35; attempts to conciliate, difficulties with, 50, 55; policy of, 120; treaty with, 137; aggressions and new principles of, 216-18; treaty with, rejected, 221; orders in council, 226-8; negotiation with, (Erskine and Jackson,) 233-4; war declared against, 254; orders in council revoked, 259; negotiation of peace, 264, 267; treaty with, 300; claims of, on Pacific, 377; West India trade, 382, &c.; navigation of St. Lawrence, 386-90; north-eastern boundary, 386, 784-6.  
Grundy, Felix, of Tennessee, on Foot's resolution, 493.  
Gunboats, Jefferson's plan of naval defense, 212, 213.

Habersham, Joseph, postmaster-general, 136.  
Hamilton, Alexander, on removal from office, 76; secretary of the treasury, 77; his character and Jefferson's described, 95-6; controversy with Jefferson, 97-101; letter to Washington, 102-3; charges against, 107, 133; report on public debt, and resignation, 136; opposes Adams, 180, 189, and Burr, 191.  
Harbor bill defeated by the president's not returning it, 561.  
Harrison, Wm. H., delegate from north-western territory, 188; nominated and elected president, 735-8; his inauguration and cabinet, 740-4; convenes congress, and dies, 744.  
Hartford convention, history of, 269-72.  
Harvey, Sir John, governor of Virginia colony, 27.  
Haywood, Wm. H., of N. C., instructed, and resigns, 873.  
Henry, John, agent in the British plot, 248-9.  
Henry, Patrick, envoy to France, (declined,) 179.  
Hill, Isaac, on branch mints, 629.  
Holland, dissatisfied with the Jay treaty, 147.  
Holmes, John, of Maine, on Van Buren's nomination, 553.  
Houston, Samuel, speech of, on Nebraska bill, 950.

Impressment of American seamen by Great Britain, 218, 261.  
Independence declared, 47; declaration of, 953.  
Indiana, territory formed, 188; attempt to introduce slavery in, 209-10; divided, 213; admission of, as a state, 282-3; claims the public lands within her limits, 474.  
Indians, north-western, war with, 94; treaty with, 140; Creeks and Georgia, 361-74; Jackson's policy in relation to, 510, &c.; bill for removal of, 514, 524; Cherokee memorial, 525; case in supreme court, 527; last controversy, 555.  
Ingersoll, Jared, voted for as vice-president, 262.  
Ingham, Samuel D., secretary of state, resignation, &c., 548-52.  
Insolvent and bankrupt laws, decision on, 308.  
Interior department of, established, 891.

that this country was inhabited by for ages before its discovery by Columbus  
and by a people or by peoples other than the Indians tribes, there is strongly  
indicated if not conclusively proved by antiquaries in all parts of  
many parts of the states, and in none more clearly than on our own,  
~~including the county of Chautauqua~~<sup>in a former</sup> state. Among these articles are fortifica-  
tions, out-houses, and works without, ~~surrounding~~<sup>in a distance</sup> large heaps  
of human skeletons, <sup>in a distance</sup> discovered by excavations, &c.

In 1811, Sibbitt Clinton ~~read~~<sup>in a former</sup> address before the N.Y. Historical  
Society, alludes to this subject. He says:

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Liver Pies. from Limerick in 1814 to Ben  
and son lot. After the death of Mrs. P. he  
lived alone and after 2 or 3 years, came back and  
died peacefully until death in

Residence in Ben  
He had 12 children: Eliza, Ben, Oliver, Rosa,  
Sally, Lovisa, Mr. Horace P. ~~and others~~, Sally, Nathan  
Roxie, Daniel, Sally, Rosa and Anna Martin. He  
died during winter in year of 1812.

Ben in Old Marche Dec 17, 1815 settled when  
he now resides 1 town S W of Limerick on lot 17 41.  
ac. 12. He has 2 children & 10 towns 2 second  
infancy. Eliza wife of Sherman Warfield who died  
while on his way south for the benefit of health.  
Sally & Roxie 2. wife of Elias N. Powers who died at it's end. En  
farm with his son-in-law; on the  
of Oliver, ~~who~~ <sup>now</sup> ~~resides~~ near Bloomingville in  
winter. After the death of his wife he married Mrs.  
Anna Simonsen, present wife.

Oliver who resides on Carpenter and resides  
near Corry, Franklin, who remained Esthetic since  
he died about 2 years ago. Resided in Frank settlement

South part

John Hill

Mrs. Belknap

Jane Abbott

Samuel P. Penn

Hajtline

James Brothard

Asa Smith

Edwin Hajtline

Clark Smith

Zina H. Duf

John

John Brothard

John

Neram Ellinapp

John

RECORDED IN THE HISTORICAL SOCIETY OF AUTQUA COUNTY WESTFIELD NY 2023

RECORDED IN THE HISTORICAL SOCIETY OF AUTQUA COUNTY WESTFIELD NY 2023

RECORDED IN THE HISTORICAL SOCIETY OF AUTQUA COUNTY WESTFIELD NY 2023

RECORDED IN THE HISTORICAL SOCIETY OF AUTQUA COUNTY WESTFIELD NY 2023

Zenias K. Fox came and his father came settled on lot 11, where he now lives. Has 3 sons now, a Cong. Minn in the West; Alfred, is dead with his father on the farm, a Meth. Local pr. Abion in the state of Tennessee.

I. Martha d. of J. Bradbury, wife of H. Bradbury wife of Harvey A. Smith.

Mariah was wife Jerome Preston

Sarah wife of E. Evans Goffey, who live on the farm previously taken up by said property owned by his father.

Ira C. Stoddard from Edin Co. about 1836, settled on lot 101, then to lot 57 n. 1st; now at Canvis. Sons: Jacob,

Wm Mead settled on 21; died and had 4 sons: Wm, in Minn.; Geo. G. on the homestead; Thompson G. on the homestead; Francis in Minn.

Joseph Rogers on lot 30., was a justice, and now lives in Ashville. His sons: Charles; Alfred, Conway, died in battle in the late war of the Cavalry, killed; Jerome;

Wm Robbins early settled on 29. Roads furnished on lot 29; one son named John, lives the land now owned by both his sons John & Otto on the homestead.

John, John, Geo; and Otto on the homestead. ~~except~~ of the former <sup>only</sup> John逝世 Jesse Frothingham on the West lot of town; where his widow resides.

W. Stephen & daughter on lot 25, where he now resides. His sons: Stephen dead, Charles; Silas, George Bafford, Sethany mother with his father.

David Palmer, 1811, lot 14. Sons Orlando, O. Dr. and Preston in Union Pv. Sarah in Ohio. Father is dead.

Sophia, same lot 1811, was a justice, ~~now~~ <sup>now</sup> Thomas ~~now~~ <sup>now</sup> lives in Minn. Marion, Minn. Washington, in Elliott.

W. Lazarus Cole, from Sager home, in 1817 or 18. and moved on lot 7 and other to ~~to~~ <sup>at least</sup> 3 sons; John, Lewis and Harry, Stephen in Pa.

W. Amariah Parson on lot 15 and died in Erie Co. Son Jesse dead; David dead; Robt in Iowa; Henry dead, Amariah in Pennsylv. now living with his son

visiting in middle country, and now living with his son in New York, no longer with S. Parson, now

\$1.

George Sleath was in office 1809 on Lot 89 Pleasanton

Carroll Tp 1, R 10.

Sect

June 1809 Isaac Walton (Art 41) & at date of this  
(Walton's) article Joel Tyler is on lot 51 ~~with~~  
~~for~~ - and there is from 1809 ~~dated~~ to  
Charles Boyle's <sup>Boyle's</sup> ~~when he~~ <sup>when he</sup> obtained his  
& same date Joel Tyler obtains article on his  
lot also same date George Sloane article on  
lot 59 — James Pendleton in <sup>1809 took lots 50 & 58</sup> ~~deeds or articles~~  
- lot 59 — <sup>1809</sup> ~~1808~~ + lot

Month	Name	Amount
Feb 1810	Thos M Stickney	33
March " 14	Geo W Gerten	52
Feby " 14	Henry Abel	33
Oct 1811	Salemor Price	45
" "	Matthew Turner	33
Mar " 11	Webster March	45
Nov " 11	Matthew Turner	34
" "	Ebenezer Cherry	44
June 1812	John Green	61 <sup>R</sup>
" "	Robt Russel	37 R
Sept 1813	Russell Green	64 53
Oct " 13	Joseph Brownell	11
" "	Salmon Menger	2
Dec " 13	Anassa Littlefield	36
Jan 1814	Daniel Rankin	62
" "	Henry Bangs	36
March " 14	Ebenezer Cherry	36
" "	" "	46, 84, 47, 35
May " 14	Andrew Chase	34
" "	Benj Jones	28 + 23
" "	deiv Jones	24 + 28
" "	Elijah Bragley	43
" "	Ebenezer Davis	37
" "	Horatio Dicks	28
1814	J. H. Kennedy	10, 16, 23, 44, 30, 11, 12, 17, 18, 19
July 1814	James Hall	34
Sept " 14	Aaron Forbes	64
Nov " 14	Robt Russell	57 R
Mar 1815	Josiah P Wheeler	46
" "	Alder Tobey	37
" "	Wheeler & Hall	32 + 40
" "	Wm Sears	31
Apr " 15	Henry S Hill	39
May " 15	Abel Hammorn	29
17 Dec " 15	Wm Bolles	25

March 1816	Youngs Babcock	31
May "	Abida Dean	44
" "	Johnathan Correll	43
June "	Peleg Benson	42
Oct "	Ely Emes	38
March 1817	athan Thayer & Eli Haskin	
May "	Benj Russell	30
July 1818	Aaron Gorley	64
Sept "	Charles Rogers	74
Oct "	Ebenezer Sears	74
Dec "	Jonathan Gifford Salmon Free	34
Nov "	Levi Jones	23
Jan 1819	Josiah H. Wheeler	39
Aug "	Clement Dolloff	64
June 1820	John Free	62
Oct 1821	Benj McLocken	30
Nov "	Chas Tavelott	44
Oct 1823	James Hall	15
Sept 1822	Isaac Eames	39
Jan 1824	John & James Free?	
Feb "	John Myers	20
Apr "	John Free	27
June "	Michael Steel	48
July "	"	63
Sept "	David Wheeler	57
Oct "	Trindam Cornstock	31
" "	Benj Russell	48
June 1825	Geo W Fenton	52
Nov "	Aaron Woodcock	63
Dec "	Symon Street	56
" "	<del>John Gifford</del>	66
May 1826	Hiram, James, Jonah Corey	14
" "	Dan'l H. G.	26
June "	David Hall	23
June "	Taylor Aldrich	28
Dec "	John Gifford	33
Sept 1827	Andrew Frank	60
June "	John Haines	26
" "	John D. Rose	48
X Oct "	Ruf. Russell	49
Oct 1828	James Amorae	
" "	Levi Gifford	Take all
" "	Alvan Stewart	The Land
" "		John Youngman

March, Jonathan R. Reynolds, 32. Annah Farrand, 32. John J. Tift, 40.

1823. April, David Fuller, 24. June, Orrin Farrand, 48. Joel D. Cornish, 47. July, Samuel Sparks, 40. Aug., Curtis Mellock, 31. Sept., Henry Randolph, 64. Oct., Joseph Skinner, 24.

1824. Feb. Alanson Weed, 31. April, Lester Dewey, 39. Alexander McKay, 23. John Parks, 55. May, Alanson Weed, 31. Elisha Tickner, 56. Ransom Pelton, 63. Amos Belding, 54. Charles Parker & Charles Benét, 52. Samuel H. Northway, 39. Butler D. Powers, 46. Lester B. Dewey, 39. Sept., Titus Cook, 51. Hiram N. Gleason, 24.

1825. Jan., Milo Olmsted, 27, 28. Joshua La Due, 34. Jess Newell, 34. Feb., Osmand Hall, 36. Hiram Parkhurst, 36. March, Squire L. Harris, 57. Peter H. Foot, 62. Mrs. Brown & Rachel Barnister, 55. Mond. R. Novis, 30. April, Hazard Willcox, 64. Samuel Throop, 63. May, Lorin Park, 59. Cyrus Pitts, 59. Mr. E. Brown, 53. Calvin Holbrook, 28, 35. Elisha A. Eads, 53. Dearing Dorman, 52. Alanson Weed, 32. David Stone, 64. June, Larry Wilcox, 48. James Ottaway, 62. Sampson Vincent, 20. Cyrus Pitts, 59. Charles Hawley, 29, 37. Elisha Woodruff, 38. Wm. Williams, 29. Frederic S. Main, 64. Schiel Wilcox, 51. July, Aaron Clark, 43. Ira Nichols, 16. Ira Selden, 38. Jonathan R. Reynolds, 47. Jacob Reed, 33. <sup>Aug.</sup> Sampson Vincent, 20. Joseph Ferris, 60. Isaac Cranfield, 28. Sept., Jedediah & Elliott B. Smith, 37. George Sampson & Phineas Bailey, 62. Hiram Hatch, 49. Elisha A. Eads, 23. James Parmenter, 30. Salmerian Smith, 26.

Oct., Samuel Dean, 22. Major D. Reynolds, 16. Nov., John C. Wilcox, 56. Lester Leach, 42.

Benj Boorman purchased lot 62 a. p.  
in 1824 and moved on 1825. and resides there until  
alternately in Minnew and Sherman until 1872  
~~since which he has~~ now resides with his son  
Joseph 1km west of the village

1<sup>st</sup> Edwin Boorman m. sis Mary  
Mrs. Mary Mary born <sup>1st</sup> called on lot 61 where he  
now resides. 2. Josephson. Elizabeth Sparkes  
and resides. 6 John Boorman ~~is his~~ m.  
Eveline Bradt and lives in at Orisk, West  
Co. 7 Benj in Cal.

- 2 Mary m. Silas Dodge in Minnesota  
4 Charlotte m. Thomas <sup>III</sup> Sparkes he is deceased and  
in the army.  
5 Sarah John E. Ottaway son of James Ottaway  
m. and lives on the latter's homestead  
8 Emily M. m. Daniel Frits and lives in Sherman.
- COPYRIGHT CHARTER COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

J 3 - R 10 Ellington

		Sd <sup>d</sup>
May	1822 - Israel Carpenter	6
Apr	" - David Soren	6 3
Feb	1822 - Saml Newton	4 6
May	" Gardner Bentley } 1 1/6	
" "	Benajah Barr }	
June	" John S Smith --	2
Apr	" Peavola Dean —	4 6
May	" James Leach --	1 8
" "	Amos Leach --	1 1
July	1823 John Stafford —	2 0
Aug	" W. M. Stockwother —	6 2
March	" John Woodward —	9
Aug	" Brackley Eastman —	2 6
Oct	" Enoch Wallis —	2 7
" "	Comfort Carpenter —	2 7
"	1821 Caleb Freeman —	4
"	1823 Mr. Day —	3 1
" "	David C Spear —	3 1
March	" David C Green —	2 4 + 8
Nov	1822 Silas Remington —	4 4
Oct	1821 James Briggs —	1 3
"	1823 Royal Slater —	2 6
" "	Noah Starr —	6 0
Oct	1821 Paul Billings } 1 3	
	Nathan Billings }	
Dec	1823 Henry Abby —	3 2
Jan	1824 Julius Dewey —	3 8
Feb	" Levi & John McMillifgs —	4 5
Apr	" Edward White —	2 4
May	" Charles Bisbee 3	
Oct	1821 Job Stafford } 1 3	
" "	Robt Page }	
June	1824 Edward Chappin & Stephen Miller 6 1	
Oct	" 12 " Free bank 3	
1/2/21	" 10 & 13 Chase — — 4 1	
"	" Erastus Weston — — 6 0	
"	" Gilbert Lee — — 3	
"	" Amos Lathrop — }	
"	" Orin Kingbury } 3 4	
"	" Otis Paige }	
"	" Hubbard Weston } 3 5	
"	" Frederick Astenhout }	
"	" Eliza Hinman & Geo Hinman 2 6	
Oct	" 12 " Grofoot, Miller & Bush & Bush - 4 9	
"	" Levi Churchill — — 2 7	
Mar	" Rich Gage — — 1 7	

## (3-10 Ellington Cont'd)

Jan'y 1825	Pioneer Ralph	- - 3+
March " "	Chase Fish }	- 44
" "	Benson Fish }	
" "	Geo Porter	- - 33
" "	Lucius Williams	. 58
Apr " "	Horace Holbrook }	33
" "	Geo Sillie	33
" "	Nathaniel Miller & Lymanville	54
" "	Dudley Holbrook	- 13
" "	Leander Cleveland	53
May "	John Norton	- - 35
" "	John Lake	- - . 25
June "	Geo & Altenburg, Jacob Redau	28
" "	Jeremiah Baldwin	
" "	Charles H. Horner	- - 36
" "	Joseph B. Eddy	- - 52
" "	Stephen Whisock	- - - 61
" "	Nathaniel Dunham	- 60
" "	John Felt	- 52
" "	John P. Southwell	52
" "	Ezra G. Battell	- 39
" "	James W. Cattash	- 14
" "	James Tracy	35
" "	Opposea Felt	53
Sept 1825	Geo Sillie	- - 33
" "	Joseph Sonde	- - 11
" "	Gen Hinsdale Jr	34
" "	Levi Churchill	- 27
Aug "	Elijah Tracy	- -
" "	Reuel Dimmick	- 38
Oct " "	Alex Gove	- 50
" "	Israel King	16
Dec " "	Snash Wallace	- 27
" "	Elias Parker Jr	- 59
" "	Morgan Cook	- 14
" "	Isaac Page	- 12
" "	Isaac Parker	- 42
" "	Isaac Holloman	- 5
" "	Isaac Erastus Root	- 42
Feby 1826	James Butts	- - 50

## Chautauqua.

John McMahan 1805

1808

Arthur Bell 1808

Thomas Prendergast 1809 1814

Matthew Prendergast

Matthew Prendergast 1810, 1811.

Samuel Ayres 1812

John Scott 1813

John Marshall, 1814

Martin Prendergast, 1815, 1816, 19 20 21 22

John Astor 1817 [23 24 25 26 27 28]

Jabez B. Bourne 34 35 36 [29 30 31 32 33]

Wm. Prendergast 2d. 37 38 39 [44 61 62 63]

Alva Cottrell 40 41

Debtors Barnes 42

Cyrus Underwood, 43 44

Wm. C. Cottrell

Alva Cottrell 46

W. W. Crafts 47 48 50

Stephen French 50 51 52

Hiram Knoll 52

David Woods 52 53

John Rockwell 56 57 73 74

Wm. Gifford 58 59

M. G. Frazee 60

Daniel H. Hughes 65

W. D. Mather 66

Mat. P. Besse's 67 68 69 70 71 72

## Clysmor.

Andy Noble 21

John Heath 22 23

Gardner Cleveland 24 25 26 27

Abraham S. Underwood 28

W. C. Wilson Jr 29

John Heath 30

One Rice 31 32 33 34 36 37 38 39 41 42

H. A. Thimby 35 [45]

Joe T. Gleason 40

Moses Randall 43 44

Sam. D. Bly 46 47

Elyman Brown 49

Charles Brighton 49 50 58 59

Stephen W. Stewart 57 58 59 59 55

Joseph Brown 56 71 72

Horatio Hill 57

Charles Rice, 60

Lawson S. Terry 61

Horatio Bly 62 63 68 69 70

John Nelson 64 65 66 67

Andrew C. Carpenter 70

Ole J. Green 73 74

CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD

## Dunkirk.

Gen. A. Steele, 60<sup>20</sup><sub>2</sub>

John S. Begg 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69

70 71 72 73

## Cherry Creek

James Carr 30 33 36 40 46 52

Rob. James Jr 31 32

Geo H Frost 34 35

James Carpenter, 37

Oliver Hague Brewster 38

One G. Carr 39

Wm. Kilborn 41 42 43

A. F. Robbins 44

Oliver B. Mason 45 46 50

Char. Alderman 47 48

Jos. Kent 51 56

D.B. Parsons 53 54

Silas Vinton 55 59 60 68 70 71

Horatio Hill 57 58 59

R.W. Parsons, 61 63 65

Anthony Morris 62 69

Geo. W. Frost 66 69 72 73

Wescon C. Carpenter 70

One J. B. Begg 74

Andrew W. Co. To Go

W. Young

## Supervisors.

Ashkwright [44, 48-46, 47]

1838 Ann. Wilcox 30 31 32 33 34 35-36  
 Levi Baldwin 37 38 39 40 42 53  
 Lewis E Danforth 41 43 54 57  
 Chasney Abby 55 56 58, 59 62 63, 64 65  
 John Christoval 60 61 66 68  
 Delos J. Kimball 67  
 Oscar H. Koch 69  
 L. Courtney Baldwin 70  
 Leander S. Phelps 71 72  
 At Geo W. Briggs 73 74

## Carroll

1838 Wm. Brown 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35-36  
 James Parker 34 35 36 37 56 57  
 Eliza Kidder 38;  
 Phineas Turner 40  
 Jacob E. Burdett 41  
 Gordon Swift 42 43 44  
 John Free 45  
 R. E. Fenimore 46 47 48 49 50 51 52  
 Edwin Eaton 53 53  
 Wm A. H. Featons 54 65-67 68 69 70 71  
 Chas L. Norton 55 58 59 60 61 62 63 64  
 Lewis Bill. Robertson 72  
 Wm. W. Kimball 73

## Burke

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY

## Burti

Daniel Harmon 24 25 26 27 28 33  
 Enri Davis 29 30 31 32 33 35 40 47  
 Parson Hazeltine 36 37 38 39  
 Henry C. Thurman 41 42 44 45  
 Lyman Matthews 43 48 49 50 53  
 Stephen Brown 46  
 Wm. C. Brown 52 54  
 John B. Baldwin 55  
 Enri Davis Jr. 56 57 58 59 61 62  
 John A. Hall 59 60  
 John R. Robertson 61 63 64  
 Elias H. Garrison 72  
 Wm. B. Martin 66 67  
 John R. Robertson 68  
 Harmon G. Mitchell 69 70  
 John A. Hall 71  
 Alonso R. Pickard 73 74

## Charlotte

Ashland Lake 30 35-37 42 45  
 Bela Tracy 31 33 34  
 Sam'l F. Farbush 32  
 John Blanchard 36  
 Orton Clark 38, 39 40 41 43 44 59 60  
 R. W. Seaver 46 47 48  
 Joseph E. Kimball 49  
 Orson, G. White 50 51  
 John Edison 52 53 54  
 David Arnold 55  
 Wm. M. Ferguson 56  
 Allen & Stevens 57 68  
 Henry Clark 58 61  
 Tim. D. Clegg 62 63  
 Henry Reynolds 64, 65-66 69  
 Daniel H. Phelps 1  
 Henry Reynolds  
 Ober Edson 67  
 Geo. S. Harrison 69 70 71  
 Horace E. Kimball 72 75 74

## Villanova:

Ezra Puffer 23 24  
Villanova Balcom 25-26 27 28 29 30  
David Wright, 31 41 L32 48  
Henry May 33  
Austin Piero 34 35 36 39 49  
John C. Dibble 37  
Luther Piero 38  
Nathan Currier 40 44  
Joseph G Hopkins 42 43  
Geo Hopkins 45 46 47  
Timothy G Walker 50 51  
Martin Cromell 52 54 55 58 59 60 61  
Hiram Cornell 53 L62 55 66 67  
James Wright 58 59  
Hosea Burgess 63  
Moses J. Corry 64  
Tylor H. Scoll 68, 69 72 73  
Horatio A. Puffer 70  
Rollin L Shepard 71

Julia A Ferry 74

## Westfield:

Amos Atwater 29 31 32 33  
J. McMurtry 30  
Rott. Cokeran 34 35  
Geo Hall 36 37 51  
Wm. Sexton 38  
Elijah Waters 39 40 41  
Thomas B. Campbell 42 44  
James Pratt 43  
John G. Hinckley 45 46 47 55  
Alvin Plumb 48 52  
Augustus Smith 49 50  
Johnna P.M. Babcock 53 54  
Wm. Voice 56 57  
G.W. Patterson 58 59 60 67  
J.H. Huntington, 61 62 63 64 65 66  
Moses J. Corry 68  
J.O. Brewer 68 69 72 73 74  
Henry C. Kingsbury 70 71

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

## Ellery

Minor June 21  
Peter Loucks 22  
Abijah Clark 23  
Stephen Fair 24 25 26 27 32  
Jonadab Minchinton 28  
Reba Whisler 29  
John Hammon 30  
Jonadab Minchinton 31  
O. Benedict 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 41 42  
Mund Hoyt, 110 [44 45 46 47 48  
Geo. F. Vandewark 43 48 50  
Wm S. Aldrich 51 52 53  
Geo. Haskins 54  
Elias Clark 55  
Lemuel Picket 56 57  
Wm C. Benedict 58 59 60 61 62 63 65 66  
James Hale 64 [72  
John Russell 67  
John S. Benner 68 69  
Oscar Hale 70 71  
Geo. W. Belden 73 74

## Ellington

James Thatcher 75  
Cornelius H. Nickerson 26 27  
James Carr 28 29  
John Woodward 20  
Andrew Evans 20  
John Woodward Jr. 31 32 33 34 38 39 40  
Benj. Barnard, 35 36 37  
George J. Philpot 41 42 43 47  
Jas. B. Kline 44 45 46  
John F. Farman 48 49 50 51 52 53 55 57  
Chas. B. Green 56 57 60 [60  
John M. Farnham 62 63  
Sam'l Griffiths 64 65 72 73  
Geo. Waite 66 67  
Philip M. Smith 68 69  
Cary Briggs 70 71  
Theodore A. Case 74

## Ellcott

Jas. Print. 1813, 1814, 1815  
John Faw 1816 17 19 20 21 22  
James Hall 23 24 25  
Solomon Jones 26 27 28  
William L. Fenton 27 30  
Daniel Barnett 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39  
Wm. Hall 41 42 [40 44  
Horace Allen 43  
Henry Barker 45 46 53 54  
A. Barker 47 48 52 56 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67  
Chas. Butler 49 50 [68 71 72 73  
R. V. Cunningham 51  
Simeon W. Park 55  
Garrison Palmer 57  
Lewis Hall 58 59  
Isaac Parson 69 70

## French Creek.

Abr'l Wilson Jr 30 31 32  
Nath'l Thompson 33  
John Gleason 34 35 36 37  
Daniel Heckler, 38  
Philo S. Hawley 39 40 41 42 52  
D. Gleason 43  
Sias Terry 44 45 46  
Mathew R. Pease 46 47 48 51 53 54 55  
Thos. D. Jones 56  
John Sliter, 56 [57  
Marina Hooper 57  
S. W. Stewart 58  
H. P. Fenton 59 60  
R. J. Beach 61 62  
Almond S. Park, 63  
Lanigan S. Terry 64 65  
Dane P. Hartness, 66 67  
James A. Terry 68 69  
Dexter M. Hofford 70  
Henry R. Case 71 72  
John Lovell 73  
H. R. Parsons 74

# Ripley

J. Prendeville, 1817  
 Abner Atwater, 1816  
 J. Prend. 17 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 27  
 Ebenezer Ward 26  
 Moses Adams 28  
 Henry Fairchild 29 30 31 32  
 Orrin Willis 33 34  
 Gordon H. Waller 35 36  
 Ethan Sawyer 37 38  
 C. B. Blackway 39 40 52 57 64 65 66 67  
 Hiram Moore 41 42  
 Moses A. Tenant 43 44 45 47 48 53  
 Matthew S. McClintock, 46  
 Stephen Prendergast 49 50  
 Geo. Goodrich 51  
 Selden Marvin 54  
 Caleb O. Daugherty 55  
 Simon Collins 56 58 59 60 61 63  
 H. A. Prendeville 62  
 Addison Mason 69 72  
 Lewis G. Hamilton 70 71  
 Edwin C. Miller, 73

# Marcus 74

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY

# Shenandoah

John Stetson 27 28 29 30 32  
 Nathl. May 37 35 38  
 Nicholas Miller 33  
 L. Fairbanks 34  
 Jonathan Patterson 36 37  
~~sawtelle tray 38~~  
 Willard W. Brigham 39 40 41 42  
 John Eacker, 43 53  
 John N. Augg, 44  
 Henry Hall 45 46 47 48 49  
 Edmund Mead 50 51 52 54 56  
 Newton P. Smith 55  
 Newell Morris 57  
 Mrs. O. Strong 58 59  
 John C. Cranston 60 61 62  
 Buell Tolley 63 64 65 66 67 68 70  
 Joseph C. Doty 68 71 72  
 Geo. W. Eakin 73  
 Stewart J. Christy 74

# Sherman

Oli Skinner 33 35 38  
 B. "H. Kipp 34 48 49  
 Lorin Park 36 37 51 55  
 Platt S. Colborn 39 44 45  
 David Cook 40 41 42  
 Leo Hart 43  
 John P. Hall 46 47  
 Lester R. Dewey 50  
 Lewis Sperry 52, 53  
~~Edmund Mead 54~~  
 Newton P. Smith 55  
 Burj J. Coffin 54  
 Dan Green 56 57  
 Miles J. Clark 58 59  
 Henry Bliss 60 61  
 Henry M. Shry 62 63 64 65 68  
 Sylvanus N. Myrick, 66  
 Henry Sheldon 67  
 Alfred W. Benson 69  
 John T. Green 70 71 72 74  
 Stockton.

Calvin Warren, 21 22  
 Henry Walker 23 24 25  
~~Calvin Warren~~ 26  
 W. Eliot Smith 27 31 32  
 Aaron Lyon 28 34  
 Hiram Lazell 29 30  
 John Green 33 35  
 Calvin Smith 36 37  
 Chauncey Warren 38 39 45 47 68 69  
 Delos Beebe 40 41  
 Philip Lazell 1, 2 60 61  
 Thos. Ralph 4, 3 44  
 Elzear Flagg, Jr. 46  
 Norton Smith 48 49 50 51 52 53  
~~Norton C.~~  
 George P. Hanison 54  
 Judge L. Bugbee 55 57  
 Elbert Moon 58  
 New P. Burdick 57 58  
~~Newton C.~~  
 Merrill Cady 62 63  
 Harlow Cady 64 65  
 Eliphilet Mitchell 66 67  
 Walker Parkman 70 71  
 Joseph Batchelder 72 73  
 Lee O. Warren

# Gerry

Sam. Sinker 1813  
 Amos Atkins 1814  
 David Russell 1815  
 Daniel Sinegar 1815, '16 '19 '20  
 Selah Pickett 1817  
 Joel Burnell 21 28 Hugo B. Patterson 22 23  
 Nathan Eaton 29 £24 25 26 27 30  
 James Scoville Jr. 31 32 33 34 35  
 Willard Bucklin 37 40 44 46 47 48 55  
 Marshall Waggoner 68 45 £57  
 Wm. Blies 39 41  
 Wm R. Wilson 41 42  
 Sidney E. Palmer 43 54 56 73 74  
 Wm. Miller 50  
 James Bucklin 51 52  
 Lyman S. Eaton 53  
 Samuel Griffith 58 59  
 Robt. Denoy 60  
 Galusha Burdick 61 62 65 66 69 70  
 Wm. A. Aldrich 68 64  
 Frank B. Dimon 67 68  
 Wm. H. Scott 71 72

# Harmony

Palmer Phillips 1816 '17 19 20 21 22 23  
 Thos. Bly 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 33 34 35  
 Henry Hill 32 £38  
 Zad'l Ward 35 36  
 Robt. Hees 39 40 61  
 John Steward 43 44 45 46 47 50 51 52  
 Thos. L. Bly 48 49 £54 62  
 Morris Norton 53  
 Elkanah Gleason 55  
 Ebenezer Cook 56, 57  
 Sardius Steward 58 59 60  
 Reuben T. Randolph 61  
 Charles Scott 62  
 Cyrus D. Taylor 63  
 Walter L. Sessions 63 64  
 Loren B. Sessions 65 66 67 68 69 70 73  
 Frank G. Steward 71 72

# Hanover

Nedibiah Angell 1813  
 Joseph Brownell 1814  
 Daniel Russell 1815, 1816, 28 29 30  
 Joseph Brownell 1816, 17 19  
 J. May 20 21 22 23 24 26 27 31 32 36  
 Seth Snow 25  
 Oliver Lee 33 34 35  
 Wm. Colvill Jr. 37 46 50 51  
 E. B. Avery 38  
 Adolphus F. Morrison 39 48  
 Egk B. Murray 40  
 Thos. C. Hale 41  
 Jas. Ellsworth 42 44 45  
 Orson Stiles 43  
 H. H. Hawkins 47  
 Wm. H. Lee 49 52  
 Hiram Smith 53 54  
 Clark C. Swift 53 56  
 Hiram Smith 54 57 58 59 60  
 Chandler Scott 60 62 67  
 Cyrus D. Angell 63  
 Wm. D. Aldrich 64  
 Nathan S. Doty 65 66  
 John D. Miller 68 69  
 Horatio B. Birren 70 71  
 Smith Clark 72 73  
 Delos Andrews 74

COPYRIGHT, CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

# Kiantone

Elijah Kidder 52  
 Lucien V. Astell 55 56  
 Chas. Spiner 57  
 Delavan T. Morgan 58  
 Roswell M. Birren 59 61  
 Geo. Atwell 60  
 Slavyta M. Woodward 62 63 64 65-68  
 Aaron J. Phillips 66 67 73  
 Jas. Gardiner 69 70 71 72  
 Howard Russell 74

## Mina

Nathaniel Groop 24 25 26 27 29  
Robert Haskell 28  
Ole Skinner 30 31  
Joshua LeDoux 33  
Elias E.D. Wood 32  
Joseph Palomen 34 35 36 37  
David DeClow 38 44 59  
Valorus Lake 39 40 41 42  
Jesse B. Moore 1, 3  
Peter Putnam 45  
Edon Barlow 46 47 48 52  
Cyrus Underwood 49  
Luke Groves 50 51 57  
Edward Bass 51 58 61 63  
Alex<sup>r</sup> Eddy 53  
Orap Peltier 54  
Geo. Ross 55  
Geo. Reff 60 61 64 65 67 72  
Tho. R. Conroy 62 68  
Franklin DeClow 66 71  
Henry D. Atoms 69 70  
John E. Ottaway 73 74

## Pomfret.

Philo Orton, 1808 - 1818  
Silent Barker 19 20 21 22 29 45-46  
Abiram Orton 23 24 25  
Benj. Braglass 26 27 28  
G. A. French 30 31 32 33  
Orrin Mc Clellan 34  
Elijah Riley Jr 35  
Elisha Norton 36 40 41 42 43 44  
Pascorn Crosby 37 L 56 57 60  
Squire White 38 39  
David W. Douglass 47  
Russell Greene 48 49  
Peter Riley 50  
Alvin H. Walker 51 52 53  
Hiram F. Smith 54  
Abner W. Lamp 55  
Edmund Day 57 58  
Orson Stiles 61 62 65  
Henry B. Benjamin 63 64  
Horace White 66  
Geo. S. Hinckley 67 68  
John P. Hale 69  
Franklin Bennett 70 71 72 74  
Hermanus C. Clark 73

## Poland

James Russell, Nathl. Foster 33  
Samuel Allis 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41  
John Allis 3 [42 46 64]  
W. W. Chandler 43 44  
Henry N. Hint 45 54 55  
David Tucke, 47  
Daniel Parker 48  
Primer Ward Ward 49 50 57 58  
Elakim Conroy 51 52  
Abelard A. Smith 53  
Gabertha M. Winters 56  
Mrs. J. Galowen 59 60 61 62 63  
Daniel Giswold 65 66 67 68 69 68  
Harry S. Elkins 69 70 71 72  
John E. Ottaway 73 74  
Josiah H. Monroe 73 74

## Portแลนด์

J. Pennington, 1814,  
David Eaton 1815 - 1816, 17 33 34 35  
J. B. Campbell 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26  
Eliza Birdsell 27 28 29 31 32  
Stephen Hatch 30 33  
Asa Underwood 36 40  
J. Judson 37 38 39 40 42 43 46 47 49  
John R. Conroy 44 45 51 L 52 53 54  
Ebonyn Harris 48  
Asa Blood 50  
Charles A. Marsh 51  
Darwin L. Gorham 56 58  
R. D. Fulller 57  
Horace C. Taylor 59 61 62  
Landon Taylor 60  
Albert Haywood 63 64  
Joseph B. Fay 65 66  
Alfred Eaton 69 68  
Joseph E. Harris 69  
Norton S. Mon 70 71 72 73 74

P. G. Ellsworth Ripley where  
her two sons Dickey

Ada Spear, Ripley many years  
- Justice Moore Pugh Ch. is - kept  
them there

Bertram Buckner -

John Dickson on upper farm of Buck-  
ner, killed by the fall of a tree

Robt. Dickson, the farm where  
smallwood lived - had a large fam-  
ily, all dead

Mr. Jackson, or off Rockwood Street  
Allen Jackson lives -

Athene Bell and J. Thompson  
Judge Englehardt came

Jeremiah Marvin

Tom Parker & Allen Parker on lower  
line ady. Ripley - Caleb Green -  
a son of T. Green still preserves  
the business - now resides in Shun-  
Tah came about 1820 or 1817

James Pratt (in village) -

Sickner

Cafe Store

Ezra Sheldon Wall Street

Tichenor Sheldon

Harmon

Adams Height

Daniel Leesburg

Lucius Leesburg

Irene Taylor State Line

Mrs. Crossgrove Ripley

Elvin Loomis, Ripley

Ez. Chas Young Lakeview

Geo Grondichs Ripley

Looswicks

Amos Fletcher village 054

.31570201

92 02

202 555 785

118 57125 77255

118 464 51

118 157125 5857225

901198 155 17.007

021 052 047

91628 052 057

71228 555 52

08 5 11.001

068 022 054

735 787 87455

051 525 15

817206 47288 47222

55 585 505

917206 47288 47222

0181 4848 99

40 48 48

181 48 48

181 48 48

181 48 48

B Brokaw & Lynn Cr March 1, 1967  
Lois Anna Brokaw Cr Jan 9, 1972

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

The lesser difficulty in ascertaining the dates of the settlement of the settle early settlers  
~~in~~<sup>settling</sup> towns is the same in this town  
as in other towns in the county.

Respecting the dates of the settlement of  
the different settlers. see Town of Arkwright,  
p xxx.

Mr. Brown gives the names of 8 persons  
who took contracts <sup>falling</sup> at the Land Office  
for lands in t. 1 on Aug 15, in 1812, though  
some of them, as probably, have become  
settlers.

Perry Blass  
Blass  
oni.

COPYRIGHT © 2012 BY THE HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Senator Fenton  
 R. P. Marvin  
 A. T. Allen  
 Sam'l A. Brown  
 James Hall  
 Wm H. Few  
 Henry Baker  
 A. Haylett  
 John C. Hall  
 Solomon Jones

Traveller  
 Tontow & Fennem  
 au Wandur  
 mandrang handel  
 man wandur

Euro Hall

Sons Farnes May 14, 1889

28.559	35.531
5.500	22.000
6.895	6.632
6.895	6.632
6.895	6.632
22	
28.559	6.632

COPIED BY CHARTER  
 UNIVERSITY HISTORICAL SOCIETY  
 WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Joseph Peabody's  
Book Collection  
1850

Albany  
Book Company Name to follow

at Albany 1770

Aug 27/29 New York, Wm. F. D.

(F. L. G. August). Received in/Books

A few records of National Library in  
New York from Aug 20 1852

Copyright © RUTAQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012



Then

## Measurements

Between Pier & Footer land on the South side of the Rail Road (Derby Land) is 154 feet - width Derby land on South side of Rail road is 154 feet

on the line between me and Derby from the north side of the Rail road along back line up to WB Curtis line is 386 ft.

Spring Reserve lots measure as follows

South on Rail Road 158 feet West on Derby line 150

North on Berlin's line 15 $\frac{1}{2}$  on Center Street 164 feet

About 5 lots full & lots in 1/2s

CONTRIBUTED BY  
CHARLES QUAY COUNTY  
HISTORICAL SOCIETY  
WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Measurements  
about Spring  
near Johnston  
Duty line  
1866

E

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY, WESTFIELD, NY 2012

88	Wet land
50	Soil very wet
82	Soil very wet
21	Soil very wet
63	Soil very wet
10	Soil very wet
25	Soil very wet
60	Soil very wet

In another particular, they it is hoped, they  
will be more than satisfied. Although no definite  
sum more  $\frac{18}{45}$   $\frac{100}{45}$

In respect to its establishment they will be more  
than satisfied. No definite number was promised than  
no definite number of portraits was promised. It  
was hoped however, that fifty might be obtained.  
Instead of 50, while, it was hoped might be obtained,  
upwards of 100. The publice are presented with  
one hundred and  $\frac{55}{60}$ , the aggregate  
of this number are engraved on steel.

The aggregate cost and  
aggregate cost of which is upwards of \$7000!

sc	$\frac{55}{60}$
45	
105	$\frac{3300}{225}$
225	
45	
4725	
3300	
8025	

COPYRIGHT  
CHAMBERS COUNTY  
HISTORICAL SOCIETY

WESTFIELD, NY 2012

That there was a war between this country and Great Britain, familiarly termed "the war of 1812," the origin in which it was declared, and every reader probably knows. But there are probably few who among, especially among the younger class of our citizens who do not know the causes of that war, ~~and the extent to which the~~  
~~early settlers participated in it, nor yet its~~  
~~effects upon the establishment of~~  
nor of its effects upon the early settlers of this country.

FIELD, NY 2012

Moundbuilders -

\* \* \* Evidence of ancient occupancy by ancient people.

Skeletons of the Indian Tribes  
the Erie & Iroquois  
and corn Man

Fresh Villages in Canada &  
and in U.S.

Possibly before of Jesuit  
Cologny a town in the Iroquois  
of western N.Y.

French War and Building of Fort  
Perhaps Roanoke and auto de  
in the Am Restoration

(at Fort) is evidence of the  
Allegany River against the French  
& Native Indians - and their  
invaders against Canada -

Washington and Gen. Lee -  
invaders to the west of the  
Confederate

Starting in <sup>southern</sup> Ohio Creek  
according

From the Pennsylvania line of Clear Co

25	53 M	128
125	159.00	(128)
	125	36.400
	34.0	1.6
	25.0	5.0
31	9.00	5.40
	9.00	
4/12.8	total	
	32	
Fare to Del. Williams	65	
" " C. G. C. & W.	67	
Postage	5.0	
Fare to Frankfort	2.14	
Paper at Fred.	20	
Fare to the S. Ch.	17	
Postage	40	
Edg. at S. C.	3	
	1.00	
	3.94	

DOUGA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY LIBRARY  
WESTFIELD, OHIO  
Digitized by Google - April 2012

were slight impediments to the completion of  
carrying out the work of and responsible  
of this the enterprise; and he is not without  
hope the

No intelligent persons will fail to see the advantage  
of publishing a work of this character, and the circulation  
~~it would be increased~~

The security of that concern the importance  
of publishing complete sets of copies without a book  
subscription list ~~is necessary sufficient to justify the~~  
~~for the expense of its publication to determine~~  
the number of copies.

For reasons which need not be mentioned, the  
convenience for subscribers has been developed,  
until with the work has is believed to have approach-  
ed. It recently approached its completion,  
and on a further acting to the <sup>Highway</sup> ~~governor~~  
is about to commence, and will be prosecuted  
with energy to

from time to time postponed, but can no longer  
be deferred. The concern is about to commence  
and will be prosecuted to it is hoped

commencement will <sup>soon</sup> ~~commence from~~ ~~sober~~ ~~of~~  
the work labor; and it is hoped they will  
go well with a credit reception. Every intel-  
ligent person would much like to be told, that in  
opinion this enterprise is not only a great, but  
a glorious one. Rarely, if ever has at least  
worth, the sole of which is ~~confine~~ circumscribed  
by the bounds of a single county, paid the expense  
of its publication; and the ~~highway~~ ~~governor~~ in  
little gr. etc. if the number of copies were

not previously ascertained. The condition  
should be ~~highway~~ ~~of~~ Cr. Co., for their general interest  
light, enterprise, and liberality, ~~in~~ ~~and~~ ~~and~~ ~~and~~ ~~and~~ ~~and~~

This party sprang up rapidly until it reached every State in the Union; and it embraced many of our most patriotic and ~~best~~ citizens. They believed, saw what did, making even of their opponents frankly admitted, that evils, greater ~~than~~ these, had resulted from the facilities afforded ~~for~~ ~~the~~ ~~slaves~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~United~~ ~~States~~ ~~in~~ ~~becoming~~ ~~invited~~ ~~guests~~ ~~to~~ ~~all~~ ~~the~~ ~~privileges~~ ~~of~~ ~~citizenship~~. ~~and~~ ~~had~~ ~~been~~ ~~so~~ ~~great~~ ~~as~~ ~~to~~ ~~warrant~~ ~~the~~ ~~thought~~ ~~proper~~ ~~to~~ ~~alarm~~ ~~the~~ ~~country~~ ~~by~~ ~~the~~ ~~fact~~, ~~that~~ ~~this~~ ~~issue~~ ~~had~~ ~~been~~ ~~left~~ ~~to~~ ~~the~~ ~~people~~ ~~of~~ ~~this~~ ~~country~~ ~~to~~ ~~solve~~ ~~at~~ ~~the~~ ~~election~~ ~~of~~ ~~1854~~, ~~a~~ ~~member~~ ~~both~~ ~~houses~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~new~~ ~~congress~~ ~~was~~ ~~to~~ ~~be~~ ~~elected~~ ~~in~~ ~~this~~ ~~Congressional~~ ~~district~~, ~~but~~ ~~that~~ ~~he~~ ~~should~~ ~~not~~ ~~be~~ ~~able~~ ~~to~~ ~~do~~ ~~so~~ ~~unless~~ ~~he~~ ~~had~~ ~~been~~ ~~selected~~ ~~by~~ ~~the~~ ~~people~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~district~~. ~~This~~ ~~issue~~ ~~involved~~ ~~one~~ ~~consideration~~ ~~but~~ ~~one~~, ~~which~~ ~~he~~ ~~had~~ ~~as~~ ~~his~~ ~~duty~~ ~~to~~ ~~stand~~ ~~by~~. ~~He~~ ~~had~~ ~~done~~ ~~his~~ ~~duty~~ ~~in~~ ~~the~~ ~~highest~~ ~~degree~~, ~~but~~ ~~had~~ ~~done~~ ~~nothing~~ ~~more~~ ~~than~~ ~~to~~ ~~express~~ ~~the~~ ~~opinion~~ ~~of~~ ~~such~~ ~~a~~ ~~man~~, ~~and~~ ~~the~~ ~~U.~~ ~~S.~~ ~~government~~ ~~had~~ ~~done~~ ~~nothing~~ ~~to~~ ~~support~~ ~~or~~ ~~reward~~ ~~such~~ ~~a~~ ~~man~~, ~~nor~~ ~~had~~ ~~any~~ ~~man~~ ~~done~~ ~~anything~~ ~~with~~

Lake Shore and Michigan Southern Railway

Cleveland, O.

187

C. P. Leland  
Auditor

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY  
WESTFIELD, NY 2022

Cephas R. Leland

Born in Chester VT in 1807

Came to Irving (then Acasco or Salamanca)  
from Lodi (Gorham) in 1833

Removed to Milwaukee Wis Aug 1850  
& died there one month later (Sep 8 1850)  
at the age of 43. (Over)

Ostiles Esq or W. H. Hawkins  
Esq can either write a good  
sketch about OR Island

COPYRIGHT VAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012



~~This is a sketch~~  
The settlement was  
commenced on lot 31 in the  
beginning of autumn  
in 1804 by Mr. & Mrs. Jones  
down rock hill from Mendon  
ville. — They followed  
the river bank & planted  
what land they could  
in corn & vegetables.  
A few months latter  
he built a shanty  
on land now owned  
by John Dudley & in  
1805 he erected

~~These are who would~~  
~~one who would have~~  
the m. as their home  
is in the country  
and the people give  
respect. — We

although much eat  
up by the stream is  
very productive & grapes  
& prunes are all found  
in great profusion in the  
winter season.

Some to 14 Spring 1851 Concord \$600

Mr H Sivis Mr H Dewey 13, 14, 5, 29 & 30 front  
occupied by Dras. Lovell Foster & Horace by Samuel Enfield  
West by lots of Sherriff, N by Foster & Walker E by Merrill

Some to

Eliza Merley 14 May 1851 \$133 1/2 18043488  
in allotment D now occupied by brother of 12<sup>th</sup> part

Some to

Albert & Peter Jr 28 June 1851 Concord \$60

Lot 78 & East 1/2 of 79 allotment D N by small hill  
E by Freedom St south by lots 52 & 53 North by  
W 1/2 of lot 79 formerly contracted to G. M. Price

Some to

Mr & Mrs Abner Abbott & Son March 22 1852

Concord \$5200 land in Poland N 1/2 east 200 feet.

Lot 26 2<sup>nd</sup> town 10<sup>th</sup> R

Some to

William Bond \$200 19<sup>th</sup> Aug 1851

Common & New Church 1<sup>st</sup> part 310 feet width  
of land contracted to Peleg Brown, 1<sup>st</sup> lot 29, bounded with  
Church st 240 feet to a point on line with back end  
of Peleg's lot hence extending on said line 100 feet to a point  
hence north by <sup>parallel</sup> to west line 240 feet W 1/2 part w. Church st  
hence east under it to beginning some land formerly  
contracted to Peleg P. Bond

Some to

Albert Jones March 1 1852 Concord \$1200 Lot 16 East  
part main Rd 1/2 by West side lot West Pottersville East by  
line cleared to forest affording lot in white stone fence  
was recently burned

- 83 Took to Sept 10 1839 \$75 in B  
186 Robert Marion Water lot 2 & 11 in B  
division line N 16° West 60 Links to R  
SE corner of barn owned by L D Peete from  
Thruas 270 30' running west along the East side of  
said barn 241 Links Thruas North 43° 30' West  
along the division fence to a point on the N side of  
Lot 12 Barn side of road running West along the  
South side of road that to NE corner Lot 1 thru  
Guthrie along East line Lot 1 to church in corner of  
same to
- 87 594 Second a due to Hart 11 Aug 1857 \$120  
42, 111 East side cut back in E line is  
contracted to Dr Hatt N by contract No 1, lot 40 2<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>  
Boston Lot 412 = 44 1<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> by lot 446 Two corners less  
none or less
- 88 106 Same to  
Bradford Berlin 22 Sept 1859 \$150 -  
86 86 1<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> 88 88 1<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> E Eby land lot 18 Peete  
by lot 90 & 90 1<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> before due to Hatt N  
by reason that N by lots 86 88 1<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> deeded to Cole  
none or less
- 88 Same to  
297 John T Miller 22 Sept 1859 \$200 Copy at home  
Same to Same as on file at home
- 93 Atkin & Giv R  
89 Henry St Pletner 11 May 1858 \$99 E
- 392 3 parts lots 14 & 16 W by Cates 11 - 110 ft all by

- 67 524  
 Som to  
Henry Cook 5th July, 1847 Con \$150  
\$7,60,7172 in 2 years monthly
- 66  
 Som to  
Amos & Forrest Sept 2 1852 Con \$8 E  
 Lot 40 & 40 $\frac{1}{2}$  in E. Orient by center St running  
 Som to } 11 March 1856 \$2700  
Rufus Jones } south west corner lot 10 & main St.  
 North side 30 feet on main 25 feet to other  
 corner with 30 feet 49 1/2 inches &c
- 77 266  
 Som to <sup>COPYRIGHT CHATHAM COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY</sup>  
Sally Crone } April 1- 1856 con \$150  
 46, 46 $\frac{1}{2}$  more or less E running  
 by center St running by lots 44 & 44 $\frac{1}{2}$  centerly,  
 Lots 87 $\frac{1}{2}$  E
- 86  
 Som 10 - May 1854 \$100  
 153 Home of Mr. John Parker, Mrs. Parker, Mr. Parker, Josy about  
 Hudson & Lot 29 in E. N by Chandles 11  
 17 feet E by lot 29 owned by Mr. Prendergast  
 but front by 70 feet, 2 in street about 121 feet  
 more or less
- 80 410  
 Som Harry Simmons 1st Feb, 1858 \$100 n/pd  
 76 & 77 W by Hudson St N by dominant St  
 Some lots formerly ex. leased to Mr. Price  
 more or less
- Som John & Parker 1st March 1842 \$150  
 Ruth W Arnold " owned by last, John, & Company  
 South in highway  
 estimate 1/4 acre land

60  
45

Wrote to } 4<sup>th</sup> Nov 1850 \$225  
Henry Orshader } 19<sup>th</sup> Dec 1852 part of lot 32 52

Done to ~~13<sup>th</sup> Ruge E 1/2 of land~~ Cen.  
Done to ~~13<sup>th</sup> Ruge E 1/2 of land~~ Cen.  
Done to ~~13<sup>th</sup> Ruge E 1/2 of land~~ Cen.

Done to ~~13<sup>th</sup> Ruge E 1/2 of land~~ Cen.

Done to ~~13<sup>th</sup> Ruge E 1/2 of land~~ Cen.

Done to

Russell Smith 5<sup>th</sup> Jan 1851 \$200

Lot 47, 48, 83 & 84 about D

Just by High St & W. 1/2 of the rest, i.e., Henry Orshader  
East by lots 49 & 92 D

Done to

Kenny Brothers 20<sup>th</sup> Feb. 1852 am \$360

33 3/4 x 35. 96 1/2 yds in all about E bound  
Worthy Chas & Co. 150 feet Worthy by late contractor  
to Peleg Standish to John Friend

Also a strip of land 100 feet wide extending N.W.  
by & running south along Foster line to outlet  
about 2<sup>10</sup>/<sub>200</sub> acres reserving privilege use water &

Done to

Nancy Cole } 2<sup>nd</sup> Nov 1852 Centred \$75

more or less Worthy Foster now clear  
to fence should have a/c.

Done to

Charles H. Lewis } 11<sup>th</sup> Nov 1852 \$100

lot 56 & 57 in D

S by High St 17 1/2 yds 57-ctd H.A.Pm N by 74 1/2 yds

E by 58 ctd to W.D. in more or less

Done to

John B. Foster 2<sup>nd</sup> Jan 1852 \$120

Done copy of the bill drawn at time

The State Register says the first settlement in Clarksville was made in the N. w. part of the town in 1807, by Abram J. Colton, Benj. Penny and Augustus Burnham from the east part of the State. Their lands, however, were not settled later. Aaron Miller, ~~was~~ in 1809 and Nathan Eaton in 1810, ~~had~~<sup>is said to have</sup> settled in 1809 and N. Eaton in ~~1809~~, set the 1810, though their articles are both dated in 1809. And L. Johnson and Benj. Spagnu settled near the center in 1811. Johnson and B. Spagnu bought first acre in the new part of the town, but afterwards, probably in 1811, settled at near the center.

Stevens was from Co. was an associate County judge; had no children, and died in 1887. His widow (second wife) resides on the farm. Agnes L. Eaton Miller - had 5 sons: Dan, for yrs supervisor & member of assembly, died son H. Carson who died. Mrs. Agnes, son, Mrs. Harry. Other son Harry who res. at Leona and Harry a brother in Mt. Pleasant, (as above) & A. Eaton - a daughter in Askele Barnham, and residence where son as above resides at Saunerville, and Es another son Eaton resides in town.

Benj. Perry, was a Lt. in the war of 1812, afterwards Col. of the Militia.  
Died Jan. of his 3 son, Rev. W. lives in Ripley. Simon Clinton, settled at the center  
in about 1813. Was killed by lightning about 12 yrs ago. A daughter, Mr.  
James, wife, <sup>wife of</sup> Mrs. Perry, lives in this town. Had 3 daughters, two at a birth - one of  
5 daughters, the last three ~~born~~<sup>now</sup> of triplets, only lived, Milton Cole,  
~~she~~ (not all daughters)  
\* was many years Town Clerk, and a surveyor. (was from Orls.)

Robt. Corotan owned by one and was settled in 1812; a son Lewis lives at Harbor Ch., Pa. living on the homestead.

Moses Tucker, <sup>father of</sup> Allen Charney, a lawyer of Fredonia attorney at Buffalo,  
is dead.

Sand Sanders early settled on lot 56 (not first purchase) Had no sons: 6 daughters  
One, Lois Ann, wif of Marcus Parsons; Marritt wif of Elias Wallison, of Dunkirk; Caroline  
Unknown; Jane unknown. A marritt wif of Long County Baldwin. Hope unknown.

\*. Edson I. Wiley son of Mrs.

~~John~~ Baldwin settled here

was supervisor ~~of~~ years, justice of the peace Boston town office.

- Ch.: 1. Oliver T. resides on the ~~the~~ <sup>north</sup> side of San Francisco, Clerk successively in Customhouse and the office of Wells Fargo & Co. ~~and~~ Express. 2 L. Country, reside in Lake Co. It has been superior and just in the price.
  - 3. O'Neill D., suggest Frobomia, son of Captain Dowley.

The first child born in town was Horatio W. Johnson May 11, 1811  
The first marriage <sup>it is said</sup> was that of Asahel Brinham and Lucia Eaton, May 11, 1815. \* The first death, that of Christopher Brinham.

A school was taught by Horace in the winter of 1812, probably the first taught in town) and the same school by Parthenia Baldwin in the summer of 1812

The first inn was kept by Simon Clinton in 1817 a little n. of the grog-  
center, subsequently by Bartholomew (post office) both discontinued. Tom's inn  
and Ashwicks post office are about 2 m. S.E. of the former.

The first saw-mill was built in 1818, so says Gazette, by Benj. Perry & A. Ordway  
an associate in the N.W. part of town, on a small branch of the Canadaway,  
near the town line on Ordway's land. A saw-mill and oil formerly owned by  
Andrus M. Hough, perhaps built by him, was in the on Walcott Creek. Subsequently  
since more a saw-mill has been kept in operation by Edward B. Houghly. Two other  
~~in operation since~~ are supposed to be running part of the time. Asahel Brinham  
only built a mill on the E. bank of C. Creek. S. pt. of town. A mill is still run there by  
Thayer - Half a mile above, another built by S. A. Stoddard 2 m. above, ~~now~~  
discontinued. A mill was also built by John White south of the center, ~~now~~  
no longer in use.

A steam saw-mill built by Warren Scow at the Center <sup>old</sup> 5 or 6 years ago  
removed by him the first year ~~and~~ a few rods down the stream; and  
rebuilt.

Ezra Scott built a steam saw-mill 3 or 4 years ago by Ezra Scott and  
is still in operation.

Copyright  
WESLEYAN HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

1812 Apr 18 Amos Parker	45	1811 Sept 15 Alex Finley	52
" " Russell Carr	39	1812 Nov 26 Artemas Black (Sub. Rads. iron steel)	40
" 21 Alanson Root	46	1815 Oct 31 Alex Finley	52
" 27 Andy Hobbs	44	1816 Mar 16 Gen Haskell	58
" May 6 Abm Pier	38	" Apr 19 Benj E. Stevens	60
July 10 Fredk Root	39	" " do	59
Aug 7 Alonzo Barney	45	" May 11 Nathan Thompson	50
Andy Hobbs	45	" " do	49
1815 Feb 14	37	" Sep 10 Elijah Drury	60
July 26 Daniel Fairbank	55	1816 Oct 16 Roger Haskell	59
" Oct 6 Geo Blascoll	45	1817 Nov 7 Jona. Duran	57
" Nov 4 do	46	1818 Aug 18 Walcott Brack	25
1816 Feb 5 Almon Jones	64	" Oct 16 Abram Whitney	59
" " Jonathan Springer	64	1819 Feb 3 Paul Gates	33
" " Francis Smith	58	" Nov 1 Davidaldo	53
" " " Nath'l Thompson	31	1821 May 15 Lee Collins	45
" " " Gordon Charles	31	" Oct 29 " do	47
" " " Paul Gilbert	52	1822 June 11 Orlando Barker	46
" " " Elijah Drury	56	" July 1 Dolphus Babcock	37
" " " Hubbard	46	" Sep 17 Will Rowley	37
" " " Parker	46	" Nov 23 John McCamy	21
" " " Aug. Boller	53	1821 Oct 26 John Van Natta	57
" " " Thompson	51		
1817 Apr 17	39	1821 Oct 26 Abram Wicklow	57
1817 May 5 Gordon Charles	39	" Nov 1 Amos Jones	62
" " " John Skinner	47	1823 Jul. 3 Ebenezer Norster	64
		" Oct 6 Benj Bone	5, 13
1817 June 30 East Inglesby	39	" " " John Bartlett	13
1818 Feb 12 Dennis Stuckwell from	59	" Aug 23 John G. Aver	38
" " " sub-marts		" Sept 12 James Otway	14
1818 May		" Sept 22 Gordon Miller	20
" Dec 16 Silas M. Hafford	38	" " " Christopher Hudson	38
1819 May 17 Willard Gates	40	" " " 29 Wm. Troy	31
1820 Sep 10 Gen Thompson	3	" Oct 1 Silas Hazen Jr.	23
" " " George Adams	43	" " " 6 John Bartlett	5, 13
" Oct 16 Aug. Boller	27	" " " 11 Geo Adams	12
1821 Oct 26 Benj Whitney	54	" " " 12 Ebediah Palmer	12, 19
1823 Jul 3 John Morrison	56	" June 21 Peter Leppin	60
1821 Nov 1 Joseph Paul	53	" Oct 24 Peter Sullivan	34
" Oct 26 Francis W. Colborn	3	" " " 30 Horace Brewster	44
1823 Sep 20 Aug Boller	35	" Nov 6 Joseph Palmer	11
" Oct 4 Wm. Olsson	32	" " " Ebenezer Palmer	12
1821 Nov 1 Wm. Thompson	8	" " " 11 John Barnes	20
1823 Nov 27 Truman Terry	2	" Oct 30 Horace Brewster	44
1821 Nov 1 Silas Terry	2	" Dec 1 Silas Hazen Jr.	23
[See Graves & Cleveland 2 - 15 next p.]		1824 Jan 27 Cullen Barnes	20
		" Feb 2 Beriah Whitmore	14

1824 Oct 19	David Curtis	16	1821 Nov 1	Abijah Benson	28
Dec 6	Slyther Dennis	4	"	" Nathan Leach	44
1825 Mar 2	Jam'l French	11	1824 Mar 20	John Hayes	29
3	Nath'l Thompson	3	"	26 Sam'l Ellithorpe	28
Apr 20	Harvey Kellogg	13	"	27 Elisha Morse	39
Nov 16	Enos Collier	33	"	" Nathan Morse	45
24	Obadiah Whitmore	8	1823 Apr 20	Elias Duncan	35
Dec 6	Daniel Alwood	11	1824 " 22	Pish' Konyon	6
(P)	17 Leonard Greeley	2	Mar 27	James Applebee	45
1826 Feb 17	Aaron Belding	(?) 24	Apr 19	Ezra Bishop	26
25	Elisha Freeman	24	"	Ebont' F. Bishop	26
Mar 9	Clark Wilson Jr	23	May 8	Jacob Eaton Jr	43
16	Loren Helme	40	"	" James Howell	36
Apr 20	Harvey Kellogg	14	"	John Rowley Jr	36
May 30	Granger C. Greenleaf	14	"	22 Daniel Parsons Jr	
June 12	James & Carrick	32	"	Wm Chamberlin	2
Aug 19	Lyman Oaks	16	"	" Wm Knobell	10
Sept 30	Calvin Button	16	"	John Acre	22
Oct 3	Abel Allom	7, 15	"	Jacob Tully	70
Dec 11	Warren Holmes	48	"	27 Alfred Hobson	11
1827 Feb 19	Gaius H. Rice	27	June 2	Isiah Morse	61
24	Benj F. & Pidge	23	"	Elijah Heydon	33
Apr 3	Wm Hooker	13, 15, 22	"	19 Chas J. Bailey	7
June 27	as	31	"	21 Ebont' Whitney Jr	8
"	Wm Hooker Jr	39	"	28 July 19 Wm O. Grimes	32
"	Wm Pidge	14	"	" Aug 25 Gordon Cleveland	4
1825 Mar 28	Wm Craig Jr	22	July 3	Foster M. Petdoore	11
31	Nicholas Lakin	14	Aug 23	Ed. Chambers	14
Oct 6	Sylvester King	7	Sept 4	Paul of Gates	43
"	Sylvester Curtis	13	"	Scarl. Gott	18
16	Benj R. L. 60	52	"	4-21 Robt Corbett	3
27	Nath'l Heacock	7	Oct 13	Elias Puffer	9
May 17	Adonijah Reed	22	"	" James Nichols	3
"	Lyman Oaks	27	"	23 Francis B. Bucklin	
20	Josiah R. Reed	3	"	" Ira H. Blundell	15
21	Zena Rockard	28	1823 May 29 Benj Hazen	Want	30
July 5	Nath'l Titus Jr	15	"	and Isaac "	21
Aug 15	Timothy Newton	60	1824 Nov 1	Nath'l Titus Jr	30
26	Theodore Nims	8	"	" Mild Mengin	15
Sept 2	David & Darling	7	" Nov 22	John Van Flader	18
Oct 1	Wm Knowlton	9	Dec 28	"	58
5	Nath'l Thompson	6	1825 Dec		
12	Hugh Finley	42	Feb 9	Frederick Whitmore	2
24	Eaton Bailey	16	"	26 John Wood	22
29	Oliver B. Bliss	56	Mar 2	Gideon Lowell	58
Dec 16	+ Henry Bliss	4	"	22 Seth McCarrus	13
27	Aria Maddux	19			
29	Eli White	62			
29	West Barber	47			

Burns - Son

Ch. Dazl m. ~~Elizabeth~~ (supposed to be Madeline) Spradlin  
Elizabeth m. Capt. Schles died in Iowa (?)  
Typhona m. John Griffith came 1866  
~~Thomas~~ Thomas m. Atkins  
Charles m. Lettie Boyd  
m Daniel Wagstaff  
James m. Typhona Boyd

Thomas settled East side Loken - had  
7 daus. & 2 sons

Charles had several & org (C.) children  
Gasons - one in Mart. P.

James at Burns Point now.

James Prouty went soldier at Janesville  
Mar. 1836, and remained to Ripley  
on Acre. T. born Feb 3. 1809  
in May, Norton (See other page)  
Took up land where his son lies.

Thomas P. had 2 ch. Stephen m. Almonia  
dau of Henry Abel. Stephen succeeded to the  
homestead and continued to reside on a part of it  
farm until his death in Jan 31, 1852 aged 59  
b. Jan 23, 1793 Mrs. P. Jan 18, 1796

Ch. Thomas Maurice b. Jan 27, 1817  
Henry m. Emma Farnell of Ut  
Ch. Mary m. Paymar in dies in Northfield  
from M. m. Emma Holmes of Northfield  
Rev. T.

Henry d. Oct 31, 1821 in May Sust.  
Ch. Elizabeth who die m. Geo Mr. G.  
died 11th Oct. 1873

Stephen Sept 5<sup>COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WEFIELD NY</sup> 1824 m. Caroline A. d.  
Absolute of Northfield. died May 3, 1871  
left a daughter Mary d.

John J. Oct 8, 1831 m. Fanny E. C.  
Ch. Clara Frank A.  
Thomas R.

J. Raymond a graduate of Ithaca College, he was  
for 15 years a son in Dury's family, a member  
of Assembly in 1853, 1857 and in 1860<sup>1/2</sup>. In the last  
year he was Paymaster of the 1<sup>st</sup> Brigade; was  
taken sick in Tonawanda, and was advised by Dr. C. L.  
to return home. He succeeded in reaching his home,  
but died a few days after his return at 45.

EGT. to my self to my self more  
1/3 day from now to now

June 1805. Mr. Pendleton started from  
Pittsburgh with his 4 sons & 5 daughters  
to with a view to settlement in Tennessee.  
With Wagons - one or more 11 horses teams.

They went to Pittsburgh - where they purchased  
several flat-boats, and went down  
the river to the Falls of Ohio (Louisville)  
House by Land.

At L. they put their Wagons up  
and went to Tennessee. On account  
of sickness there, they concluded to return  
north, and came to Ripley in the fall  
of 1805.

Family Composition of the Pendletons follows:  
Wm. P. born in Ireland Feb 2. 1727 : died Feb.  
14. 1811 in Mahala City in Kentucky  
Co.

Ch : Mathew Aug. 5. 1765  
Mary born in Wm. Bessons (Brown Point)  
Thomas Sept 14. 1768 d. June 3, 1802  
James Mar 9. 1764 d. Dec 16. 1846  
Jediah May 13. 1760 d. Mar 1. 1848  
Martin Apr 22. 1769 d. June 21. 1835  
Susanna in Oliver Whitehead Aug. 11. 1851  
John T. Apr 13. 1779 d. Dec 11. 1851  
Sarah " "  
Elizabeth " "  
Martha " "  
Minerva in Eliza Marvin

Many had 9 children  
Sustain had 3 "

Thomas lot of land in Tennessee in 1805 (fall)  
(Non- (Father) settled west side of lake Mar. 1806.  
On account of the scarcity of provisions, all  
but Thomas and Wm. Bessons went to Canada  
to winter, and returned (all) so early in spring  
but Jediah the Dr.

James was with them both & 4 sons lived  
with their father - west side of lake  
James & son. went from Canada to Bat. and agreed  
for the land. \$20 - Father and the rest came  
in June from Canada, and settled on the land.  
James & son continued to live with them

family. Landed in the fall of 1806 or winter of 1807, not liking the country.

In Sept. 1809 Mr. Mathew bought about 1000 acres at 2 fm acre. In Sept. 1810, came to settle on the land having had the privilege of the land from his brother Matthew, and lived at his father's until spring of 1811 (see writer short)

15 16 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27  
28 29 30 31 32 33

Thomas settled in Ripley

Matthew settled on W. side of Lake - about 6 m. from Mayville, where owned Stevens' residence. His sons were: Dr. Wm. Prendergast who settled a little further North (5 m. from Mayville) where his son Martin resides.

2 daughters, died and died on his father's homestead - son of Maurice (gr. son of Mathew) also died there - now owned by Stevens, as above stated (in the right of his wife)

3. Stevens (daughter) m. James Brown, reside in Chautauque - both dead.

James - only child of Alex T. who m. Mary A. Norton, daughter of Thomas Norton of Ripley was then many years a justice of the peace. James aged 25 resides in Chautauque.

Judah came about 1811, bought land at Mayville, and went into trade - had a son in Wm. H. M. of Canada, T. T. T. T.

Matthew had 2 daughters: Elizabeth m. Dr. Wm. Prendergast - set. on the west side of lake, 2 Maria m. Roberton Whiteside, east side of lake had 2 ch. Wm. P. now in Mayville; and Martha, lives in Ida.

Lucinda had 3 children (1 d. infant) Martin m. Willard Crafts, removed to the Co.

2 sons m. John & B. D. - last a son John now at Mayville

John T. removed from Park to W. & Brooklyn, where he died.

Mrs. mto Deborah Head - had a son and (now) Mrs. Brown has 2 ch. - 1 son Wm. E. in N. E.

Unknown sister Eliza Brown, lives with her

also leaves four brothers and  
four sisters. <sup>(1/)</sup> Elizur, Chipman,  
Harrison and Horace are  
the brothers. The sisters are  
Mrs John Smallwood, Elija,  
wife of A.W. Young, Mrs. Huff  
and ~~Alexander~~ <sup>CHAUTAUQUA CO.</sup> Lucinda  
~~Norton~~, now living in Warsaw.

Mr. W. was a man  
whose purse was ever open  
to the cry of Charity and  
we may well say, <sup>HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD</sup> he was  
A man of noble principle,  
Honest in thought and deed;  
His work was work of charity  
In the homes of those in need.  
The funeral discourse  
was preached by Rev. Dr.  
Wright of Ripley.

H.

Please omit the names of the  
living brothers and sisters  
and oblige A. Sister.

McKinney - Had a very blue eye. His hair  
a steel mixed grey; opening between the  
corners of collar - under chin  
just made for buttoning up to the top row) kept

Peacock - corner of vest collar under coat

Elish Jones - Cravat ~~beneath~~ - extension of both  
Barts - <sup>MYRIGHT TO THIS AUGUST 2012</sup> so as to show the shoulder - a little  
over it carries

Charles Lott from St. John's Church, Co.  
in 1829 E pl lot 85 Ripley

1818. Jan., Dyer Carver, 20. Feb., <sup>over</sup> Jesse Holley, 5.  
July, Charles Sastow, 5. Oct., <sup>over</sup> Daniel S. Boughton, 33.

1819. February, John Stouse, 29.

1821. October, Nathan G. Jones, 29.

1822. July, Ebenezer Harris, 29. August,  
John Shipley, 3. James McRaken, 6. Robert  
Cochran, 11. <sup>over</sup> Richard Corbin, 5.  
~~1823. March, Wm. T. Howell, 10. May,~~ Matthew McEliv-  
~~ock, 10.~~

1823. Jan., Symon Harrington 16. March, Wm.  
T. Howell, 15. Wm. Sertow, 15. May, John Winchell, 29.  
Matthew Mc Clinton, 10. Charles C. Tupper, 16. Daniel  
L. Andrews, 9.

HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTON

1824. March, Green Brook, N.J. Barnum & Son.  
lot, 20.

Arkwright

Buel's. 1 Sand Garfield, 39

Carroll. 1 Fentons (?) 22, P. Palmetto (?) 35

Chautauquas, 1 Dr Upshaw, 100 J. D. Tracy, 101, 273 Wm Mayhew 105

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Cherry Creek.

Clymer.

Charlotte

Dunkirk, vol. 1

P. 2. Dr. E. Williams

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Ellicott I. Infant School 2. Bennett 11. Strunk 12

Budlong 15 Sol. Jones 19 Rufus Pix 26 28 Mr. Prend' 31

Jewell, 38 William Reed 45 Eddy, 6<sup>3</sup> A Fletcher 64  
H. Baker 66 Lt. Wm. Smith 68

Ellery 1 St. Wm. Smith 25

French Creek

Gerry, T. Dugay Co. 1000 ft. above French Creek

Hanover.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD

Harmony 1. Dr Aldrin, 84 Abner Lewis 85. Carpenter 86  
Pemberton 87 Dr. Eldrikus 108. R. Slayton 109 Stephen Web-  
cot, (?) 111;

Shantone | Ebene Davis 16

Mina | Wm Relf 103 Geo. Relf 106 Findley 107

Poland | Geo. Hills 93 Ottoway 104

Portland I. Judson 6

Pomfret I. A. N. Walker 3. H. Bosworth 4 Hinckley 5  
Mullett 5. 6. Chandler 7. Walworth 8

Chapley

Sheridan

Sherman

Villanova

Westfield 1 Hugh W. Sorrey 53 Dr. Dunning 58.  
J. C. Young 87

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Franktown. Skins mill Vol. 2 p 358

vol. 2

Franktown. Name changed 359

vol 1

R. Orr 26, 28

Elliott(?) Price of hots 358

Price of lumber

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

James Black came from Wayne  
county in this state, when a young man  
some 19 or 20 years old, purchased a  
part of Lot 10 - 5<sup>th</sup> township 11 range, adjoin-  
ing a piece that Mr Scott had taken  
up on the same lot, he also being a  
young man) - built a log cabin in the  
usual pioneer style - bark roof - floor of  
split logs and chimney of sticks, making  
doors of a board that Mr Scott bro't.  
his back two miles, and making some  
other little beginnings. The two young  
men married two sisters, daughters  
of Elder Dibble, and commenced  
housekeeping with forest on every side  
where prowled the bear and the wolf  
and the fleet deer. The bears and wolves  
not very welcome neighbors... commin  
at times, quite too near their little old  
home, that were out to play to be a

to the young mothers idea of proprie-  
tary. It is true that at that time there were not  
very plenty, but Mrs. Black relates the  
fact of their seeing a bear and two cubs  
pass along, one day, near their hut, right  
where their two young children, but a few  
moments before, were at play. These  
were more welcome, as their provision  
furnished on any a good report for  
the table. Like many other pioneers,  
with perseverance and industry they  
soon had and now have good, well-  
cultivated farms, and an abun-  
dance of every thing to make life en-  
joyable. Mr. Black has eight children  
two sons and five daughters. \* Only

1<sup>st</sup> James D. who is married and  
lives on an adjoining farm. 2<sup>nd</sup> Charles  
S. at home with his parents. That the  
very nuclei of the mode of pioneer living  
survived them for sleeping room, kitchen  
and parlor, till they could build better.

Jesse Reed was born in Windsor  
County, Vermont in 1791. At an early  
age he married, and, with his wife,  
came to Chautauqua County in 1814  
and settled on part of Lot 42 in the  
town of Ashville. He with the help  
of a young man he got to help him,  
had to cut their way, for three miles or  
more through the woods to get to  
his place, with his oxen, and goods.  
They hastily provided a place for  
lodging by throwing a few logs together  
~~covered them with basswood log, covered~~  
with basswood log grooved and lapped  
one on to the other, and covering with  
basswood log split and grooved and lapped  
on to each other. That, the very rudest of  
the rude, of pioneer tenements, served  
for sleeping room, kitchen and parlor  
till they could build better. With a  
fire outside, and a few culinary articles  
they managed to live in good, pioneer  
style.

Like other pioneers, they have to contend with wild animals, frequently joining with parties in bear and wolf hunts.

They had two children - Euphemia, who married some years ago and went to Michigan, and Stephen W., who is married and lives on the old homestead of his fathers.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

1805. March, Gerard Beiswold, 35.

1807. Nov., Zettie Cushing, 63; [art. to Uriah L. Johnson]
1809. June, Benjamin Sprague, 56. July, Othello Church, 57. Aug., Augustus Burnham, 60. Edward Mc. Gregor, 62. Sept., Oliver Taylor, 55. Oct., Aaron Wilcox, 56. Nov., Nathan Eaton, 64. Benj. Perry, 64.
1810. Jan., ~~Wm~~ Clough, 32. Wm. Basye, Jr., 28. April, ~~Gibon~~ Richardson, 44. ~~Chancery~~ Roberts, 57. May, Augustus Burnham, 56. ~~Joseph Clark~~, 48 (d.). ~~John Brown~~, 61 (2).
1811. April, John Archbold, 46. May, Isaac Griggs, 55. Elijah Risley, Jr., 63. July, Elijah Warren, 38. Aug., Benj. Bandt, 59. Nov., Daniel Harris, Jr., 54.
1812. March, Robert Cowden, 54. May, ~~Wm~~ Clough, 48.
1814. Oct. Moses Tucker, 62. Nov., Daniel Harris, 53.
1815. May, John Morris, 63. June, ~~James~~ <sup>HISTORICAL SOCIETY OF NEW YORK</sup> Tollock, 35. Sept., Robert W. Beaver, 37. ~~John Bradburn~~, 60. Thomas Anderson, -54:
1816. Feb., Lewis Ward, 59. Abiram Orton, 55. Gooding Lincoln, 50. March, Benjamin Perry, 64. Sept., William Perry, 54. Dec., Thaddeus Brainard, 16.
1817. March, Robert Cowden, 53. April, Tabby Harrington, 39. Ephraim S. Kelsey, 34. May, Abney Lewis, 49. Pardon T. Lewis, 41. Jephiah Lewis, 43. Oliver Hinkley, 58. Jesse Thatcher, 49. June, ~~Lyman~~ Ross, 38. Joel Shepard, 33. July, Benj. Tifford, Jr., 47. Sept., James Skiff, 39. Oct., Ichabod D. Palmer, 41. Nov., Marvin Evans, 41; 42.
1818. March, Silas Matteson, 8. Caleb Sweet, 8. Sept., William Hubbard, 17. Herman Winchell, 5. Oct., Caleb Sweet, 8.
1819. Nov., John Matthews, 57.
1820. May, Simon Smith, 7.
1821. Oct., Albert Avery, 6.

from Franklin P. Mass.

Isaac Shepard lot 33 in 1817 about the same  
amount to Ellenville, where he died about 1850, and where  
his son Washington had settled and still lives.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

6-11

March 1805 - 35<sup>th</sup> Month

Wpt by General Mizner.  
Sept due date to Stephen Bush  
Wpt act to New Lyric

## Catt Village

Sec 1804 Chas Avery Act Lot 3)  
Assigned to Stevens Major 5

Dec 1804 W &amp; Sidney 1, 2, 4, 48 + 71

Reported a house erected on lot 2 & a  
portion cleared - lots 1 & 2 subsequently  
transferred to John Mack

April 1806 Amos Sottle 65 + 69

Aug 1806 Ezekiel Sane } 48 paid + 9 others  
Henry Johnson

Aug 1806 Clarus Dolfen 46

May 1807 Ezra Puffer 58

June 1808 Stevens Major 7

" Bay Kengon 63

" John Mack 64 8

1809 Jeremiah Everett 50

" Amos Ingraham 5

" Symon Fawell 15

" Nathan Cole 44

1810 William &amp; Amos Ingraham 43.

Jan 1811 Wm Avery 11

" Bay Kengon 61

" Foster Young 10

1811 Sept 1811

COPIED BY THE  
WESTFIELD HISTORICAL SOCIETY  
WESTFIELD, NY 2012

## J 3-R10 Ellington

Set.

Aug 1814	Joshua Bentley	16
Apr 1815	" "	
May "	Wynman Brugbee	29
June "	John Love Jr	29
" "	Frederick Love	29
" "	James Battles	23
May "	Joel Whittlestone	31
May "	Hansell Hinney	55
" "	Thos Hinney	55
Sept 11	James Bates	48
Nov "	Frederick Love	29
Apr 1816	Nicholas Thorpe	6
" "	Harry Reddington	28, 29 & 37
" "	Perez Thayer	63
" "	Simon Lawrence	38
" "	Abel Benson	28
July "	Simeon Wakely	38
Sept X	Sennett Chas Chapman	6
Nov "	Simeon Love	37
Oct 1817	Abeen Bates	56
" "	Joel Ward Chas Hatch	64
May 1818	Joshua Bush	32
Apr "	Elizur Bush	29
July "	Oliver Brugbee	23
" X "	Phillips Baker	64
Oct 1818	Benj Follett	40
Dec "	Seth Phillips	40
March 1819	Wm Utley	32
May "	Ebenezer Green Jr	20
Sept "	Nathan Slater	21
Feb 1822	Erros Bush	1
Oct 1821	R Rublee	12
" "	Wm Hunt	15
Sept 1822	Nathan Brown	37
Oct "	Jeremiah West	10
" "	John Beach	10
" "	Jeremiah Hotchkiss	10
Nov "	Izraes & Berndt	1
" "	Asa Wheeler	9
Sept "	David Gots	11
" "	Seymour Saxon	18
Oct "	Geo Clark & Avery Youngton	
Nov "	Geo Gates	19
Sept "	Henry Day	24
Dec "	Gershaw Newton	46
Oct 1821	Warren Mansfield	12
Feb 1823	Zorn Utley	30
" "	Thos Gibbons	9
Oct 1821	Hiram Putnam	4
" "	John Shear	32

Jeremiah Giddens born Feb. 15, 1774  
died April 10, 1843.

Rebecca m<sup>r</sup> Thophilus Wilson, now Forestville  
Oscar deceased died at 49 Daniel C. in Almira  
Stewart Elliott Atwell W. Esther Button  
Horace H.<sup>m</sup> Cornelius Moore, daughter of David  
Moore Solon T. in. Mary Saxton now Mrs.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

1 Docton 25  
Pen Stabing 5  
13m - 50  
Stamp. Ad 50  
Tax & Jamut 2.0

Contable 2.40  
Cont. & Tax 10

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Book Fairing	Home Prod. 418	3.
27	In Fayette 418	
27	Or. J. of Co. 458	
27	Peninsular 152	
27	Widens 103	
24	Catt Road 105	
28	Early Settling 277	
52	midfifl 277	
20	Sixty 700 154	
38 narrow	Commercial 109	
46 open	L. Ervin 3	
38 27	Pooley & Read 187	
25 40	Official Rec 352	
147 20	Rel. History 125	
Household	Policy, 166 553	3461
mount	Art. Eng. 73	
42	Eric Gove 302	
37	Paulson 1661	
44	Eclipse 90	
123	Cold Storage 66	
71	COPRIGHT 245	
52	Chamberlain 46	
1647	Division Rec. 66	
73 = 490	Division Rec. 66	
82	Division Rec. 46	
777 *	Division Rec. 46	
777 * Lambton	Chamblin 69	
2. Martin's	Chamblin 14	
3	Ma C. 345	
8767	Pol. History 461	
	263	
	110	
	114	948
Ag-Society	63	
Early Settlement	313	
Broad Sheets	401	
Mounts	317	
Macmillan	168	
Tomp. Soc.	136	
Pioneer Soc.	49	
Clearing house	49	
Press	49	
Middlemarch	195	
	1375 = 1607	
	558	
2nd 76 16		
Edson 30		
Old Folks 30		
Stat. Rec. 30	136	
	694	
7 11 1255		1315 1607 48
721 14451		6444 1179 507
		72 228
		71 1335 6444 48
		52 688 1320
		1335 888

Arkwright  
 18 15  
 37 19  
 33 20  
 37  
 11  
 21 54  
 28 317  
 44  
 8 371  
 22  
 37  
 21  
 317

Potlach?

44	41	40
24	38	27
24	20	33
22	25	34
24	32	36
26	24	28
37	31	40
29	34	39
28	32	38
32	27	35
15		44
167		31
272		43
510		42
949		510

*Sherman*

28	
37	33
27	24
12	17
15	28
say amount	on order
48	32
9	20
10	20
<hr/>	
698	31
659	29
<hr/>	33
554	15
	22
	<hr/>
	359

*Rifley*

35		
GO Est. lots.	4'2	36
46	32	28
16	22	14
40	26	18
?	32	12
3	15	10
37	39	34
31	16	15
24	35	36
73	22	15
22	9	30
15	21	26
109	31	1
340	340	
265		
010	118	
55		
660		
440		
34		

*Bleichen*

30 fm Dmam  
30 0 0

30	29
27	7
42	22
28	36
23	14
28	25
23	16
34	7
32	28
21	33
26 + 12	9
30	19
25	34
15	40
686	25
364	32
795	369

1.1	1.1
2.	31
18	13
16	21
2.1	22
2.2	27
22	14
22	129
11	2
44	8
21	442

*Finne*

32	11
31	17
17	23
30	14
13	30
32	16
38	8
10	27
11	28
11	31
4	4
12	5
12	5
12	11
15	14
32	16
28	5
12	8
31	25
20	12
200	15
7	2
7	2

*ab initio*

14	36
30	21
9	4
21	115
5	
3	379
1	
43	477
44	23
31	500
	-
7	
40	
28	
12	
564	

PRACTICE

13	32	3-2
32	36	
33	41	
4	33	
40	26	
34	6	
32	24	
29	23	
28	36	
17	14	
20	34	
29	-15	
19	20	
42	11	
39	376	
17	431	
27	801	

Baptist church Edna  
post office block  
Kingston - Blank

Chase Elliott

Hannaway  
Harmonie

21	32	29 P
22	13	10. 46 P
23	29	26
24	29	39
25	34	29
26	23	11
27	21	11
28	36	22
29	227	22
30	319	33
31	5-86	288
32		21
33		346
34		319
35		319
36		319
37		319
38		319
39		319
40		319
41		319
42		319
43		319
44		319
45		319
46		319
47		319
48		319
49		319
50		319
51		319
52		319
53		319
54		319
55		319
56		319
57		319
58		319
59		319
60		319
61		319
62		319
63		319
64		319
65		319
66		319
67		319
68		319
69		319
70		319
71		319
72		319
73		319
74		319
75		319
76		319
77		319
78		319
79		319
80		319
81		319
82		319
83		319
84		319
85		319
86		319
87		319
88		319
89		319
90		319
91		319
92		319
93		319
94		319
95		319
96		319
97		319
98		319
99		319
100		319
101		319
102		319
103		319
104		319
105		319
106		319
107		319
108		319
109		319
110		319
111		319
112		319
113		319
114		319
115		319
116		319
117		319
118		319
119		319
120		319
121		319
122		319
123		319
124		319
125		319
126		319
127		319
128		319
129		319
130		319
131		319
132		319
133		319
134		319
135		319
136		319
137		319
138		319
139		319
140		319
141		319
142		319
143		319
144		319
145		319
146		319
147		319
148		319
149		319
150		319
151		319
152		319
153		319
154		319
155		319
156		319
157		319
158		319
159		319
160		319
161		319
162		319
163		319
164		319
165		319
166		319
167		319
168		319
169		319
170		319
171		319
172		319
173		319
174		319
175		319
176		319
177		319
178		319
179		319
180		319
181		319
182		319
183		319
184		319
185		319
186		319
187		319
188		319
189		319
190		319
191		319
192		319
193		319
194		319
195		319
196		319
197		319
198		319
199		319
200		319
201		319
202		319
203		319
204		319
205		319
206		319
207		319
208		319
209		319
210		319
211		319
212		319
213		319
214		319
215		319
216		319
217		319
218		319
219		319
220		319
221		319
222		319
223		319
224		319
225		319
226		319
227		319
228		319
229		319
230		319
231		319
232		319
233		319
234		319
235		319
236		319
237		319
238		319
239		319
240		319
241		319
242		319
243		319
244		319
245		319
246		319
247		319
248		319
249		319
250		319
251		319
252		319
253		319
254		319
255		319
256		319
257		319
258		319
259		319
260		319
261		319
262		319
263		319
264		319
265		319
266		319
267		319
268		319
269		319
270		319
271		319
272		319
273		319
274		319
275		319
276		319
277		319
278		319
279		319
280		319
281		319
282		319
283		319
284		319
285		319
286		319
287		319
288		319
289		319
290		319
291		319
292		319
293		319
294		319
295		319
296		319
297		319
298		319
299		319
300		319
301		319
302		319
303		319
304		319
305		319
306		319
307		319
308		319
309		319
310		319
311		319
312		319
313		319
314		319
315		319
316		319
317		319
318		319
319		319
320		319
321		319
322		319
323		319
324		319
325		319
326		319
327		319
328		319
329		319
330		319
331		319
332		319
333		319
334		319
335		319
336		319
337		319
338		319
339		319
340		319
341		319
342		319
343		319
344		319
345		319
346		319
347		319
348		319
349		319
350		319
351		319
352		319
353		319
354		319
355		319
356		319
357		319
358		319
359		319
360		319
361		319
362		319
363		319
364		319
365		319
366		319
367		319
368		319
369		319
370		319
371		319
372		319
373		319
374		319
375		319
376		319
377		319
378		319
379		319
380		319
381		319
382		319
383		319
384		319
385		319
386		319
387		319
388		319
389		319
390		319
391		319
392		319
393		319
394		319
395		319
396		319
397		319
398		319
399		319
400		319
401		319
402		319
403		319
404		319
405		319
406		319
407		319
408		319
409		319
410		319
411		319
412		319
413		319
414		319
415		319
416		319
417		319
418		319
419		319
420		319
421		319
422		319
423		319
424		319
425		319
426		319
427		319
428		319
429		319
430		319
431		319
432		319
433		319
434		319
435		319
436		319
437		319
438		319
439		319
440		319
441		319
442		319
443		319
444		319
445		319
446		319
447		319
448		319
449		319
450		319
451		319
452		319
453		319
454		319
455		319
456		319
457		319
458		319
459		319
460		319
461		319
462		319
463		319
464		319
465		319
466		319
467		319
468		319
469		319
470		319
471		319
472		319
473		319
474		319
475		319
476		319
477		319
478		319
479		319
480		319
481		319
482		319
483		319
484		319
485		319
486		319
487		319
488		319
489		319
490		319
491		319
492		319
493		319
494		319
495		319
496		319
497		319
498		319
499		319
500		319
501		319
502		319
503		319
504		319
505		319
506		319
507		319
508		319
509		319
510		319
511		319
512		319
513		319
514		319
5		



~~Panama~~  
1st Congl Church org'd 1830 stood 8<sup>th</sup>  
by Rev Justin Marsh assisted by Rev  
Sam'l Scovard & Rev Isaac Jones all members  
of Buffalo Presbytery. Was reed under  
care of Presby of Buffalo Sept 3<sup>d</sup> 1833-

Original Members Orrin Matthews & wife  
Asael Clark & wife, Margaret Morgan -

Accessions soon followed, viz; Mary Nichols  
Benj & Enice Smith, Emeline M Smith, Dr Stephen Beck  
Dr Cornelius Orme, John H. & Esther Gray - Matilda Chase  
Samantha Dix, See Josiah Holbrook & wife, Esther Gray  
Rehannah Sperry & wife, Mrs Sarah Dix - Reuben Davis & wife  
Noah Harrington & wife -

Occasional Preaching by Rev Mr Stanley  
Rev E J Gillett, S G Aiston & others. 1st stated Minister  
Rev Alfred W Gray - Rev Aaron Van Wormer, Rev Abner  
Childs - Rev A D Vibord, Rev A Worthington, Rev  
Chas Merrim. For many years after organization  
their place of worship was in the Tannery fitted  
up for that purpose, New Church erected in  
1846 - Present No Members 119 - Present Pastor  
Rev C Burgess been such since 1840 -

### Methodists in Panama

A Class <sup>to have been</sup> formed in 1818 at Brockville  
1st Members John Lewis & wife, Daniel  
B Carpenter, Isaac Carpenter & wife  
John Pember & wife, Joseph S Pember  
& Mrs Elijah Terry, 1st Local Preacher  
John Lewis, 1st circuit Preacher John Somerville  
~~affiliated~~ succeeded by Phillip Green -  
1st Methodist Church in Panama was  
dedicated January 1840 -  
H. H. Moore ~~1st~~ Pastor in 1873 -

Fri Day

# Cemetery

Wm. Barnes, died in the town of Elling, 1 acre of land for burial ground. Afterward Matthew P. Barnes ~~and~~ purchased  $\frac{7}{2}$  acres and presented the same ~~to the Legislature~~ and conveyed the same to the Barnes Point County Association. The fence was surrounded by ~~concrete~~ fence the first year; at a cost of \$3,000. Association organized by incorporation to an act of the Legislature. One of the most tastefully buried grounds in the County. Many fine trees in it. Contains many fine monuments. A large portion of the fence ~~is made~~ <sup>is made</sup> of stone posts, and can never decay.

From Charles W. Marshall, at Barnes Point. "Baptist Elling Center, Methodist W. Elling. "Methodist East Elling N.E. part of the town

We suggest also that this is the only opportunity  
of ever obtaining this or any other similar history  
dition except of this, moreover. No supposable  
demand for such a work would <sup>not</sup> half defray  
the expense of the publication, of a new one, nor  
of a reprint.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Alfred Parker was assisted in his plan by only bounded

Dixie Valley - early morning  
on S. side of the farm  
- Andrew Spear, son of John  
B. Spear's brother, Rich?  
Reuben Park, Westfield

—  
first meeting in a small  
green-hung shanty  
Before, in private homes  
Breaking, house built 18

Ripley, March 24, 1873.

One year earlier. Received  
date of payment

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Marie Palmer, a widow of Dutchess Co., N.Y., weighed me 187 to fifty  
and added one 3 min. so. by 2. while  
she was at her residence. She appears fair of person with a very frank and  
honest countenance, though of a few years. Her dress which is done to her  
taste is rather simple to say the least, and last evening I found out  
she demands for the fine old dress she wears and for the action to fit  
a pair of silk stockings and a lace collar and other  
effect to fifty. Being unprepared to pay such a sum, he would not  
the usual and demanded on my appearance man, which always civilly presents  
certain articles. The husband quickly cashed his bill, as  
Marie's father, who died about the same time, had made by himself  
the first young girl's wedding dress, and  
with long collars etc. several days before. About four days  
ago night they were combing in the woods, when they were surprised  
by a woodchopper, who told them about their husband's  
death to pass away.

Being done something were sometimes caught in traps built of logs  
into which they were led by bats through woods and alleys of stone and  
by the darkness of the day after their interview

Marie would say No boy weighing 190 lbs.  
Marie &  
Grand Father is aged 6 years of about 100 lbs. & about 3' 6" ft around only

Erectus Huntley was  
the first Clerk, and  
Geo. Peayjord the  
first Justice,

Murderers were H. C.  
A. Lasee, W. H. Cut-  
ler, D. S. Fowler,  
Joseph Hettie Oliver  
Johnson.

Joseph Hettie  
Prest. Pastor G. H.  
Chappell. Two  
years ago this Ch<sup>t</sup>  
Society built a fine

January 3, 1876 - Herkimer County of Oneida  
New York? The names of

Mr. Gray do n't  
I send you the

Persons & their Organizational  
members

Account of the organ-  
ization of the  
South Herkimer Free  
will Bells, Ch.

Ecclesiastical  
Joseph Carroll  
Aaron Cornish  
Elisha Morgan

The organization  
occurred to Sam. W. Herkheim Tillotson  
Decr. 3, November 3 - Mary Mather  
1855, at a place Sarah Maria Cornish  
called Cherry School. Patients S. Smith  
lived in the town of Catherine Siggins  
Theodore Wellman

COPYRIGHT CHAS A. COOK, AUBURN COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY, WESTFIELD, NY 2011

House of Worship in  
which meetings are  
now held every Lord day

Prest Clark

Charles Bertram

Yours truly

A. L. Sasser

COPYRIGHT CHATHAM COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY 1974

Horace N. Gleason was the son  
of David H. Gleason of Parington  
Ct. Was born in said place  
April 17, 1800. Became a pioneer  
settler of the town of Sheawan  
in Sep. 1824, settled on Lot  
No. 24. Was married to his  
sister Ruth Root of Parington Ct.  
Who born Jan seven children  
Frances Eliza, Horace W. Gustavus  
S., Charles G., Charles C., Sarah  
Isabel, Abby Antoinette.  
All of whom have died except  
Horace W. Who was married to  
Anne White wife of a Path East  
Kenne February 14, 1855, and  
now lives in Mayfield City Miss  
Horace N. Gleason was married  
the second time to Mrs Abigail  
Hill of Union Vt. Dec 3, 1863,  
who bore him two children, the  
name of the first was Sarah  
Antoinette born March 17, 1865 and  
died May 16, 1868. The second

Andrew W Young Westfield

Shubael Morris Warsaw New Y

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD 2012

Was a son whose name  
was Hermon A. Everett Born  
Sep 16, 1866, who is still living.  
Mr. Everett was an active  
energetic citizen. He was a man  
generally known, and of much  
influence. His business in the  
main was that of freighting  
(carrying) about one thousand  
cars of lumber. He also did a  
large amount of public business,  
acted as Magistrate 16 years in  
said town, was very astute in  
drawing all manner of contracts  
for his townsmen and others  
and was remarkably success-  
ful in all his business trans-  
actions. Now a member of  
the Presbyterian Ch<sup>n</sup>g. from its  
organization until the time of  
his death which occurred May 28, 1872.

You will not publish all  
of this of course select out  
what you think best & give us  
Statistics A. soon

A brief sketch of the Free Will  
Baptist Church Organized Dec 4<sup>th</sup>  
1830, meeting held at King's corner  
at the house of Nathaniel Clark  
in the town of Harmony Chancery Co.  
I heard a number tell their  
experience what the Lord had  
done for them, and on the day  
following (being Sabbath) met at  
the house of Samuel Reed. Elder  
Harmon Jenkins preached from  
the words verily, verily I say unto  
you except a man be born of water  
and of the spirit he cannot enter into  
the kingdom of God, then repaired  
to the water and Elder Thomas Grindell  
baptized seventeen candidates.  
after repairing to the house of  
Bro Reed a covenant was entered  
into and Bro Jenkins and Grindell  
organized a church of 23 members

COPIED BY JEFF HUNTER  
HUNTER COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY LIBRARY  
2014

These names as follows. Isaac Phelps  
Timothy Walkley, Polly Walkley.  
David Lucas, Rebbecca Lucas,  
Nathaniel Clark, Merilla Clark  
names of Alexander, Lusina <sup>de</sup> Alexander  
David Clark, Lusina Clark  
Isaac Wait, Polly Wait, Ebenezer  
Phelps, Julia Phelps, Sarah Burnham  
Sarah Reed, Rhoda Keith.

Freeman Williams, Samuel Reed  
Pamelia Baldwin, Phineas Channing  
Berlin Reed, Chamberlain

Isaac Wait Church Clerk  
~~YORK CHAMBERS HISTORICAL LIBRARY~~  
Jan 3<sup>rd</sup> 1833 Bro Aaron Baldwin  
was chosen Clerk Bro T. Grinold  
still preaching to the church, on  
the 4<sup>th</sup> of Jan 1834 Bro David Lucas  
was chosen Deacon of the church  
filling the Office until Sep 4<sup>th</sup> 1837  
when death closed his labors and  
went to reap his reward  
On Jan 28<sup>th</sup> 1837 Bro Eliab H.

which Office he filled untill Oct  
5<sup>th</sup> 1839 when Bro David L. Crosby  
was chosen Clerk Bro P. Grinold  
laboring with the church

Oct 28<sup>th</sup> 1842 Bro David Clark  
was elected Clerk the former  
Clark had taken letters and  
moved away, on July 8<sup>th</sup> 1843  
Bro John D. Shedd was chosen Clerk  
at this time Bro J. Smith preached  
some of the time and occasionally  
Bro Cornish on May the 10<sup>th</sup> 1843  
Bro Eli Wellman was chosen Clerk.  
Served until May 5<sup>th</sup> 1849 when  
Bro H. C. Howard was chosen Clerk  
Served until Sep 5<sup>th</sup> 1855 when Bro  
Abel D. Lucas was chosen Clerk  
June 21<sup>st</sup> 1856 Bro R. J. Bowles was  
hired to fill the appointments of  
the church for the next year and  
continued with the church until  
Feb 28<sup>th</sup> 1859 when Bro P. B. Tanner  
commenced preaching to the church

COPYRIGHT CHATHAM HISTORICAL SOCIETY 2012

he preached one year  
For want of dates we do not  
know the exact time when the  
church was moved south some  
three miles on the town line  
and took the name: Ellynian  
Harmony Church, Elders Abel  
Losee commenced to labor with  
the church March 15<sup>th</sup> 1863 he  
was over the church one year  
March 15<sup>th</sup> 1865 Elder Oliver John  
was chosen pastor of the church  
for the year, after this Bro G.  
Johnson and Bro Ansel Griffett  
preached alternately for the no  
year July 5<sup>th</sup> 1864 Bro Daniel  
Ellis was unanimously voted  
deacon of the church  
March 5<sup>th</sup> 1868 Bro Francis A. C.  
was chosen Clerk,  
March 29<sup>th</sup> 1868 Bro A. Losee was hired  
to preach another year.  
This year the church commenced

You need not take up

to build a house of worship  
and succeeded in building a  
union house (Baptist and Methodist)  
and completed it the same  
year May 22<sup>nd</sup> 1870 Bro Wm

Johnson was hired to preach  
for the year to come, at that  
time Bro Daniel Ellis was chosen  
clerk and is still the present  
clerk Aug 12<sup>th</sup> 1871 Bro Joshua  
Griffin commenced to labor for  
a short time

Bro Joseph Kettle commenced  
his labors with us on April 27<sup>th</sup>  
1872 and was with us two years  
On May 2<sup>nd</sup> 1874 Bro Ansel Griff  
commenced to labor with the  
church and is with us at the  
present time

On account of date this cannot  
be made perfect D. Ellis clerk

for money-making

The 1822 act was an infringement on a in the history of Jamestown - Previous to this no such little village had existed in 1810, nor been of undesignated village in the name of wild land in 1800 and now in a judge's residence of which only 50 or 60 acres had been cleared about his village plot, and the large water power exclusively confined to his possession.

"What would a coming of the Indians have done?" The question remains. In 1800 there were 1000 Indians in the woods and fallen in trees from \$6 a thousand to \$250. - At first it was said to be \$1000 and so it is. A line between Rendopart & the Lake called Rendopart Land, ran from the lake to the wilderness surrounding the village - \$1000 was the amount of relief in 1816, but it was never applied for. It was reserved land & could not be sold for it when it should be in sale he should have it. This money was reserved for 10 years to the end of 1822, when according to the 1822 act it was to be distributed among the Indians. It was never distributed. It obtained by the Indians generally effect of the country, as it is called, because when in 1822 it was discovered that the Indians had been given a great deal of land, in 1822, giving a great deal of land, in 1822, giving a great deal of land, in 1822,

John Mayborn born in England in 1823. emigrated to America. He came with his family to Chaut. Co. in 1847. On which he resided until 1871. His wife died April 24, 1827.

Ch. 1. Wm. A. m. Mary Dilling, settled in Minn 1847 and removed to Chaut. 1½ mi west of Mayville, where he still resides. He has been County Sheriff of Co from for about 25 years. Mrs H., m. Mary Crosson lives in Chaut. 2. Mary J. m. David Dilling, & who died in 1843; and she lives in Chicago. 3. Julia L. m. Richard Dilling m. Charles Kansas. 4 Joseph H. m. Theresa Johnson, now in Keene N.H. 5 Selina E. m. Henry Sheldon. 6 Jas S. m. George T. Sisson, removed to Cinc. where she died after Mr Mayborn married Nov 5 1828. Harriet Palmer of N.Y. city, and had children, who grew to manhood: 1 John K. m. Anna Ottaway of Minn, and who died in Shew. Marion E. m. Maria Parker the second. She died in Shew, married 2d William Parker and resides in Kansas, second during the rebellion. 2 Charles N. m. Sarah Wood, he served in the late war and died of disease contracted in the army. 3 Charlotte, m. John D. Brownlow m. Columbus Pa. 4 John G. m. Hannah Pratt. He died in the army of the rebellion. 5. Harriet m. Wm Chambers, and who died in 18 Jan. 1874. 6 Thomas 37.

HISTORICAL SOCIETY OF CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY

Sparta

Left Isaac E Hawley from Herkimer Co.  
came to Monroe 1832 and remained to 1847 to  
Sherman where he commenced mercantile busi-  
ness, and continued the same till April 1873.  
Mr. 1830 to Mary A Reed - Had a daughter  
Mary Louisa Stevens & Merritt and  
lives at Adora Union Pittsburg --  
Dr Hawley resides in the village.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Aug 1873  
I am well and my wife  
and children are well  
and myself no longer  
feel myself no longer  
able to do much work

as I am now  
and my wife  
and myself are well

Ch Hawley  
Olive Skinner  
Lester Rodway  
H. M. Gleason  
~~Donald Hale~~  
" Dorian  
Stephen Vincent  
Levi Smith } Green  
Elliot B. Smith }  
Major D. Reynolds  
Hazard Wilcox Engine of the Shann  
Randall Pelton 073 P Miles  
Loren Parks at Supt near Vincent's new depot  
Montgomery Shallow  
Isaac Mait.  
Loren Robbins

Charles H. Hawley died from a stroke on  
lot 29 West of Bassett Bridge

Charles H. Hawley was born in Chautauqua County  
January 11, 1842 in the town of Elma.  
He was the son of John and Mary (Gibson) Hawley  
and died in the town of Elma on January 11, 1912.

James Taggart settled in Sodus Abonyah and James, Jr.

Ransom Polton from Onida Co to Sherman in 1817 to lot 63 but in 1824 came with his father and the rest of the family. The other sons were Ezra, Horace, Charles - all became settlers.

Ransom & son reside at Lorraine in Lorraine. Ogallia, Minn now died in Minn his widow in Sherman stands on his father's homestead.

Richard Board from England 1826, to Sherman in 1846

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY  
James Otterley from England, settled in 1823 on lot 14. wife James, Mrs. ~~Joseph~~, Charles, Horace, Joseph, and a daughter Anna, wife Dr. Richard Walker of Westfield. Came without his wife deceased. He married Arabella Foster in Minn. 1. John, Henry, Susan, Horatio

The first Dash Factory in Darnestown was established in the spring of 1827; by Sedgwick Penhard, Smith Seymour, and — Goodwin, on the north shore of the outlet, immediately below the saw mill at the lower village. In the spring of 1828, Seymour rowed a boat with dash to Pittsburg, where

In Apr 1836 A.D.P., S.B., H.B., G.C.I., N.A.L, and E.G. Owens purchased of J.P. his village property comprising his unsold village lots, mills and water power, for the sum of \$80,000.

Seymour, who subsequently bought the interest of Owen, sold his  $\frac{1}{3}$  interest to Barnett, Patchin & Baker in 1841. In 1842 Barnett assigned all his interest to Baker.

The title to village property was in Baker; <sup>the title to</sup> other land and water power, in Barnett & Patchin. As the parcels of land held by B.B & P were purchased <sup>on the one side of</sup> by all the parties to this agreement equally & in equal proportions as tenants in common, the following agreement exists between the parties hereto.

1 The ~~less~~ price of the lands, water power & mills is \$80,000. of which \$10,000 was paid on the first of April the remaining 70,000 to be paid in 7 equal and installments with int. annually.

69 ' 1st of July 1838 - money to be paid

20.60  
7.25

81 <sup>13.35</sup> money to be paid  
1st of Aug 1838 - money to be paid  
81

1816. June, Charles Harris, 17. Richard Douglass, 46.  
Nov., Daniel G. Gamsey, 13. Dec., Calvin Shafford, 41.  
<sup>7</sup>Sylvester March, 38.
1817. Jan., Daniel G. Gamsey, 6, 7. Ezra Andrews,  
16. March, Asa Owen, 5. Abel Carpenter, 4. Jacob  
Houghton, 39. Daniel G. Gamsey, 12, 11, 10. Robert  
Kenyon, 5. May, Caleb Seager, 32.
1821. Dec., <sup>P</sup>William Gates, 35. <sup>P</sup>George Gates, 35.
1822. <sup>P</sup>June, Pierow Crosby, 26. Aug., Ezekiel  
Grindell, 26. Israel Carpenter, 8.
1822. March, <sup>P</sup>Chestor Spalding, 35. Oct., <sup>P</sup>Jared  
Elliott, 30. <sup>P</sup>Thomas A. Osborne, 34. <sup>P</sup>Nathaniel Hump-  
reys, 39. <sup>P</sup>Alvin Elliott, 34. Amos & Calvin Hutchinson, 34.
1823. Sept., <sup>P</sup>Nathaniel Crosby, 34.
1825. June, <sup>P</sup>Pierow Crosby, 26. Aug., <sup>P</sup>Isaac  
A. Longfellow & others, 30. <sup>P</sup>Zachariah Cushing & others, 30.  
<sup>P</sup>Sylvester Wilson & others, 30.
1826. Oct., <sup>P</sup>Marcus Miller, 35. <sup>May</sup>
1827. Apr., <sup>P</sup>Phinehas Nichols, 38, 39. <sup>P</sup>Titus Hurl-  
but, 44. <sup>P</sup>Abner Holmes, 44. Sept., Joshua Douglass, 36.
- TESTFIELD, NY 2012

# Harmony.

Harmony was taken from Chautauqua, Feb. 14, 1816.  
~~It~~ part of Broato. It comprises townships 1 and 2 in range  
13, and 2 tiers of lots from its south line to range 12, from its  
south line to Chautauqua lake, together with lots 1, 3 and 44  
from township 2, range 12. It contains about 86 square miles  
of territory, or 54,918 acres. Its surface is described as "a mod-  
erately hilly upland, the highest summits being about  
900 feet above Lake Erie." Its principal streams are Bro-  
ken Straw creek, flowing south into Pennsylvania; Goose  
creek, flowing into the lake, passing through Ashville;  
and Prudgast's creek, running northerly and easterly  
into the lake.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Darwoodland June 18 1871. In consideration of the Col. Mo's' I was asked by Genl J. W. C. Frémont (of the corps of engineers) to advise him of the wisdom of the Col. that the regular members might be raised without a draft, now, organized. After his opinion, Col. Genl Mo's', Lt G E & Gen Ch Brindle submitted their answer, and the one having first, the more ~~also~~ <sup>more</sup> ~~was~~ <sup>had</sup> ~~reached~~ <sup>reached</sup> ~~was~~ <sup>had</sup> ~~abstained~~ <sup>abstained</sup> in the same way.

They were to leave 6 a.m. and be ready at  
a moment's warning. They ~~had~~<sup>had</sup> to go,  
then a man from the manager of the Co., ~~who had~~  
~~not~~<sup>had</sup> ~~any~~<sup>any</sup> news of the crew and  
that those few the Co. had left Com-  
pany . . . i. e. 60. The next day, after  
Co. - ~~the~~<sup>COD</sup> ~~had~~<sup>HISTORICAL</sup> been all set down ~~and~~<sup>and</sup> the  
"house" cleaned. The company - 113 men  
in all present, the captain and a number there  
on the 9th and joined the 10th of May, detailed  
and then went over by Col. Long 11 Dec. - to  
Cuba - on 12th. A

On the 13th, Gen. F. R. was sent down to the  
battle-field, and made an attack upon the  
American forces (1200 men) refused to cross the  
river and take part in the conflict. The battle  
was fought in

" 101-53

John B. Church, director of the New Haven  
Academy of theology, died at his home  
on Main Street, New Haven, Conn., on the  
11th instant, aged 73 years.

Fay Nathan 305 son of Nathan  
 311 son of Nathan Jan 25, '85  
 311 son of Nathan June 2 '85  
 306 son of Nathan April 10, '95  
 323 son of Nathan April 9, '81  
 324 son of Nathan April 9, '81

1 Southbury Town	26	/	67	2
2 Framingham "	1,	2.		
3 Westboro	3	/	11.	5
4 Westbury	15			

In 1806 there was a considerable addition to the bank

CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

<u>105</u>	<u>165.62</u>	<u>6.40</u>
<u>270</u>	<u>262.48</u>	<u>66</u>
<u>240</u>	<u>393.2</u>	<u>81</u>
<u>300</u>	<u>4199.68</u>	<u>618</u>
<u>288</u>	<u>120</u>	<u>660</u>
<u>96</u>	<u>24</u>	<u>781</u>
<u>420</u>	<u>65.62</u>	<u>281</u>
<u>21</u>		<u>631</u>
<u>198.87</u>		<u>281</u>
<u>984</u>		<u>221</u>
<u>206.77</u>		<u>231</u>
		<u>101</u>
		<u>901</u>
		(11/10/11/12/13)

(2 - 12)

Aug 1804 Alex H. Smith's book 1. 37  
John H. Smith's book was  
transferred to the library in 1804  
and is now in the South Park of Sot 39  
and is now in the hands of Mr. D. L. Smith.  
Mr. H. Smith's book is now in the hands of Mr. H. Smith.

Aug 1804 John Belcher - 53 + 54 107

Sept 1804 John Belcher - 282 33 42

Aug 1807 Peter Cheney 17 2

Aug 1807 Peter Cheney 17

Aug 1807 John Grafton 17

Aug 1808 John Grafton 17

Aug 1808 John Grafton 17

Oct 1808 John Grafton 17

Aug 1807 Peter Cheney 17

Aug 1807 Peter Cheney 17

July 1807 Peter Cheney 17

Joseph Sibley 17

Aug 1807 Joseph Sibley 17

Aug 1807 Joseph Sibley 17

Aug 1807 Peter Cheney 17

Nov 1807 Peter Cheney 17

Aug 1807 Peter Cheney 17

Robert Russell built the small saw-mill where it is still now owned by James A. T. Prendergast on the Beavermead Creek a

Joseph Akin on Killwater

Elizur Aiken <sup>Sawmill & gristmill</sup> which

passed to A. Pleasant  
James Aiken a saw-mill became known - and  
another still lower down - after his death  
the mills passed to Edward Aiken, his brother  
Joseph Aiken a mill owner had either of the  
above near West. line of town -

Baptist Church <sup>was</sup> formed about

Cong. Ch. built about 1829

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

James had spent went to Jan. 1794 and other parts  
of the West. only 11 whole weeks back in  
Spaniard at St Louis.

After his return, took it up as his ch. to come on  
to Jan. 1801 & first went to organize the County  
and it was decided to remove 28 including Tom  
Fisher. They had several teams - one of them, at  
least, a 14 horse team.

After moving his mill down a ridge, he had 2 single saws  
and a gang of 16 saws. 340,000. the highest 27,000,000 the  
least - coming gradually in the fall, and kept a ~~keep~~ of ten.  
He built the first grist-mill about 1814 near the saw-mill (some time)  
in woods opposite Fisher building from '24 to '33 - Then built

This property was given to H. C. Finley  
in a trust now (quibus, and ~~from~~ when he died no  
significance and no substantial unhealthfulness  
existed. The mill, was sold to Mr.  
Seltzey and (See other sheet.)

A Finley built a crude <sup>about 1827</sup> building for  
for Candy & Cloth during which ~~time~~ he  
continued to live by himself and his sons, and  
then succeeded until about 20 yrs. ago.  
(after a little before the saw mill and of that  
by its stone frame.

McKean

Wrote <sup>opposite</sup> Helps <sup>about 1827</sup> built a sawmill about 1827  
in town, owned by Daniel Bent, and from him  
to Isaac Rice, and ~~was destroyed by fire and~~  
~~never rebuilt soon discontinued & never rebuilt~~

About 1829 Eli (?) <sup>opposite</sup> built a saw mill  
& grist mill, afterwards owned by Grossman and  
and after its decay was not rebuilt.

First store by Horace (Brockway, James McCloud  
probably his son).

First physician

est.

Daniel Osborn built a tannery in 18  
came to Moreau in 1862 and  
commenced Shoemaking 1/4 mile below the village  
and the year after commenced the Tanning busi-  
ness. This is the only tannery ever st. in town  
and has been lately passed to the hands of his son  
David S. by its present proprietor.

Alexander Findley built the first saw-mill in  
or about 1815 and a grist mill about a year after, and he  
continued them until he died in 1843.  
The property then came to Hugh and Carson, who  
held it for about 10 years, when C built  
a saw-mill 3 p.m. below, which uniform-  
~~was~~<sup>COPYRIGHT CHATHAM COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY LIBRARY  
~~was~~<sup>about 1843</sup> cause and the upper mill was  
abandoned. The dam being too weak away by  
a June frost, and about a mile distant  
having sprung up before a new one was completed  
and decomposed under the water, sickness was  
produced, and the proprietors were indicted  
for murder, and ~~about~~<sup>about</sup> seven years later  
they were compelled to give up discontinuing  
this mill. Mr. Carson Findley, ~~then~~<sup>about 1843</sup> built  
a saw-mill about 3 p.m. below which was  
continued about 20 yrs and sold it to Mr. White  
by whom it was continued about 5 yrs and destroyed  
by fire, but insured.</sup>

The dam was swept away when the falls covered the property, and the litigator commanded during his life, and the debt was inherited by the Butlers.

John Stenker many Samuel

When the family went South there  
were many array in the party including  
"Toma negro slave". Wm Penn -  
dougast br. took a very hand-  
some pair of horses & carriage  
with him on that journey, and  
while in Tennessee was offered  
a plantation of a thousand  
acres of land for the horses  
carriage & harness, which was  
refused. When his return to  
the North in 1805 he drove  
the horses & carriage back.

It was the first carriage  
ever brought up Chautauque  
County, and without doubt in  
Western New York.

Hon. John J. and Jediah  
Prendeville were in the  
Senate at the same time.

John J. had two sons, William,  
who died in his youth and the  
Hon. Martin Prendeville, who  
recently died at his home  
on Long Island.

over

Of the seven sons  
Matthew was Judge  
Jediah was a state senator  
James was Judge  
John D. was a state senator  
Martin was Judge  
William was Colonel

---

To add to Jediah's History

---

Penelope Chase, wife of  
Jediah, died while on a  
visit to her son-in-law, the  
Hon. Hamilton Merritt, at  
St. Catharines, Canada.

Jediah was elected to the  
Assembly in 1816<sup>& 1817</sup>, the State  
Senate in 1817 and again  
to the Assembly in 1820 & 1821

He was a man of varied  
accomplishments, a scientific  
scholar, and numbered  
Martin Van Buren, H. W. H.  
Clinton, & Peter R. Livingston a-  
mong his friends -

Why it is, it is all reason  
ing so much stronger to  
every one of you per-  
sons that mental  
effort is foolish.  
Say "completely" to  
the

Tire you one to  
me unless you can find  
some one like me who  
better know what  
it should do him up in  
any particular way  
in which he is at the

An instant he grazed  
ed again. Her mother  
then her head sank  
to tell her  
ed up to his home  
against the wall  
like

The elder had in the big  
maurice a number  
of the oak leaves  
like this  
the other

3-15

pg 5

3-15

- Aug 1827 Bucklin's Warden 42  
 " " Chat Winter - 56  
 Apr 1828 Ata M'ross - 23  
 June " Dan Sontard - 34  
 " " Gil Gould - 78  
 July " Benj Lawrence - 76  
 " " Henry Adams - 30  
 Aug " Joseph Humphrey - 70  
 " " Pitt Dickson - 45  
 Sept " Oliver S. Stone - 32  
 " " John Gage - 65  
 Oct " Lewis C. Underwood - 86  
 " " Herason Bent - 98  
 Dec " Abram Hall - 30  
 Feb 1828 John P. Richards - 32  
 March " Peter Burch - 33  
 Apr " Sam'l Hause - 78  
 Aug " Field McCass - 46  
 Sept " John Mead - 40  
 Oct " Reuben Ellis - 61  
 Dec " Ezekiel Smith - 32  
 Jan 1829 Barnes & Co and all 85  
 Nov " Peter Combs 56  
 Jan 1830 John McBriggs - 76  
 " " Nicholas Vandenberg 60  
 " " John Dickson - 46

### SUPPLEMENTARY LIST OF OFFICERS.

Elected and appointed during the period embraced in the last twenty-two chapters of this work, which have been written since its first publication.

#### ELECTORAL VOTES FOR PRESIDENT AND VICE-PRESIDENT.

##### 1857—NUMBER OF ELECTORS, 296.

*For President.*                                   *For Vice Pres.*

James Buchanan,.....	174	John C. Breckinridge,.....	174
John C. Fremont, .....	114	William L. Dayton,.....	114
Millard Fillmore,.....	8	Andrew J. Donelson,.....	8

##### 1861—NUMBER OF ELECTORS, 303.

Abraham Lincoln,.....	180	Hannibal Hamlin,.....	180
John C. Breckinridge,.....	72	Joseph Lane,.....	72
John Bell,.....	39	Edward Everett,.....	39
Stephen A. Douglas,.....	12	Herschel V. Johnson,.....	12

##### 1865—NUMBER OF ELECTORS, 234.

Abraham Lincoln,.....	213	Andrew Johnson,.....	213
George B. McClellan,.....	21	George H. Pendleton,.....	21

#### SECRETARIES OF STATE.

Lewis Cass, <i>Mich.</i> ,.....	March, 1857	William H. Seward, <i>N. Y.</i> , March, 1861
Jeremiah S. Black, <i>Pa.</i> ,.....	1861	

#### SECRETARIES OF THE TREASURY.

Howell Cobb, <i>Ga.</i> ,.....	March, 1857	Salmon P. Chase, <i>Ohio</i> ,.....	March, 1861
Philip F. Thomas, <i>Md.</i> ,.....	1860	William P. Fessenden, <i>Maine</i> ,.....	1864
John A. Dix, <i>N. Y.</i> ,.....	1861	Hugh McCulloch, <i>Ind.</i> ,.....	1865

#### SECRETARIES OF WAR.

John B. Floyd, <i>Va.</i> ,.....	March, 1857	Simon Cameron, <i>Pa.</i> ,.....	March, 1861
Joseph Holt, <i>Ky.</i> ,.....	1860	Edwin M. Stanton, <i>Pa.</i> ,.....	1862

#### SECRETARIES OF THE NAVY.

Isaac Toucey, <i>Conn.</i> ,.....	March, 1857	Gideon Wells, <i>Conn.</i> ,.....	March, 1861

#### SECRETARIES OF THE INTERIOR.

Jacob Thompson, <i>Miss.</i> ,.....	March, 1857	John P. Usher, <i>Ind.</i> ,.....	1882
Caleb B. Smith, <i>Ind.</i> ,.....	March, 1861	— Harlan, <i>Iowa</i> ,.....	1866

#### POSTMASTERS-GENERAL.

Aaron V. Brown, <i>Tenn.</i> ,.....	March, 1857	Montgomery Blair, <i>Md.</i> ,.....	March, 1861
Joseph Holt, <i>Ky.</i> ,.....	1860	William Dennison, <i>Ohio</i> ,.....	1864
Horatio King,.....	1860		

#### ATTORNEYS-GENERAL.

Jeremiah S. Black, <i>Pa.</i> ,.....	March, 1857	Edward Bates, <i>Mo.</i> ,.....	March, 1861
Edwin M. Stanton, <i>Pa.</i> ,.....	1860	— Speed, <i>Ky.</i> ,.....	1866

#### CHIEF-JUSTICE OF THE SUPREME COURT.

Salmon P. Chase, <i>Ohio</i> ,.....	1864

#### ASSOCIATE JUSTICES OF THE SUPREME COURT.

James A. Campbell, <i>Ala.</i> ,.....	1853	Noah Swayne, <i>Ohio</i> ,.....	1862
Nathan Clifford, <i>Maine</i> ,.....	1858	Samuel H. Miller, <i>Iowa</i> ,.....	1862

#### SPEAKERS OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES.

<i>Congress,</i>		<i>Congress.</i>	
34th, Nathaniel P. Banks, <i>Mass.</i>		37th, Galusha A. Grow, <i>Pa.</i>	
35th, James L. Orr, <i>S. C.</i>		38th, Schuyler Colfax, <i>Ind.</i>	
36th, William Pennington, <i>N. J.</i>			

#### SENATORS ELECTED PRESIDENTS OF THE SENATE, PRO. TEM.

Benjamin Fitzpatrick, <i>Ala.</i>		Lafayette S. Foster, <i>Conn.</i>	
Solomon Foote, <i>Vt.</i>			

## SECRETARIES OF THE NAVY.

George Cabot, <i>Mass.</i>	May 8, 1798	Jas. K. Paulding, <i>N. Y.</i>	June 30, 1838
Benj. Stoddart, <i>Md.</i>	" 21, 1798	GEO. E. Badger, <i>N. C.</i>	March 5, 1841
Robert Smith, <i>Md.</i>	Jan. 26, 1802	Abel P. Upshur, <i>Va.</i>	Sept. 13, 1841
J. Crowninshield, <i>Mass.</i>	March 2, 1805	David Henshaw, <i>Mass.</i>	July 24, 1843
Paul Hamilton, <i>S. C.</i>	" 7, 1809	Thomas W. Gilmer, <i>Va.</i>	Feb. 15, 1844
B. W. Crowninshield, <i>Mass.</i>	Dec. 17, 1814	John Y. Mason, <i>Va.</i>	March 14, 1844
Smith Thompson, <i>N. Y.</i>	Nov. 30, 1818	George Bancroft, <i>Mass.</i>	" 10, 1845
Samuel L. Southard, <i>N. J.</i>	Dec. 9, 1823	John Y. Mason, <i>Va.</i>	" 1846
John Branch, <i>N. C.</i>	March 9, 1829	Wm. A. Graham, <i>N. C.</i>	July 20, 1850
Levi Woodbury, <i>N. H.</i>	" 1831	James C. Dobbin, <i>N. C.</i>	March 5, 1853
Mahlon Dickerson, <i>N. J.</i>	June 30, 1834		

## SECRETARIES OF THE INTERIOR.

Thomas Ewing, <i>O.</i>	March 7, 1849	Robert McClelland, <i>Mich.</i>	March, 1853
Alex. H. H. Stuart, <i>Va.</i>	Sept. 12, 1850		

## POSTMASTERS-GENERAL.

Samuel Osgood, <i>Mass.</i>	Sept. 26, 1789	John M. Niles, <i>Conn.</i>	May 25, 1840
Timothy Pickering, <i>Mass.</i>	Nov. 7, 1794	Francis Granger, <i>N. Y.</i>	March 6, 1841
Jacob Habershon, <i>Ga.</i>	Feb. 25, 1795	Charles A. Wickliffe, <i>Ky.</i>	Sept. 13, 1841
Gideon Granger, <i>Conn.</i>	Jan. 26, 1802	Cave Johnson, <i>Tenn.</i>	March 5, 1845
Return J. Meigs, <i>O.</i>	March 17, 1814	Jacob Collamer, <i>Vt.</i>	" 7, 1849
John M'Lean, <i>O.</i>	Dec. 9, 1823	Nathan K. Hall, <i>N. Y.</i>	July 20, 1850
William T. Barry, <i>Ky.</i>	March 9, 1829	Samuel D. Hubbard, <i>Conn.</i>	Oct. 1, 1852
Amos Kendall, <i>Ky.</i>	May 1, 1835	James Campbell, <i>Penn.</i>	March 5, 1853

## ATTORNEYS-GENERAL.

Edmund Randolph, <i>Va.</i>	Sept. 26, 1789	Benj. F. Butler, <i>N. Y.</i>	Dec. 25, 1835
William Bradford, <i>Pa.</i>	Jan. 27, 1794	Felix Grundy, <i>Tenn.</i>	Sept. 1, 1838
Charles Lee, <i>Va.</i>	Dec. 10, 1795	Henry D. Gilpin, <i>Pa.</i>	Jan. 11, 1840
Levi Lincoln, <i>Mass.</i>	March 5, 1801	John J. Crittenden, <i>Ky.</i>	March 5, 1841
Robert Smith, <i>Md.</i>	" 3, 1805	Hugh S. Legare, <i>S. C.</i>	Sept. 13, 1841
John Breckinridge, <i>Ky.</i>	Jan. 17, 1806	John Nelson, <i>Md.</i>	July 1, 1843
Cæsar A. Rodney, <i>Del.</i>	Jan. 20, 1807	John Y. Mason, <i>Va.</i>	March 5, 1845
William Pinkney, <i>Del.</i>	Dec. 11, 1811	Nathan Clifford, <i>Me.</i>	" 1847
Richard Rush, <i>Pa.</i>	Feb. 10, 1814	Isaac Toucey, <i>Conn.</i>	" 1848
William Wirt, <i>Va.</i>	Dec. 16, 1817	Reverdy Johnson, <i>Md.</i>	March 6, 1849
John M'P. Berrien, <i>Ga.</i>	March 19, 1829	John J. Crittenden, <i>Ky.</i>	July 20, 1850
Roger B. Taney, <i>Md.</i>	Dec. 1831	Caleb Cushing, <i>Mass.</i>	March 5, 1853

## CHIEF JUSTICES OF THE SUPREME COURT.

John Jay, <i>N. Y.</i>	Sept. 26, 1789	John Jay, <i>N. Y.</i>	Dec. 19, 1800
John Rutledge, <i>S. C.</i>	July 1, 1795	John Marshall, <i>Va.</i>	Jan. 27, 1801
William Cushing, <i>Mass.</i>	Jan. 27, 1796	Roger B. Taney, <i>Md.</i>	Dec. 28, 1835
Oliver Ellsworth, <i>Conn.</i>	March 4, 1796		

## ASSOCIATE JUSTICES OF THE SUPREME COURT.

John Rutledge, <i>S. C.</i>	Sept. 26, 1789	Joseph Story, <i>Mass.</i>	Nov. 18, 1811
William Cushing, <i>Mass.</i>	" 27, 1789	Smith Thompson, <i>N. Y.</i>	Dec. 9, 1823
Robert H. Harrison, <i>Md.</i>	" 28, 1789	Robert Trimble, <i>Ky.</i>	March 9, 1826
James Wilson, <i>Pa.</i>	" 29, 1789	John M'Lean, <i>O.</i>	" 7, 1829
John Blair, <i>Va.</i>	" 30, 1789	Henry Baldwin, <i>Pa.</i>	Jan. 6, 1830
James Iredell, <i>N. C.</i>	Feb. 10, 1790	James M. Wayne, <i>Ga.</i>	Jan. 18, 1835
Thomas Johnson, <i>Md.</i>	Nov. 7, 1791	Philip B. Barbour, <i>Va.</i>	March 15, 1836
Wm. Patterson, <i>N. Y.</i>	March 1, 1793	William Smith, <i>Ala.</i>	" 8, 1837
Samuel Chase, <i>Md.</i>	Jan. 27, 1796	John Catron, <i>Tenn.</i>	" 8, 1837
Bushrod Washington, <i>Va.</i>	Dec. 20, 1798	John M'Kinley, <i>Ala.</i>	Sept. 3, 1837
Wm. Johnson, <i>S. C.</i>	March 26, 1804	Peter V. Daniel, <i>Va.</i>	March 3, 1837

- Aug 1826} Sycamore Oaks } 16  
 } Calvert Dutton }  
 Oct " Abel Allen 7-15-  
 Dec " Vernon Helms - 48  
 Feb 1827 Darius H Rice - 27  
 " " Benj F Ridge - 23  
 " " John Hooker 13.15+22+31  
 Dec " " " gr - 39  
 June " " " Pidge - 4  
 " " " John Pidge - 4  
 July " Darius H Rice - 19  
 Sept " Alanson Parks - 6  
 Dec " Andy Nobles 44  
 March 1828 Hart Berris } 19  
 " " " Wm & Samson }  
 " " " Gorham Hooker - 38  
 Dec " John Parks - 29  
 Jan 1829 Simeon R Stowe 18-20  
 March " Isaiah Golding - 53  
 June " John Hunt & 32  
 " " Elwin Hunt - - 40  
 " " Asahel Goodrich 30  
 " " Simeon Higgins - 62  
 Dec " George A. Nobles - 4  
 Feb 1830 David French - 10  
 March " Simon " Jr - 43  
 " " " C. L. French - 35

2-12		2-12
Feb 1821 - Elm Street		42.
Feb 1823 - Elm Street		43
June " Geo & Case		50.
Feb 11 Phillips Barker	-	20
Feb 1824 J. Smith -	as in 1821	50
Oct " C. - in Melville		14
March 1825 Elm Street		
" " Ruben Johnson		49.
" " Jacob Storrs		
" " John Wood	-	7
Apr " E. H. Palmer		
" " Truman Benedict		46
" " Sam'l. Price		
Dec " Sam'l. Brown		9
Dec 1826 Jacob Newell	-	7
Dec 1827 " " Benting		9.
May " Hugh Brewster		
" " J. Parker		47
" " S. M. Parker		20
Dec 1828 Marcus H. Clark	-	21
Sept " Joseph W. Northrup		20
Feb 1829 Sam'l. Price		7
" " Wm. Cross		6
Aug " J. L. Squires		
" 1829 Aaron Squires		13
Dec " Peter Moore	-	48

from my notes and as far as I can remember

the above was

"	Stephen or Sam'l Rogers	13
"	Joth'l Maitison Jr.	32
	Clark Parker	27
"	Israel Smith	26
"	Wm Smith & Joth'l Clayton	44
Aug	John H. Smith	14
	James Smith	17
	Israel Maitison	16
	John H. Smith	8
	James Smith	18
Sept	James H. Smith	10 + 20
	James H. Smith	20
"	Goth'r Smith	4
June	J. John Bentley	6
"	James Arnold	19
Aug	James Martine	-
"	John H. Smith	46
"	James H. Smith	45
"	James H. Smith	5
Sept	James Maitison	17
Dec 1812	James Maitison	10 - 18
April	James Maitison	21
Nov	James Smith	51
May 1813	James Smith	21
June	James Smith	16
July	James Smith	16
Aug	James Smith	11 + 12
Sept	James Smith	11
"	James Smith	1
March 1815	James Smith	2
"	James Smith	4
"	James Smith	1
Nov	Henry Nutt	21
"	James P. Rogers	-
Oct 1816	James Smith	14
May 1817	Alvin May	22
June	James Smith	15
Mar 1818	Alvin May	32
Sept	James Smith	13
"	James Smith	6
"	James Smith	12
Nov	James Smith	10 + 20 + 8
	Philip Barnes	42
Dec 1818	John Miller	21
May 1819	John Miller	49

2nd

Charter for Election Genesee Co., N.Y.

But by some mistake the election was pronounced of no effect by mistake of name & on the 8<sup>th</sup> of June following appointments were made by 3 justices of the County of Genesee for Benj. Ellcott (Notaria), Daniel West (Notary Public) & Asa Ranson (Clarke) the following were the oaths made by them -

John McElhaney - Supr

Jas. W. Montgomery - Clerk

Benj. Barnett. Town Assessor for Wm. H. Clark

John Lyons - Const & St. w/ J.

Wm. M. Fletcher, Gardner & Arthur Bell - Com. of  
Albion & Grafton. L. D. Gracius Holmes - Overseer of Poor

Gardiner Kinkaid, Pd. Master -

Jas. Perry & T. A. Cushing - Fence Owners

Ors Holmes, Peter Kane & Saml. Harrison Owners of Highways

Post annual Post, Oct 1<sup>st</sup> 1806 - Town of Chest-  
= augh = give in the County of Genesee following:  
Chosen: Thos. Hollingsworth Moderator

J. M. Carr Sup

Jas. M. Tugay Ch

Town Clerks Alexander John & Bellows & Shorthorn & others

Jos. Dunn, Abn. Frederick, the Mathematician Town Recd.

John Lyons - Col

Abram M. Tugay & Peter Nathan - P. C. & Poor

Abram Holmes & Andw. Spears - Consts

Sam'l. Harrison, Peter Kane, Sam'l. Perry, Hon. & Webb & others

Thos. Hollingsworth & Abn. Frederick - Pd. Masters

Gardiner Sason, Geo. Whitehill & Basil Burger - Fence Owners

By Laws - Two posts as to be erected in the  
town of Chest-augh one of following - 24 ft & square  
by eleven high - Fence Owners to have same  
Compensation as Constables viz: 6 pence per mile  
& of one shilling for each view -

Resolved - That a fence of the following

dimensions shall be deemed lawful viz:

1<sup>st</sup> To be of good timber

2<sup>nd</sup> To be 6' high

Gen & Hists

Daniel Cornwell }  
Boham Dennis } Const  
Amos Atkins }  
John Scott - Pound keeper  
Nathan Wisner }  
Geo Whitehill } Free Weavers  
G Scott }  
John Petram }  
Alex Cochran Oliver Dennis James Marion  
Sarah Eaton, Abra Frederick Elias Scott }  
Eros Woodward Tom Penns. Geo Griffith  
David Atkins Martin Prentiss Stevens  
1810 Matt Prendt Sep

Gen & Hists  
WICHT COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WELLED, NY 2012

Lay Cary Clerk  
David Jason } Afs  
Wm Russell }  
John Sibley }  
Samuel Wilkinson }  
John Dexter } Curs of roads  
Jonathan Cherry }  
Zephannah Phelps } Constables  
Daniel Cornwell }  
John Drift Peter Ingerson Artemus Hinck  
Harry Ingerson Darius Dexter David Carter  
David Atkins Jonathan Cherry - Curs Hists

1811 at Loring's House -

Henry Abel & Shubel S Marsh - Afs

Darius Bentley (at Curs of roads)

Zebulon Sabin - Sol Paris & Augustus Clapp Const

Jerimiah Potter & Wm Southworth - Curs of Rms

Elisha Fay Corinthian Obsidiah Murley Ruth Slagin

Catrin Farnsworth Lawton Richard Othlie Clark

James Nicholson Matt Nealey Bo Green Clark Parker

Notice that Hogs be free commoners in Chant except  
Village of Mayville -

Persons elected subseq. monthly  
1807 - Abijah Bennett }  
Justus Hinman } Asrs  
Alex C Martin }  
Elijah Risley }  
Ozias Hart } Owners Hi'ways  
Arthur Bell }

Ary Barker  
Elasha Warren }  
Joseph Thayer } Fence Beams & Pd Martin  
Barzella Parmenter }  
Alanson Weed }  
Geo Whitehill }

1808 Arthur Bell Sup  
David Eaton }  
Alanson Weed } Asrs  
Wm Alexander }

Alex Cochran  
Abijah Bennett }  
Matt Prendergast } Owners Hi'ways  
Thos Prendergast }  
Abijah Bennett }

Jad Montgomery - Col'r

Daniel Cornwell - Const

1809 Thos Prendergast - Sup  
John Scott - S. Clerk  
Eaton, Montgomery & Jerry Griffith - Asrs  
Wm Prendt, A Bennett - J. McNaught Const  
Thos Burns - Col

city - for the width of two feet to be  
only 4 inches between rails or logs, because  
Notice being given according to law of  
the intention of a number of inhabitants of the  
town of Chester to agree to make a division  
for a division of said town & being permitted  
on the day of April 1<sup>st</sup> was carried in the af-  
firmative by the Town of Chester upon the  
whole a sum following manner viz T.  
commencement of the N.E. cor of said

Chest from thence south to the S.E. cor  
of No 4, in 11<sup>th</sup> Range then west corner  
No 4 in 12<sup>th</sup> Range then due north to take  
line shore -

Town meeting 1807 held at home  
Mrs Perry apd 7<sup>th</sup> - voice to hold next  
Meeting at house of Hes Barker Canister  
settlement - John S Bellows Clk

Apr 1808 meeting held at John Scott's Mayville  
T. Clk - voice - Hogg to run at large

Apr 1810 - at John Scott's Mayville  
Sergius Cary T. Clk

Apr 1811 - At home of Matt B Lovings Mayville  
Sergius Cary Clk

April 1812 at home of John Scott Mayville  
" " Daniel Ayers Sup John T. Cary clk

Apr 1813 at home of John Scott Mayville  
Eyes Mc Cymogle Clk

1813 Sylvester Higby & Jonathan Wrothbury - Clerks  
Elisha Wallis Robbins & David Bly - Commissioners

Nick Freeman. Cha' Forrest, Paul McConnell, Nathan Lewis  
Sol Sheppard, Aaron Leet Fifer Society of Paris  
Orin Story, Dr. A. Couch, Arch Sudington,  
Sam Nealey, David Knutson, Dexter Barnes,  
Zachariah French, Nathan Aldrich, Samuel Harting,  
Harry Ferguson, Rand Miles, Darins Summer  
Israel Carpenter, Basil Burger -

June 1809 -	Robert Dyer	8
Aug 1810	Alanson Brown	15
" "	Amos Thomas	65
Nov " 80	Everett	
" "	Mattie & Sumner	4
1811 " 1st	Henry Hale	11
" "	John	3
" "	{ Caleb Brewster }	16
" "	Grace Turner	16
	Alanson Follett	
May "	Wm Thompson	13
Oct "	Samuel Jameson	14
Mar 1811	John Doggett	4
July "	Marcus	14
Aug "	Elisia Foster	54
" "	Daniel Cornwall	55
Oct "	Ruf Dodge	4
" "	John Brown	49
" "	John Wetherbee	47
" "	John Munro	41
" "	Peregrine Munro	41
" "	Archelaus Hunt	64
May 1816	Artemas Stone	50
May 1816	Caleb S. Hale	64
Apr 1817	Oliver Hubbard	
" "	Harm.	40
" "	Ben Cressler	
" "	Ben Cressler	
Dec 1818	Jacob Huntington	
Nov 1819	Isaac Webster	54
X May 1821	Roswell Wells	19
" "	Heber Squire	14
Allen & Jim Parker	Timothy Parker	52+58
April 1822	J. Parker	48
June "	Ed. H. Dick	32
July "	James B. Murray	22
Oct "	Henry Atwater	63
Oct "	{ Asa Jeffords }	30
Nov "	Mattie Jeffords	
" "	Annie Perkins	21
" "	Azariah Bickford	29
April 1823	David Correll	33
" "	Asa and Anna	
" "	Heber Squire	39
" "	Jonathan Frost	23
May "	Jonathan Frost	22
June "	Norman Rexford	46
" "	Daniel Hedges	11

		John C Park's	26
"	"	Isaac & Whiting	50
"	"	The Burgess	- - 48
"	"	Silas Poor	63
"	"	Alex Poor	62
"	"	Ebenezer B Poor	- -
July		Saml Adams	- - 61
		Wm Ticknor	- - 50
		Jacob Orcott	- - 54
		Joseph Beckley	- 49
		Ebenezer Ward	- - 61
		Wm S Stanton	- - 61
		Wm Spencer	- - 60
Sept		Gideon Palmer	- - 58
		Austin Collins	- - 36
		Minard Chatterton	- 20
Oct		Asa Hapgood	- 43
		Zelina Orcott	- 9
		Miles Smith	- 23
		Hazleton Winslow	47
Nov		Saml Hale	- 28
		Horace Benton	- 28
		Wm Hawley	- 62
		Eric Hawley	- 61
Dec		Seward Ellsworth	54 + 55
		Ezekiel Jacobs	- 60
		James Barnes	- - 56
		Edwin Rose	- 43
Jan 1824		Wm Van Beekster	- 17
		John Hawley	- - 53
		David J. Inman	- 4
March		Saml Jenkins	- 7
		So. Hawley	- - 53
		John Hawley	- 46
April		John Hawley	- 46
		Cyrus Bickford	- 54
		John Hawley	- 59
May		Ezra Bickford	- - 41
		Saml Spaulding	- - 26
		Wm H. Munroe	- - 36
June		Jillis Bennett	- - 36
		Asa Griffith	- 45
		Larkin Harrington	- 38
July		Wm B. & -	35
		Josiah Porter	- -
July		Allegro D. J.	- 58

3-14

3-14

July 1824	Hezekiah Squire - 47
" " Joseph L. Davis - 23	
Aug " Heber Squire - 56	
" " Sam Oldam - 59	
" " Moses Sorenson - 55	
Sept " Aaron Leonard 43	
" " Dennis Hart } 17	
" " Anna Hart } 17	
" " Ciria Brana ... - 44	
" " John Burnell 18	
Oct " Asariah Pickford - 13	
" " Levi Jacobson - 18	
" " David St. John 59	
" " Jacob Simmons - 31	
" " John T. ... - 63	
" " Melvin H. Jacob 52	
" " Moses Smith } 31	
" " David Jeffords } 31	
Nov " John Farmer 2	
" " Welcome Henry - 10	
" " Jeremiah Fife } 9	
" " Granville Fife } 9	
" " Cyrus Dunbar 55 & 56	
Feb 1825	Samuel Tremblay 18
" " Joseph & Benj. Mills 10	
" " Henry Mulliner - 41	
Mar " John Bishop - 26	
" " Asa Lee Root 52	
Apr " Melvin H. Jacob - 44	
" " David Cornell 25	
" " Stephen Hoxie - 37	
May " John Jeffords - 12	
" " Ciria Simonds - 25	
" " Ezekiel Anderson 27	
June " Samuel R. Skivill - 13	
" " Allen Parker - 57	
Aug " Aaron P. Hinman - 20	
" " Jacob Salter - 27	
" " Allen W. Squierland 37	

Oct	Moses Porter	- 51
"	Isaac & Whitney	- 2
"	Alfred D. Docket	- 1
Nov	Russell Rogers	- 42
"	Elijah Porter	- 44
"	John Smith	- - 3
"	Jeremiah Reed	- 28
Dec	Daniel Gibbs	- 27
"	Zerene H. Pickett	12
"	Joseph Lyon	- 35 + 42
"	Titus Bement	35
Jan 1826	John P. Adams	- 60
Feb	Josephine Socia	- 19
"	David B. Bullock	- 18
March	Joseph Wilmeth	- 14
April	John Park	{ 49
"	John Tucknor	{
"	Isaac Cown	- 54
May	Walter Seward	50
"	Walter Seward	10
June	Asuel Porter	- 35
"	Isaac Porter	- 51
July	Daniel Stark	- 28
"	Erie Pickett	-
Aug	Benjamin Payne	- 21
Sept	Charles Granger	- 42
"	Zalmon Atwood	- 64
"	Asa Parks	- - 34
Oct	Henry With	- 3
Gaber B Burrows		
March 1827	Jonathan Ballard	22
Ad	Frederick Fox	- 64
May	Selah Sanjour	- 40
"	Philip B. Tall	- 21
July	Matthew Hanchet	3
"	Saml Northway	{
Dec	Ansel Rowley	- 19
Sept 1828	Richard Harrison	- 23
July 1829	Ezra Palmer	- 34
Dec 1830	Geo. Bond	- - 31
May 1831	Elijah Young	17
	Thos R. Great	38

8-15 (Westfield) Pg 1<sup>st</sup> 2-15

- Sept 15<sup>th</sup> 1811 - Alex French lot 52  
Nov 30<sup>th</sup> " Artemas Stoel 5 ft 4 0  
(Oct 1815 Alex French - 34<sup>ft</sup> 42  
Nov 1816 Jonathan Darrow - 57  
Feb 1816 Francis Smith - 58  
" " George Haskell - 58.  
Apr " Benj F Spear - 59<sup>ft</sup> 60  
May " Maria Newell Thompson 149<sup>ft</sup> 50  
Sept " Eliza L. Green - 60  
(Oct 1818 - Rose Haskell - 59
- Aug " Walter Bick - 25  
Oct " Aaron Whitney - 59  
July 1819 Paul Gates - 33  
" " David P. Miller - 53  
" " George Bellier - 45  
May 1821 - Samuel Stattuck - 37  
(Oct " - Orlando Durkin - 46  
June 1822 - Adine J. Babcock 37  
" " Fred C. Harvey - 37  
" " John McCurdy - 21  
" " " James Hall - 57  
(Oct 1821 - Lucia Dickham 51  
" " Lucia Dickham 51  
Mar " Anna Jones 62  
June 1823 " - 62  
June 1823 - Peter Smith - 64  
June 1823 - Peter Smith - 60

(over)

2-15 (2nd page)

B-15

Aug 1823	- John S. Acre	- 38
Sept "	Ja Cottorey	- 14
" "	Graham's Acre	- 20
" "	Chris Headon	- 38
" "	Wm. Brown	- 31
" "	Alex. Dufour	- 35
Oct. "	Ben. Bell	- 5+13
" "	Silas Giazen	- 23
" "	John Bartlett	. \$d/3850
" "	Jew C. Ward	- 12
" "	Zedekiah Palmer	12+19
" "	Potter S. - e	- 4
" "	Horace Brockway	44
Nov "	Joseph Palmer	1 - 11
" "	Ephraim Palmer	- 12
" "	John Barnes	- 20
Aug 1824	Cullen Bay	- 20
Feb "	Peiriah Whitmore	- 4
Nov 1824	Wm. Benson	28
" "	Nathaniel Goodrich	44
March 1824	John Hayes	- 29
" "	Sam'l Ellith	- p - 28
" "	Elisha Morse	- 39
" "	Nathan Morse	- 45
" "	Edward Morse	
" "	Aich & Kenyon	- 6
" "	Ja Appleby	- - 45
Apr "	Ezra Bishop	} 26
" "	Ebinger F. Bishop	}
May "	Jacob Clayton	- - 43
" "	Ja Howell	
" "	Hen Rowley	} 36 (Over)

- Texas, annexation effected, 830; protest of Mexican minister, 833; Benton on Texas and New Mexico boundary bill, 905-9; controversy with Texas; boundary bill passed, 911.
- Treasury circular, (see specie circular,) issue of, authorized, 684-7, 789, 841.
- Treaty, with Great Britain, (Jay's,) 137; call of the house for correspondence, and refused by the president, 142-3; treaty negotiated by Pinkney and Monroe, and rejected, 221-2.
- Tripoli, relations with, 202.
- Tyler, John, report of, on charges against the bank, 619-20; on French spoliation bill, 623; nominated vice-president, 735; his political opinions, 737; election, 738; becomes president, 745; vetoes bank bills, 748-9; resignation and statements of his secretaries, 749-52; new cabinet, 754; vetoes tariff bill, 780.
- Union, dissolution of, prayed for, 756; attempt to censure Adams, 757-66; Giddings presents a similar petition, 766.
- United States Gazette, Feno's, 97; Feno's death, 185.
- Upshur, Abel P., secretary of the navy, 754; of state, 999; correspondence of, relating to annexation, 787-8; death of, 799.
- Utah, territory, government for, established, 904.
- Vail, Aaron, charge of affairs in England, 617.
- Van Buren, secretary of state, 477; resigns, 548; appointed minister to England, 552; nominated and rejected, 553; nominated for vice-president, 664; and elected, 665; casting vote of, on bill against mailing anti-slavery papers, 653; elected president, his inauguration, 676-7; money pressure, bank suspension, 678; convenes congress, recommends sub-treasury, 679; sundry bills reported, fourth instalment of surplus revenue to be withheld, 680; sub-treasury bill lost, 687, and again, 689; (see sub-treasury;) renominated, 735; letter on annexation, 803-8; nomination by Utica and Buffalo conventions, 881.
- Veto, power of, 968; applied to bank bill, 273, (Madison); internal improvement bills, 284, 309, 311, (Madison and Monroe); Maysville and Washington road bills, 506, 508, (Jackson); bank and land bills, 567, 587, (Jackson); bank bills, 748-9, (Tyler); tariff bills, and debate on, 780, 782, (Tyler); distribution bill, by retaining it, 784.
- Vienna, congress of, 61.
- Virginia, settlement and government of, 26; resolutions of 1798, 172-6.
- Walker, Robert J., of Miss., secretary of the treasury, 832; report of, on tariff in 1846.
- War, with Indians, defeat of St. Clair, 94; war of revolution, causes of, 33, &c.; Madison's war message of 1812, 251; war report, 252; declaration of, 264; address of minority of congress, 254-8; (see Seminole war, Florida war, and patriot war;) with Mexico, act authorizing loans and treasury notes, 841-2; debate on three million bill, and the objects and origin of the war, by Calhoun, Benton, and Clayton, 842-5; principles involved, remarks of Corwin and Rhett, 846-8; war terminated, treaty, 848.
- Washington, commander-in-chief, 46; president, 75; letters to Hamilton and Jefferson, 101-3; refuses to comply with a call for correspondence respecting the Jay treaty, 148; his suspicions of Jefferson, 149; charged with monarchism by Jefferson, 150; forged letters against, 151; retirement of, and denunciation of, by Aurora newspaper, 156; again commander-in-chief, 166; died, December 14, 1799.
- Washington, Federalist newspaper, 199.
- Washington, city of, seat of government, 85, 86; capitol at, burned, 208.
- Warehouse act, passed, 873.
- Webster, Daniel, opposes tariff, 280; on Foot's resolution, 894; on expunging resolution, 622; on power of removal, 626-8; on spoliation bill, 623; on postponing fourth instalment, 681-2; appointed secretary of state, 744; letter of, on cabinet resignations, 754; speech of, on compromise of 1850, 899-902; his death, 937.

2-15 (3<sup>rd</sup> page)

2-15

May 1824 & and Parsons } 2  
Wm Chamberlin } 2

" " Wm Wolcott -- 10

" " John Acres -- 22

" " Jacob Seeley -- 10

" " Alfred Melcox -- 11

June " Jonathan Morse -- 61

" " Elijah Heydon - 38

" " Cha. J. Bailey -- 7

" " Ebenezer Whitney - 8

July " Foster M Paddock 11

Aug " Edward Chambers 14

Sept " Paul A Gates -- 43

" " Sam Gott --- 18

" " Robt Corbett --- 3

Elias Pattison -- 9

Jas Nichols - 3

Francis B Bucklin -- 15

Ira H Stebbins - 30

Benj Hazen - 21

May 1823 } Isaac Hooper } 21

Nov 1824 - Nathaniel Titus -- 15 + 30

" " Milo Hunger -- 18

Dec " John Van Matla -- 58

Feb 1825 Beriah Whitmore - 2

" " John Ward -- 22

March " Gideon Averill - 56

" " Seth Ulery - - 13

" " Mr Craig - - 22

" " Nicholas Lake -- 14

2-15 (4th Page)

2-15

Apr 1825	Squire King	--7
" "	Sylvester Curtis	-13
" "	Benj R Jeft	--6
" "	Nathaniel Hawick	-7
" "	Ackligh Reed	-22
May "	Jesse Oaks	-27
" "	Josiah R Kehler	-3
" "	Zina Richard	-28
" "	Nathaniel Titus Jr	-16
July "	Timothy Newton	63+64
Aug "	Theodore Nims	8
" "	David D Darling	-1
(Oct) "	Wm Kinnerton	-9
" "	Nathaniel Corp	-6
" "	Hugh Fribbley	-42
" "	Salon Bairley	16
" "	Oliver B Biss	56
" "	Henry Bliss	
Dec "	Aside Madden	9
" "	Eli White	-62
" "	West Barber	-47
Jan 1826	Hugh L. I. Skinner	50051
Feb "	Nathaniel Titus	-15
Apr "	Gideon Barlow	-16
May "	Wm Walbridge	-26
" "	Abbot Skinner	-46
" "	Joseph Webb	-9
" "	John Delong	-17
" "	John H. Robertson	-61
" "	Jas Otterman Jr	-35

- Spain, refuses to ratify a treaty of indemnity, 210; consents to the transfer of Louisiana, 211; aggressions of, 216; negotiations with, 221; treaties with, 299-301; ratification of, delayed, 302-3.
- Speaker of the house, long contest for, 893, &c.; suspension of, 272; resumed, 282.
- Specie circular of 1836, 666; Ewing's motion to rescind, debate on, bill passed, and vetoed, 668-72; repealed, 702.
- Spoliations, French, bill to pay claims for, 623; Adams' proposition, respecting the delay of France to pay indemnity, 631.
- Sprague, Peleg, of Maine, speech on Indian bill, 521-6.
- Stamp act, 37, 161.
- State governments, during the revolution, 49.
- St. Clair, Gen., defeat of, by western Indians, 94.
- St. Domingo, non-intercourse with, 220.
- St. Marks and Pensacola, taken by Jackson, 290-2.
- Stevenson, Andrew, speaker of the house, 1001; rejected as minister to England, 617-18.
- Stewart, Andrew, speech of, on woolens bill, 407; on tariff of 1846, 868-71.
- Stoddart, Benj., of Md., secretary of the navy, 160.
- Sub-treasury, origin of, 620; recommended by Van Buren, 679; debated and lost, again defeated, 689; speeches of Tallmadge, Calhoun, Clay, and Webster, 690-702; established, 732; act repealed, 747; re-established, 874.
- Suppressed documents, in relation to the controversy with France and England, 229-31.
- Supreme court, opinion of, on bank question, 305, &c.; on insolvent and bankrupt laws, 308; in case of the Cherokees, 557; in case of Amistad captives, 727.
- Taxation, right of, claimed by Great Britain, 33, 39; John Adams' sentiments on, 84; stamp act, glass, paper, &c., taxed, and acts resisted, 37-41; tax law of congress opposed in Pennsylvania, 186-7.
- Talleyrand, French minister of foreign affairs, 162, 164-5.
- Taney, Roger B., attorney-general, 548; appointed secretary of the treasury, and removes the deposits, 594; nomination of, rejected, 617.
- Tariff of 1816, 279-81; vote on bill of 1820, 321-3; of 1824, proceedings on 322-40; Clay's speech, 323, &c.; Webster's, against, 331, &c.; Philadelphia meeting, on defeat of woolens bill, 412; Harrisburg convention, 412-14; of 1828, 414-18; southern feeling, 419-20; attempt at the session of 1830-1; to revise, 534-6; of 1832, reports on, bills, and passage of, 562-3; Verplank's bill, and Clay's compromise, of 1832-3, 583-7; bills and reports in 1842, of committee on manufactures, and of secretary of the treasury, 770-9; distribution proviso, 779; bill vetoed, 780; report of com. of thirteen, bill passed and approved, 782-3; attempt to repeal, 828; prices of goods at Richmond, 829; attacked in 1846, by the president and secretary of the treasury, 865-8; Stewart's reply, 868; bill reported, amended, passed, 871-3.
- Tassels, George, an Indian, execution of, 527.
- Taylor, General, locates army at Corpus Cristi; is ordered to the Rio Grande, 835; named for president, nominated, proceedings of convention, 874-9; letter to Alison, 879; disaffection of the whigs; Buffalo convention, 880-1; letters of Albany meeting, election, 882-3; inauguration, and cabinet, 892; message to congress, 894; his death, 910.
- Territory acquired from Mexico, propositions for government of, 894, &c.; Bell's resolutions, committee of thirteen, report of, 943-4.
- Texas, independence of, recognized, 662-5; Preston's resolutions for annexation, and speech, 703-4; Adams' speech, 709-11; proposition to annex, withdrawn, 712; annexation of, revived; treaty concluded, and rejected, 786-90; Benton's resolution, and debate on, 790-8; president appeals to the house, 798; letter of Clay on annexation of, 799-802; letter of Van Buren, 803-8; propositions for annexation, and a bill passed, 816-21; discussion, 821-7; Nashville convention proposed, 827-8.

2-15

(p. 59)

2-15

July 1826	Jacob Cott	- - 35
" "	Melinda Barnes	- 29
Aug. " "	John Cott	- 29
" "	Katherine Cott	- 29
Oct. "	Malvina Thurston	17
" "	Horace Brockway	- 59
" "	Jesse Robertson	- - 62
" "	Cand Chapman	- - 39
March 1827	Victor K. Fox	- 7
" "	Duty Staples	- 27
May "	{ Seber & Brewster } 24	
" "	Eamie Hazen	
" "	Aaron Berg Ball	- 5
June "	John P. Ludden	- - 47
" "	W. S. Hill	- 49
" "	John W. Wheaton	34 + 42
July "	John Thurston	36
Oct. "	Prescott Brewster	- 24
Dec. "	Abiathar E. Edwards	46
" "	Jacob Rich Jr.	- 43
January 1828	Isaac Fox	- - - 46
" "	Wm Smith	
Feb. "	Jathan Morse	
" "	Geo Collier	- 54
April "	Joseph Humphrey	47
May "	Theodore Whitter	40
" "	James Salisbury	32
" "	Cyrus Pendleton	110

- Cherokee Indians, controversy with, 510, &c.; memorial against removal, 511; their title disputed, 512; bills for their removal, and debate on, 514-24; subjected to laws of Georgia, 525; case in the supreme court, 526-7; their government annulled by Georgia, missionaries imprisoned, 555-6; decision of supreme court, treaty for removal, 557-9.
- Chesapeake, frigate, affair of, 223-5.
- Choctaw Indians, treaty with, 524.
- Claims of states for interest on moneys advanced during the war, 561-2; against Mexico, 665.
- Clay, Henry, commissioner to Ghent, 264, 267; on bank of the U. S., 281; on tariff of 1824, 323-31; charge of coalition against, 345; on Van Buren's nomination, 564; nominated for president, 564; resolution on removal of deposits, 605; letters on annexation, 749-802, 810; nominated for president, 809; resolution on compromise of 1850, 895; his death, 937.
- Clayton, John M., Del., on Van Buren's nomination, 554; secretary of state, 892; motion of, to disallow foreigners to vote in Nebraska and Kausas, 952.
- Cobbett, William, (Peter Porcupine,) editor of Porcupine's Gazette, 185.
- Clinton, George, 54; elected vice-president, 212; casting vote against bank, 281.
- Clinton, De Witt, nominated for president, 250; vote for, 262.
- Coalition, alleged, of Adams and Clay, 345, &c.
- Cockade, tri-colored, worn by Frenchmen, 153; black, 168.
- Coles, Edward, of Indiana, publishes Jefferson's opinion of Adams and Jackson, 428-9.
- Columbia, district of, ceded for a seat of government, 85-6; river, occupation of, 377, &c.
- Compromise, constitutional, on slavery, 70, 71; Missouri, 313, &c.; of 1850, 895-912; Clay's resolutions, 895; Bell's, 903; remarks of Benton, Calhoun and Webster, 896-902; bills passed, 905, 911-12; Benton on Texas boundary bill, 903; speeches of Seward and Cass, 912-37.
- Commerce, power of congress to regulate, 969.
- Confederation of colonies in New England, 25; government of, articles adopted, 49; defects of 52.
- Congress of deputies, in 1763, '74, '75, 46; under the confederation, how constituted, and powers of, 48; under the constitution, (see constitution, Art. I.)
- Connecticut, colony, settlement and government of, 23-4.
- Constitution, compromises of, 70, 71; amendment of, 77, 108, 210.
- Convention, constitutional, preliminary measures for, 57; meeting and proceedings of, 60, &c.
- Congress, compensation of members of, 282, 1001; state of parties in, 602; contest for seats in, 728; of Vienna, representatives to, 61.
- Craig, Sir James H., and the British plot, 248-9.
- Crawford, Wm. H., on bank of the United States, 501; minister to France, 264; secretary of war, 1815; secretary of the treasury, 288.
- Creek Indians, (see Indians.)
- Creole affair, 766-8; resolutions of Mr. Giddings, 768-70.
- Cuthbert, Alfred, of Geo., senator, on French indemnity, 624.
- Dallas, Alexander, secretary of the treasury, 233; proposes a bank, 272; report of, on tariff, 280.
- Dallas, Geo. M., senator, report of, on bank, 566.
- Davie, Wm. R., envoy to France, 179.
- Debts due British subjects, payment of, 203.
- Debt, public, (see public debt.)
- Declaration of Independence, 47, 953.
- Decrees, French, Berlin and Milan, 227-8; Rambouillet, 234; repeal decree, 258.
- Democratic societies, 116, 135.
- Department of the interior, established, 891.
- Deposits, public, removal of, from bank of the United States, 591-4; agency of Amos Kendall to negotiate with state banks, 592; meeting in Philadelphia, and effect of removal, 600; debate on, in the house, 602-6; Clay's resolutions, 605-6; Benton's, 606; president's protest, 607; Calhoun's bill to regulate, 620; bill to postpone fourth instalment, 682; passed, 689.

2-15~ (p.6)

2-15

- May 1828 Joel Morse - 19  
June " " Phillips - 39  
Aug 11 J. M. Tryon - 31  
" " Noel Porter -- 16  
Oct 2 Avery Deling - 18  
Mar " Jas W Robertson - 34  
July 1829 Willard Tuggey 54  
Sept " Otis Daggett -- 58  
July 1830 Jas Morgan - - 51  
Oct " Abel Randolph - 8  
" " John H. Moor - 32  
May 1831 Dan L. S. Richmond 32  
" " Geo Palmerian - - 45  
June " Mr Dawson - - 56  
" " Stephen Mix } 48  
" " Joseph & Cornelia }
- WATFIELD, NY 2012*

## IMPORTS AND EXPORTS

FROM THE YEAR 1821 TO 1860, WITH THE NET REVENUE ACCRUING FROM  
THE IMPORTS.

Year.	Imports, including specie.	Exports, including specie.	Net Revenue.	Imports, coin and bullion.	Exports, coin and bullion
1821	\$62,585,724	\$64,974,382	\$15,155,418		
1822	82,241,541	72,160,281	21,219,116		
1823	77,579,267	74,699,030	17,717,830		
1824	80,549,007	75,986,657	20,215,059		
1825	96,340,075	99,535,388	25,387,904	\$6,150,765	\$8,932,034
1826	84,974,477	77,595,322	18,907,478	6,880,966	4,704,533
1827	79,484,068	82,324,827	22,378,046	8,151,130	8,014,880
1828	88,509,824	72,264,686	24,890,337	7,489,741	8,243,476
1829	74,492,227	72,358,671	22,296,512	7,403,612	4,924,020
1830	70,876,920	73,849,508	22,883,573	8,155,964	2,178,773
1831	103,191,124	81,310,583	30,312,851	7,305,945	9,014,931
1832	101,029,266	87,176,943	21,488,890	5,907,504	5,565,340
1833	108,181,311	90,140,433	14,797,782	7,070,368	2,611,701
1834	126,521,332	104,336,972	13,458,111	17,911,632	2,076,758
1835	149,895,742	121,693,577	21,552,272	13,131,447	6,477,775
1836	189,980,035	128,663,040	20,325,839	13,400,881	4,324,336
1837	140,989,217	117,419,376	13,315,129	10,516,414	5,976,249
1838	113,717,404	108,486,616	15,373,238	17,747,116	3,508,046
1839	162,092,132	121,028,416	20,560,439	5,505,176	8,776,743
1840	107,141,519	132,085,946	10,159,330	8,882,813	8,417,014
1841	127,946,477	121,851,803	15,516,589	4,988,633	10,034,332
1842	100,162,087	104,691,534	12,780,173	4,087,016	4,813,539
1843*	61,173,799	84,346,480	6,132,272	22,390,559	1,520,791
1844	108,435,035	111,200,046	26,183,570	5,830,429	5,454,214
1845	117,231,564	114,646,606	27,528,112	4,070,242	8,606,495
1846	121,601,797	113,488,516	26,712,608	3,777,732	3,905,208
1847	140,545,638	158,648,622	23,747,804	24,121,283	1,907,739
1848	154,977,928	154,436,436	31,757,070	6,360,224	15,841,620
1849	147,857,439	145,755,820	28,346,738	6,651,240	5,404,648
1850	178,138,318	151,898,720	30,668,686	4,628,792	7,522,994
1851	216,224,932	218,388,011	49,017,567	5,453,592	29,472,752
1852	212,945,442	209,641,625	49,330,326	5,503,544	42,674,135
1853	267,978,647	230,452,250	58,931,865	4,201,382	27,486,875
1854	304,562,381	278,241,064	64,224,190	6,900,162	41,422,423
1855	261,468,520	275,156,846	53,025,794	3,659,812	56,247,343
1856	314,639,942	326,964,908	64,022,860	4,207,632	45,745,485
1857	360,890,141	362,960,682	63,870,903	12,461,999	69,136,922
1858	282,613,150	324,644,421	41,789,620	19,274,496	52,633,147
1859	338,768,130	356,789,462	49,565,824	6,369,703	63,887,411
1860	362,163,941	400,122,296	53,187,512	8,550,135	66,546,239
1861	334,350,453	248,505,454	39,582,126	46,339,611	29,791,080
1862	205,819,823	229,790,280	49,056,898	16,415,052	36,886,956
1863	262,287,587	331,809,459	69,059,642		

\*Nine months.

3-15

2d page

3-15

- July 1815. Gideon Goodrich 24+26  
 " " Roger Russell - 25  
 Oct " Alex Cushing - 86+87  
 " " David Sayre -- 27  
 Jan'y 1816 Henry Ellithorpe - 69  
 " " { Peter Jackson } 45  
 Feb'y 11 { John A. Jackson } 45  
 March " Elkanah Johnson = 62  
 " " Oliver Hitchcock - 46  
 May " John Benson -- 44  
 " " Sam'l Greenstell } 89  
 " " James Taylor  
 " " Lurie Pier 75-76, 83+84  
 June " John Closine -- 83  
 " " Peter Jackson - 85  
 July " Stephen & Rufus Mungas 88  
 Sept - 4 Stephen & Rufus Mungas 88  
 " " Lurie Pier - 75+76  
 Oct " Hyatt Jr. } 35  
 " " Diana King } 35  
 " " Jesse Dyer -- 34  
 Nov " John Palmer - 43  
 " " Stephen Mungas 87  
 " " Peter Colton - 88 <sup>1st reading</sup>  
 Dec " Gideon Goodrich 69 <sup>2nd reading</sup>  
 Jan'y 1817 - " March - - 81  
 Feb' " " " " - - 62  
 " " Robert Jackson 12

- New Hampshire, colony of, settled, 23.  
 New Jersey, colony, settlement of, 32.  
 New York, colony, settlement of, 29.  
 Neutrality acts, 133, 283.  
 Neutral rights, doctrines of France, concerning, 252-8.  
 New Mexico, prays against being included in Texas, territorial government for 906; bill passed, 911.  
 Non-importing association, 41-2.  
 Non-intercourse with St. Domingo, 220; with Great Britain and France, 232-5; repealed, 266.  
 North-eastern boundary, attempt to settle by arbitration, 286; settled, 784-6.  
 Nullification, advocated by senator Hayne and others. (See debate on Foot's resolutions, and South Carolina; also, Virginia and Kentucky resolutions.)
- Ohio, state of, admitted, 203.  
 Orders in council, British, 226-8; revoked, 259.  
 Ordinance of 1787, 58-9.  
 Oregon, occupation of, 377, &c.; right to, asserted by democratic convention, 810-11; bill for giving notice to Great Britain, lost, 815-16; negotiation, and position of the administration, 849-50; compromise offered and declined, 850-1; resolutions to terminate joint occupancy, 851-2; course of Adams, Giddings, and other whigs, 852-60; resolution to give notice passed, 860; failure of the attempt to mediate, announced, 760-1; debate on title, in the senate, 863-5; government for, Dix and Calhoun, Clayton's bill, a bill passed, 884-8; other territorial bills, again lost, 888-9.  
 Orleans territory formed, importation of slaves prohibited, 209; government of, 213.
- Panama mission, 352, &c.  
 Parties in convention, federalists and anti-federalists, 73.  
 Patterson, William, in convention, plan of, for constitution, 62.  
 Patriot war, 712; Caroline affair, Van Buren's proclamation, 713-14; trial of M'Kenzie and Van Rensselaer, 714-15; trial of M'Leod, 715, and acquitted, 722; case before congress, 117-22.  
 Peace with Great Britain, 52; negotiation for, at Ghent, 264, 267; concluded, 274-7.  
 Peck, James H., judge, impeachment and trial of, 533-4.  
 Pennsylvania, settled by Wm. Penn, 32.  
 Pensacola, and St. Marks, taken by Jackson, 290-2.  
 Pickering, Timothy, secretary of war, 136; secretary of state, 140.  
 Picture of battle of New Orleans, proposed, 467.  
 Pierce, Franklin, nomination of, for president, 937; election of, and inauguration, 939-40; message to congress, 940-1.  
 Pinckney, C. C., minister to France, 148, 162; reception refused, 165; candidate for president, 191.  
 Pinckney, Thomas, at London, succeeded by Rufus King, 146.  
 Pinckney, William, and Monroe, treat with Great Britain, 221-2.  
 Platforms of parties in 1852, 938-9.  
 Plumer, Wm., of N. H., testimony in favor of Adams, 455.  
 Polk, James K., on removal of deposits, 603-4; speaker, 754; nominated for president, 800; protest and confidential circular against, 811; election of, 814; his inauguration and cabinet, 831-2; announces war, 836.  
 Porter, Peter B., reports in favor of increasing means of defense, 249.  
 Postage, law, to reduce, 831.  
 Post office investigation, 531; abuses in, detected, 615-16.  
 Poindexter, George, of Miss., on president's protest, 608; resolutions of, 610; on expunging the journal, 621.  
 President, how elected, 975-6; plan for choosing electors of, 970; his powers and duties, 971-2.  
 Princeton, war vessel, explosion of, killing secretaries Upshur and Gilmer, 799.  
 Proprietary government, 30.  
 Protests of South Carolina and Georgia against tariff, 470-1.

3-15	pg 3	3-15-
March 1817	John McMurtrie	69
April "	Elijah Sayers	82
May "	Wm. Banks	52
" "	Benjamin Rexford	
July "	Reuben Douglass	54
" "	Benjamin Rexford	37
" "	John Sprine	
Aug "	Timothy Downs	54
Nov "	Geological Society	81
" "	John Sprine	82
June 1818	Sylvester Hall	
" "	Abram Sprague	81
Sept "	Phineas Royce	36
" "	David Royce	36
Nov 1819	John Jage	64
Apr "	John Mattocks	63
" "	John McNealy	29
May "	Daniel Clark	28
" "	Jonathan Cheshire	28
Sept "	Ansel Edwards	52
Apr 1820	Charles A. Hill	59
Dec 1818	Charles A. Hill	39
Apr 1819	John Swigert	15
" "	Arrin Wildes	15
June 1821	John W. Dinsmore	13
Aug "	Easton Bentley	50
Oct "	Henry Briggs	60
Oct 1821	Alex. Berry	28
Aug 1822	John W. Swigert	34
Oct "	James P. Collier	41
Dec "	John Wright	79
" "	Cold Wright	63
		Orie

3-15 (Page 4.)

3-15

Apr 1823 - Peleg J Higdon - 61

Mar 1821 Hosea M. Russell - 87

" " Eli Shore } 36

" " Benj. C. Ansden } 36

" " Jas. W. Utley - 54

March 1824 - Larm. H. C. Pinwell - 85

June 1824 Stephen Frank - 31

" " David Jenkins } 51

Nov. 1821 { Gardner & Wattles }

July 1824 { Ira Sandon } 31

" " John Frank }

Feb 1825 - Harry Miller - 43

May " Elija Stebbins - 32

June " Daniel Jenkins - 57

Aug " John C. Hungerford } 35 -

Aug " Daniel Shore }

Morris F. House } 84

Oct " Fred Compton }

John Compton - }

Francis Ford - - 61

" " John Staley - - 85

" " Israel Palmer - - 52

Dec " Thos Porter - - 54

May 1826 Adminal Birch 45

" " Albert Scott }

" " Henry Adams }

" " Lorenzo Palmer - - 32

Feby " Timothy Fraij - 23

" " John H. Birdal - 44

Aug " Israel Palmer 53

Sept " William Hopkins 85

" " Joseph Thornton 44

In 1831, a petition was presented to Congress for an appropriation for the improvement

748  
HAWAIIAN  
COUNTY  
RECEIVING

Darius, Dester, and John and Darius Dester, natives  
of Conn. removed to Herkimer Co. NY, and thence to Chaut.  
Darius Chaut. Co. Darius settled at Swillville in 1809,  
~~then~~ came to Mayville ~~this~~ in 1810. and removed to  
Dryville in 1819; John, in 1830. ~~in 1837~~ John in  
in 1837, and Darius in 1838, removed to Illy. Both were  
seized in the war of 1812. After the war, Darius held successively  
the office of <sup>Chautauque</sup> St Col & Col. John was offce Co.  
Clark in 1815 and held the office until 1820.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Ms A-9624 no

10/26/2012

We severally agree to take such  
number of copies of the "History  
of Wayne County" as is set opposite  
our respective names, on the terms specified  
in the foregoing prospectus.

Borrowing

William Clark Paid 4.00

R W. Clark Paid 4.00

William Ballenger

L. H. Mac  
D. B. Robbins Economy 1 copy

Elin Osborn Paid 5.00

WAYNE COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

*See Mayfield and Medina  
South of Mayfield*

## History of Chautauqua County.

---

The purpose of the undersigned to publish a History of Chautauqua County was announced more than a year ago. Among the numerous subjects which this history is to embrace are the following:

Preliminary history, containing a history of events relating to the county during a period anterior to its pioneer settlement, and an account of the remains indicating its occupation by an ancient and extinct people. This part of the work, not originally contemplated, will constitute one of its most interesting and valuable features. A large amount of research and labor has been bestowed on its preparation, and recourse has been had to authentic records and documents to render it fully reliable.

The settlement of the conflicting claims of different states to the territory of Western New York, including the Holland Purchase; and the tracing of the title of the settlers to their lands back through their several proprietaries to the crown of Great Britain.

The extinguishment of the Indian title; the Indian reservations, &c.

History of the Holland Purchase; its surveys, &c.

Early settlement of the county; the adventures, hardships, and privations of the settlers; a description of their rude dwellings, with stick chimneys, pole bedsteads, &c.; the manner of clearing land, early tillage, and their rude agricultural implements; early cooking; household manufacturing, including a notice of itinerant spinsters, tailoresses, and shoemakers.

Early stores, and the nature of trade; extent of the ashes and lumber trade.

Pioneer schools and school houses, the modes of teaching, and the course of instruction.

Roads, modes of conveyance and travel.

Notable incidents and amusing anecdotes illustrative of pioneer life, which cannot fail to interest the present inhabitants, and still more their descendants.

Formation and organization of the county; its early courts, its court houses and county officers.

Formation of the several towns, and names of early settlers, farmers, mechanics, inn keepers, physicians, merchants; early mills and manufactories.

Church organizations in every town, with names of early members and ministers.

Literary, benevolent, and reformatory associations; agricultural societies, &c.

1825 Jan. 21  
Mar. 3  
Apr. 9  
May 28  
Oct. 28

John L. Anderson  
John H. Chapman  
Hugh Crooker  
John Maginnis

A. W. YOUNG.  
April, 1874.

Bourkes referred by persons residing in other counties or states, will be delivered free of charge, in the towns in which they reside, as they are to be addressed to the undermentioned at Westfield, N. Y.

There are thousands of former residents of this county who have relatives as have begun practicing upon the people.

The certificate of prominent citizens appended to the foregoing Pro-  
spectus, and the exhibition of a sufficient number to be printed  
kind written by the author, are deemed a sample copy of the last work of this  
writer, which shall meet the expectation of our people, and reflect honor upon

the country, and I hope it may be of service to the editor of our paper.

The certificate of prominent citizens appended to the foregoing Pros-  
pectus, and the exhibition of a sufficient number to be printed  
by the author, are deemed a sample copy of the last work of this  
writer, which shall meet the expectation of our people, and reflect honor upon

the country, and I hope it may be of service to the editor of our paper.  
The present need of this work is limited to a single county, repaid the expense of its publication is limited to a single county, repaid the expense of its publication  
not only a great, but a bazaar one. Rarely, if ever, has a work whose  
reception, No intelligent person needs to be told that this enterprise is  
commece their labors, and it is hoped they will meet with a favorable  
the present time; but it can be no longer delayed. Contributors will soon  
be present in the country, and it is hoped they will meet with a favorable  
For sundry reasons the cause of this enterprise has been deferred to  
them again at the expense of the writer.

For sundry reasons the cause of this enterprise has been deferred to  
them again at the expense of the writer.

It will be remembered that, according to the innovation movement,  
was the assurance of the writer's best endeavors to produce a  
history which should meet the expectations of the people and  
reflect honor upon the country. The fulfillment of this pledge  
has been the primary object of his labors, irrespective of the  
time necessary for its accomplishment, believing that the people  
would rather wait for a good work than be served a few  
months earlier, with in indifferent one. The delay would be to  
them again at the expense of the writer.

It will be remembered that, according to the innovation movement,  
of this country was announced, it was hoped that the work of  
preparing it for the press would be completed early the present  
year. But with more than ordinary diligence to the present  
time, much remains to be done.

To the People of Chautauqua County.

When, nearly a year and a half ago, the contemplated history  
real and personal property, taxes, &c., at regular periods; value of  
Progress of the county in population and wealth; value of  
internal improvements, railroads, &c., at regular periods.

War history: Quases and reagents of the wars of 1812 and  
1881, and of the participation in them by the people of this  
county.

Biographical notices and genealogical family sketches.  
Not the least important feature of the work will be its pro-  
fuse embellishment. Besides pictures of buildings, it will con-  
tain portraits of a large number of citizens of the county, de-  
ceased and living, at the estimated aggregate cost of about  
\$3,000.

It is the earnest hope as well as the strongest endeavor of

the author to produce a history, unsurpassed in interest and

the variety and value of its matter, by any work of its kind.

It will contain between 600 and 700 extra pages, equal in

size and quantity to those of the History of Wayne

County, Indiana, (which will be shown as a sample); or the

same amount of matter in larger pages. It will be printed on

the paper, well and neatly bound in good cloth and delivered

to subscribers at \$5 per copy; or in half Turkey morocco, to

every subscriber at \$6 per copy.

The work will be delivered as early as can be done consist-

ently with the care which such a work ought to receive--prob-

ably in the ensuing fall.

We take pleasure in expressing our approval of the intended publication of the his-

tory of Chautauqua county, Mr. Young, as the author of works in other departments of the his-

torian history of the country, and I hope it may find a welcome in every family in the country.

And as this is the only opportunity which will be afforded them of obtain-

ing a reliable history, we cordially commend it to the public, and reflect honor upon

the country. And as the editor of this paper, I hope it may find a welcome in every family in the country.

George Barnes, John F. Peters,

William Nichols, Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick, Augustus E. Allen,

Austin Smith, C. E. Weston,

John E. Warren,

Henry E. Fenno,

Geo. W. Patterson,

James R. Campbell,

Richard E. Marvin,

Henry E. Fenno,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

Henry E. Fenno,

James R. Campbell,

Richard E. Marvin,

Henry E. Fenno,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

John F. Peters,

James A. Skinner,

George Barnes,

John F. Peters,

William Nichols,

Obed Eason,

Charles B. McCormick,

Augustus Smith,

C. E. Weston,

1818 Jan 28th Coram, 20 Oct. Dan'l S. Boston 33

Feb. 1819 July Ch. Saston 5

1819 July D. Rogers 36 lot 74 3.75

1821

1816 April. Huz. Ticknor 93 Mayville

Say Ebey Harris 29

1822 Aug John Shippway 3

Jas. McAdam 6

Rodd Cooper 4

Rick Corbin - 5

1821 Oct Nathan G. Jones 29

1823 May John Finchell 29 <sup>Mar. 1st</sup> Clinton, 10  
Jas. Lyman Harrington 16

Chas C. Fisher 16

Dante L. Andrews 9

March 1824 J. Howell 15 Am. Saston 15

1824 West Barnes Towndld 20

Orrin Parman Sept 164

Moses Lancashire 53

Habie Parsons Aug 50

Henry Saston July 47

Alanson Hale July 58

Cyrus Pickford March 46

3.14 Larkin Harrington June 45

Ezra Pickford Apr 59

W.H. Thompson, in his address at the  
meeting, observed that just as the  
American Colonization Society had  
been instrumental in securing the  
emancipation of the slaves in the  
United States, so the Anti-Slavery  
Society of the West could be instrumen-  
tal in securing the freedom of the  
negroes in Africa.

DEAR SIR: To secure the publication of the History of Chautauqua County at the earliest day possible, I respectfully request those who feel an interest in this enterprise, to assist in collecting the desired information in their respective towns. The principal subjects are the following:

Name of the first settler, when and where; and other early settlers for 10 or 12 years, and, as nearly as you can, the year of their settlement, and the part of the town, as the north part, or the south, or east, or west part, or the north-west, south-east, &c. Settlers who remained but a short time in the county, and none of whose descendants remain in it, need not be mentioned.

The first *birth* in the town;

The first *death*;

The first *marriage*;

The first *school*, where and by whom taught.

The first of each class of mechanics and other business men; as blacksmiths, carpenters, hatters, saddle and harness-makers, masons, tanners, shoemakers, tailors, tavern keepers, merchants, physicians, lawyers. To the first one of each class, you may add one, or two, or more of his early successors.

Who built the first saw-mill, and who the first grist-mill, and the year, and the place, and the name of the stream; to which you may add those built a few years later, and the present mills and the names of their owners.

The same facts in regard to carding machines, fulling mills, and all other manufacturing establishments propelled by water or steam power.

The first church formed in the town, the names of its first members, or as many as are recollect ed. If the number should exceed 10 or 12, you may omit females, and also adult males who were least known, or who have long ago removed from the county, and left no descendants here. The same in regard to churches of all other denominations; and the years and the places where their meeting-houses were built; the names of their first officers and ministers. To save time and labor in procuring these sketches of churches, I suggest that you get the pledge of some efficient member of each church to prepare it. It can be more easily done by some person in the church; but to procure sketches of the whole by one person requires much labor. The person who assumes this labor should understand, that if the desired sketch be not furnished, a suitable notice of the society can not be given in the book.

The year in which the post-office in your town was established, the name of the first postmaster, and, if you can, of one or more of his successors.

The names of Masonic and Odd Fellows' lodges, date of organization, and names of their first officers.

To all of which you will please add any incidents, anecdotes, and occurrences during its early settlement or at a later period, which you may deem suitable for a history of the county. Send in your notes in as rough or imperfect a style as you please; I will put them in order.

A number of copies of this Circular will be sent to some person in each town, who is requested to distribute them for use to such of his fellow-towns men as he may think proper, and to whom they are to make their returns at as early a day as they can conveniently do the same.

WESTFIELD, June 19, 1873.

A. W. YOUNG.

Oct<sup>22<sup>nd</sup></sup> /804 Alex Cochrane took care of

Sept 1805 Nathan Wiser <sup>Sold Samuel Wiser</sup> 1/3

No. 11 Land Cornwall 24 acres in job

Dec .. Saint Pauline 1/2x to Wm Mayman  
Mar 1806 Saint Connell - x 1/6 which was transferred

Mar 1866 As a Specie - 14  
" " does in a sum worth 1/9 Dred for 50 acre & part  
of the same town

" " Jim McFerride - 15 2nd ave S  
" " John Akers. - 14 East of RR St  
May " John Shaver 15 Webster Specimen and

May 10 Augustus Skinner 15  
June 11 x Scott Wright 11

Aug. 11 7th Crossroads } 10  
Aug. 11 8th Crossroads } 10

Spurred Towhee - L-08  
9x

July 1807 Mr. & Mrs. Brown - T<sup>n</sup>  
Stockton, N.Y. - A. B. 16-

Aug 18. 8 pm. of El Dorado, 120 miles west of Texarkana.

Oct " Another sp. 8  
" 1900, Audubon Park, NEW WESTFIELD

" 1829 2141<sup>1</sup> 1/2 in. 157  
" Bainbridge 2141<sup>1</sup> 1/2 in. 157

" " Cook & Heydon } 8 x  
" " M. & T. McCon.

" " Rich & McLean  
down 1810. \$0.00 inc. - 15%

Alie " Sam's Bar - 21-11

July 6 Soloay 12 miles (S)

" " Elkana & others - 21  
" " Robert Field - 21

" " Robert Nelson -  
" " Robert Johnson - 15  
" " John B. Smith -

July 11 Picko & Freeman

Aug 18 11 - small white bird

Aug 11 George Addison -  
" " C. W. D.

July 11 1910 Benet -

July 1814. John <sup>and</sup> Stephen Pennington

July 18<sup>th</sup> 1915 - Sapporo.  
W. in the mountains

After "A" the

Francis L. Brown, ever son of Ebenezer Brown, was born Oct. 8<sup>th</sup> 1820 at Rensselaer N H - In childhood he lived in Barnet Vt - At Newbury <sup>seminary</sup> Vt & at Meriden Academy N H were his preparatory studies for College & graduate at Dartmouth in 1843 after which for a year he studied medicine with Dr. Nelson in Barnet. After a course of ~~seminary~~ lectures at Medical Faculty in Hanover N H he completed his studies with Dr. Gerhard of Philadelphia & received the degree of M. D. at Dartmouth Medical College in 1846 & then began practice in Barnet, which he continued till 1849 & when he established himself as a practitioner at Plymouth Mass & there remained till his removal <sup>in 1851</sup> to Pittsfield Pa where he successfully ~~extinctly~~ engaged in lumbering & mercantile business & a few years later with others organized the ~~first oil co~~ <sup>producing</sup> - In 1852 he conceived the idea of refining petroleum oil & a year thereafter he with others organized the first Oil Co where efforts in that direction were followed with profitable results - Since 1861 he has resided at Westfield where for ten years he was Pres't of 1st Natl Bank.

He was one of the original stockholders of the Lock Knif's Co & in 1870 became sole owner, making the distributor, points & sales: soon after <sup>1872</sup> ~~at Chicago~~ <sup>starting the research</sup> he was appointed <sup>as</sup> State Agt to Hospital Death Fund of Major - He has several times represented Connecticut in board of Supervisors in 1872 & 3 represented this district in the Leg & was in 1874 appointed a <sup>gen't</sup> Director of the N H R R which position he still occupies -

July 16<sup>th</sup> 1848 he married Susan H. Gann of Rev Prof Herman Good of Hanover N H - Children: ~~the~~ Ebenezer

a May 14<sup>th</sup> 1849 now one of proprietors of Erie Despatch - Francis b Oct 16 1852 Frances Moody b Oct 16 1852 who married June 29<sup>th</sup> 1875 W C Fitch residing in Bufo - Geo E b July 28 1861

Artemas Herick, a native of Mass.,  
settled in Mayville in 1809, on a lot of  
80 acres of ~~of the original property of that~~  
~~when and subsequently on lot~~

and resided there until  
for about 25 years. He was married  
Eleanor Pack who died, and after death  
he married to Sally Otney of the former Co.  
He was early appointed an associate  
judge of the County Court. He had  
in his wife 5 sons and 4 daughters,  
of whom only Bela, now one living, Bela  
in Sudbury, and Thomas E. who resides  
in Westfield, Sarah Ansel Boynton.

Mr. Herick has had no children

was born in what is now Chittenden Co.  
Artemas Herick died near Mayville,  
at the house of his son. Thos. E aged 93

One Sixth 7-12  
in 1836 Ad Rec'd  
on Pet. 4487 is [6]  
soc. by [75]

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

C Nichols Bell      L. Harrington's Sm.  
J Portee &  
J Bigelow Bell  
H & J Mead's Sm  
J.C. Putnam's Sm

C Farthing  
Side over hills about a mile

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

**CATALOGUE OF PRESBYTERIAN S.S. LIBRARY,  
WESTFIELD, N. Y.**

- |                                |  |
|--------------------------------|--|
| 1 Little King                  | 79 Edwin & his pet Squirrel                            |
| 2 Tom Scott                    | 80 Bill Riggs, jr                                      |
| 3 Story of a Prophet           | 81 The Story of the Two Margarets                      |
| 4 Henry Martyn                 | 82 Truth is always best                                |
| 5 John Huss                    | 83 The Percy Family in Ireland                         |
| 6 John Knox                    | 84 The Percy Family in Scotland and England            |
| 7 George Wishart               | 85 Making the best of it                               |
| 8 Good Louise                  | 86 The Crooked made Straight                           |
| 9 The Golden Rule              | 87 The Lost Lillies                                    |
| 10 Bob the Boot Black          | 88 The Old Stone Chimney                               |
| 11 Carrie's Hard Lesson        | 89 Joy Days on both sides of water                     |
| 12 The Casket of Gems          | 90 Norman and Ada                                      |
| 13 The Lion's Den              | 91 The Circle of Blessing                              |
| 14 Amy Hall                    | 92 Witless Willie, the idiot boy                       |
| 35 The Old Church Door         | 93 Charlie Scott                                       |
| 36 The Fowls of the Air        | 94 Flora, or Self-deception                            |
| 37 An Hundredfold              | 95 Burden Bearing                                      |
| 38 Spring Work                 | 96 Ethel's Story                                       |
| 39 The Chest of Tools          | 97 Hilda, a Sequel to Ethel's Story                    |
| 40 Walter's Tour in the East   | 98 Anna Lavater  |
| 41 Walter in Jerusalem         | 99 The Lyceum Boys                                     |
| 42 Walter in Samaria & Galilee | 100 The Lestrang Family                                |
| 43 Walter in Damascus          | 101 Clayton Allyn                                      |
| 44 Walter in Constantinople    | 103 Alone in London                                    |
| 45 Walter in Athens            | 104 Festal and Floral Days in New and Old England      |
| 46 Brother Bertie's Cure       | 105 The Cottagers of Glenearran                        |
| 47 Mary Mansfield              | 106 Susan Hawthorne, or avoid temptation               |
| 48 Donald's Hamper             | 107 Life in Narrow Streets                             |
| 50 Katie's Work                | 108 Plants without Root                                |
| 51 Maggie and Bessie           | 109 Talks with Amy Dudley                              |
| 52 Jessie's First Prayer       | 110 Elder Park Garden                                  |
| 53 Nettie's Mission            | 111 Dick Fraser  |
| 54 Little Margery              | 112 A Word in Season                                   |
| 55 Margery's City Home         | 113 The Fourth of July in New England & the 5th in Old |
| 56 The Crossing Sweeper        | 114 Lillie Norris' Enemy                               |
| 57 Rosa Conroy's Lessons       | 115 Little Primrose                                    |
| 58 Ned Dolan's Garret          | 116 The Pearl of Faith                                 |
| 59 Violet's Idol               | 117 Brother Bertie and his Aunt                        |
| 60 Daisy's Work                | 118 Martyrs of France                                  |
| 61 Rose's Temptation           | 119 Willie & Lucy at the seaside                       |
| 62 Lilly's Lesson              | 120 The Sale of Crummie, or the Diamond Brooch         |
| 63 Hyacinthe and her Brothers  | 121 The Red Cross Knight                               |
| 64 Pinkie and the Rabbits      | 122 The Pearl of Charity                               |
| 65 Charlie But-                | 123 Oliver Dale's Decision                             |
| 66 Lawrence Bronson's Victory  | 124 Stage Coach  |
| 67 Christy's Grandson          | 125 The Two Brothers, or the Little Cowslip Gatherer   |
| 68 Allan Haywood               | 126 Kittie Grafton                                     |
| 69 Frank Austin's Diamond      | 127 The Two Bens                                       |
| 70 Eagle Crag                  |  |
| 71 True to his Flag            |  |
| 72 Rosa                        |  |
| 73 The Blue Flag               |  |
| 74 Fault Finding               |  |
| 75 Winifred Leigh              |  |
| 76 Harry and his Pony          |  |
| 77 Enoch Roden's Training      |  |
| 78 Victor and Hilaria          |  |

- |   |   |
|---|---|
| 128 John Carey                            | 239 Sunday School Teacher                         |
| 129 Pilgrim Street                        | 240 The Shepherd King                             |
| 130 Under the Pear Tree                   | 241 The Young Man's Friend                        |
| 131 Emily Millman                         | 242 The Word. Walks from                          |
| 133 War and Peace                         | Eden  |
| 134 Home Life at Greystone Lodge.         | 243 Progress                                      |
| 135 Helen MacGregor                       | 244 Tales & Sketches of Christian Life            |
| 136 Katie's Work, No. 2                   | 245 Ashcliffe Hall                                |
| 137 Blind John Netherway                  | 246 Stories and Pictures of Church History        |
| 138 The Boat-builder's Family             | 247 Paul Barton, or the Drunkard's Son            |
| 139 David Aspinal, the Wanderer in Africa | 248 The Spanish Barber                            |
| 140 Hetty Porter                          | 249 Tales from Alsace                             |
| 141 Consideration                         | 250 Tried in the Fire                             |
| 142 Julius and his Parrot                 | 251 Shenac's Work at Home                         |
| 143 The Railroad Boy                      | 252 Ellerslie House                               |
| 144 Grandfather's Faith                   | 253 Arts of Intoxication                          |
| 145 Marian and Jessie                     | 254 Thomas Chalmers                               |
| 146 Girding on the Armor                  | 255 Thro' the dark to the day                     |
| 147 Tim the Scissors Grinder              | 256 The Saint's everlasting rest                  |
| 160 Heroism of Boyhood                    | 257 The Old Distillery                            |
| 161 Mary's Patience Bank                  | 258 Ned Franks                                    |
| 162 Cherry the Missionary                 | 259 Nannie and I                                  |
| 163 The Two Counsels                      | 260 Frances Leslie                                |
| 172 Mistaken                              | 261 The Governor's Pardon, or the Bridge of Sighs |
| 173 Maud Grenville                        | 262 The Great Pilot and his Lessons               |
| 178 The Orphans of Glenelder              | 263 Riches without Wings                          |
| 179 The Captive Boy in Terra del Fuego    | 264 Bible Wonders                                 |
| 180 The Hard Master                       | 265 Little Jane, or the Reward of well doing      |
| 181 Tony Starr's Legacy                   | 266 Fritz Hazell                                  |
| 182 Faithful and True                     | 267 Ann Ash, or Kindness rewarded                 |
| 183 Ned's Motto, or Little by Little      | 269 Molly's Bible                                 |
| 184 Turning a New Leaf                    | 305 On both sides of the sea                      |
| 185 Sequel to Tim the Scissors Grinder    | 306 Margaret's Secret and its Success             |
| 186 Tim's Sister, or a Word in Season     | 308 The Word. House of Israel                     |
| 187 Bessie and her Friends                | 309 Exiles in Babylon                             |
| 188 Bessie at School                      | 310 Henry Arden, or it is only a Pin              |
| 189 Rosa Lindesay, the Light of Kilmain   | 311 The Story of a pocket bible                   |
| 190 Noontide at Sychar                    | 312 Mabel's Experience                            |
| 191 Squire Downing's Heirs                | 313 Theresa's Journal                             |
| 192 Christian Love & Loyalty              | 314 The Life Preserver                            |
| 193 Down the Steps                        | 315 Geneva's Shield                               |
| 194 Christie Elwood and her Friends       | 316 The Story of a Diamond                        |
| 195 Frank and Rufus                       | 317 What she could                                |
| 196 Katie Johnstone's Cross               | 318 Binding the Sheaves                           |
| 197 Alone in the World                    | 319 Diary of Kittie Trevlyan                      |
| 198 Frank's search for seashells          | 320 The Draytons & Davenants                      |
| 237 Kate Kemp and the Swan's Egg          | 322 My Mother's Gold Ring                         |
| 238 Papers for Home Reading               | 323 Winifred Bertram                              |

A Woolen Factory was built in  
by Hiram Cooley on Chautauque Creek  
about 3/4 mi south of the village in the vil-  
lage. A part of the building had been used  
for a gristmill. It continues in successful  
operations.

A Carding Machine was run on  
the creek about three quarters of a mile from Hiram's  
house and in front of it, 3/4 mi south of  
the mills bridge in the village, on little below  
the junction of the great little Ch. creek  
and a cloth drawing shop were where the  
Westfield flax mill stands. In 18  
they built a Woolen Factory (see above)

A woolen factory

7½

Dr Azro A Nichols was married  
to Clarissa A Dickson, in Rens-  
selaer, June 1<sup>st</sup>, 1852. They  
have three children, Sarah E.,  
~~born May 6, 1853;~~ Mary E.,  
~~born June 5, 1855;~~ and Lowell  
Braffton.  
~~born January 31, 1863.~~ He  
was for two years connected with  
the Daily News, Springfield, O., af-  
terwards being connected with the  
Chicago Agricultural Journal, and  
the Albany Country Gentleman, of  
which paper he is now one of the  
editors.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY, WELFIELD NY 1902

explosion and identified by the college pin fastened on his shirt.

Henry L. ~~was~~ had been Professor of Mathematics, <sup>also</sup> in ~~the~~ Gonzales College, and was killed at Port Hudson La., during Gen. Banks' memorable attack on that place June

13, 1863.

7 1/2

During the first few years after their immigration, the Nichols family endured the usual hardships incident to settlement in a new country, losing sheep from attacks of wolves, and occasionally killing a bear. Lowell Nichols

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD NY 2012

survived her.<sup>6</sup> Their names  
were Dr Agnes A., born January 31,  
1828; Harvey Brayton, born May  
22, 1829, and Henry Leech, born  
July 23, 1832. Harvey B., who  
was a rising lawyer in Texas, and  
had been President of Gonzales Col-  
lege in that State, was killed by  
the explosion of the boilers on the  
Steamer Pennsylvania at June 14,  
1857, about 70 miles below  
Memphis, Tennessee, being on his  
way from Texas to visit the fam-  
ily at Westfield. His body was  
found at Point Conception, La. 530  
miles below, ten days after the

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, N.Y. 2012

Lovel Nichols was married to a  
Sarah Knight, <sup>who</sup> ~~also~~ was also both  
native of Thetford, Vt., and a  
schoolmate in childhood;) in  
Oneida County, N.Y., September  
12, 1826. She had been for many  
years assistant principal in a  
high school, or young ladies' sem-  
inary at Aurora, N.Y., the mem-  
bers of the now noted Wells Col-  
lege. She taught her children at  
home, never sending them to school  
until they command the study of  
the Classics. She died in 1864,  
at the age of 71 years, having had  
three children, only one of whom

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESSEFIELD, NY.

3

by, 1842. Jonathan Nichols  
held the office of High Sheriff in  
Orange County Vt, for several years;  
Loren Nichols held the offices of  
town clerk and justice of the peace  
for several terms in Westfield and  
Ripley (before the ~~erection~~ <sup>ESTABLISHED 1876</sup> of the  
town of Westfield), ~~and~~ Orvis Nichols  
also held the office of Post Master in  
Westfield for many years; and  
Wiseman held the offices of jus-  
tice of the peace in Westfield <sup>and</sup>, dep-  
uty Sheriff of Chautauqua County,  
and has been for many years a  
magistrate in Paddington, O.,  
where he now resides.

~~Jonathan~~ The family settled in

and eight children, the journey  
requiring six weeks, with a three-  
horse team. The names of the  
children were as follow: Lovel,  
born Feb. 9, 1794; Olney, born  
August 30, 1795; Orvis, June 23,  
1797; Achsah, April 18, 1799; Wise-  
man b. March 23, 1801; Chloe,  
May 3, 1803; Jonathan Sackett,  
August, 29, 1805, and Lucinda,  
February 11, 1808. Olney died at  
Westfield in 1867; Orvis at Beard-  
town, Ill., 1865; Achsah at De  
Soto, Ill., 1871; Chloe <sup>Amsden</sup> <sup>Young</sup>, at Ripley  
in 183<sup>2</sup>-7; J. Sackett at Belvidore  
Ills., 1868, and Lucinda <sup>Wellington</sup>, in Rip-

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Jonathan Nichols was born July  
25<sup>th</sup> 1754 at Bolton, Worcester  
Co. Mass; went to Orange County  
Vermont at the begining of the Rev.  
olutionary war, was a private un-  
der Gen. Stark and was wounded  
at the battle of Bennington, just  
before Burgoyne's surrender at  
Stillwater, N.Y., and drew a pen-  
sion up to the time of his death.  
He emigrated with his family from  
Thetford, Vt, to Westfield, in the  
fall of 1813. His family consisted  
of his wife, Phené Sackett (a sister  
of Tiller Sackett, one of the early  
settlers of the town of Ellington.)

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY

## Eric Gazette

Vol II No 1

Published at Eric Pa Commune Jan'y. 15 1820  
 1820 by John Mc Stewart wch, \$2<sup>50</sup> per

Tonight snow very deeps.

Robert Knott absent from as P.M. at Eric.

April 15 The Phoenix & Eric Pa were published in this place  
 by Robert Knott from Harrisburg & printed especially R. Knott of  
 Margrattville L. S. has been discontinued

Philip & Sutton who now Baltimore & Philadelphia Bank  
 155

May 13 Pat Presquedale blows water Wch for Robert Wch's <sup>and Robert</sup>

Eric May 27 S B Brule water sail for Merchant marine 10<sup>1/2</sup> June  
 1 Call at all intermediate ports. usually only to distinct

line 24 - Forces at Hobac station were reduced to 10 men 5<sup>1/2</sup> to 16 Scrim

July 1 Corse Stone Building Hall Allegheny Call to be completed by July 5

R H. Knott will exchange boat for a <sup>new</sup> horse <sup>one</sup> stable

July 14 Alternative Emporium under construction on Lake Shore

Aug 19 Run 2d Horse on River called with Nick a consider  
 to go no further than Green Bay this Leavenworth - large body of  
 youth now called Potowmack Indians. Squaws young upland etc.  
 - Joseph D. Lowry & others propose publication of newspaper at Allentown

Sept 1 Proposals for carrying Mail Bag to Eric until 14 Oct. on each  
 making 90 miles

" Sept 30 Andrew Lowry & others received George Monroe for Representation  
 to present claim for damages their instruments taken from teams on roads or they  
 suffered of their state settled under act of 1792 &c

Dec 16 1820

This paper was published for "Scarecrows" etc.

amount of disaffection in ~~measuring~~ progress

Dec 16 Advertisement of Arthur Bissell & F. Darrow to run a  
mail stage once a week from Buffalo to Erie.  
Its continuance will depend on the payment of  
Decr-30. Surveyor economy by Rev Mr Campbell Erie.

1821 Jan 23

Dust the Intergas lines. at Springs - Carlisle auto job from  
Widener Pa Robinsonton Pa Salisbury Bedford Co Pa auto  
in great shape in Blair County - the Intergas says to  
"Springs 1½ miles from Powers & account to be given for destruction  
"1 Sprig Don'ts - 1 Physician Other 5 working service" Submitted by  
Petition for to clear out entrance to Green Meadow  
Somerset from all trees at 10 car's distance

Proceeds after deduction by Leg - of Penitence Committee of  
White Franklin Memorial 5,000.00 and Hardeeville 4,000\$.

1821 Stock 10 Agouti māo

From Curtis John Brown Brothers & Clark several Curtis records

March 19 My Gazette Financial Times by 1 P.M.  
For Sale

### **REFERENCES**

4. The time of sunset Aug. 18 at 7:50 pm  
Lat. the position of Gunn Harbor

1822 Nov 24 Rd Rendville, from C. W. for Conn 253 Proj

Extracts from the  
Oneida Gazette

1827 - Mosely W. Atchell - *Amphibians* & *Insects*

rest of Volume I. and  
Notes - I. v. 9. m. 84

(3) established 1827 at Water's Edge or Edge

Appreciate your kind permission to use  
your word unimpaired. I am afraid  
that as - about most structures are rather old  
and therefore difficult to get away from  
this season at present -

to the Government  
of Canada by the  
Government of Canada  
in accordance with  
the Convention  
between the  
Government of Canada  
and the  
Government of the  
United States of America  
on the  
Consular Settlement  
of 1871.

The former title is historical since it is derived from

1 Feb 23<sup>rd</sup> 1828 - "A." 1

EAST WESTFIELD

St. Paul's, N. Y., we much prefer the village  
position & great number of the different kinds  
of business there. There is a good brick building  
train the town of Brookton & we can never see  
without the same. A large  
millinery factory, a paper mill, an oil mill,  
a manufactory of glass, a candle  
factory & many other articles. The  
population is about 3000. 3 cards &  
breaking out business, 13 sawmills, 5  
stone mills, 4 lime kilns, 1  
iron foundry, 1 grist mill,  
20000 bushels of flour, 2  
cider houses, 10000 bushels of  
potash, & 10000 bushels of  
salt. It has been noted to make a salt production  
as the salt water is abundant. The  
salt is to be had at a low price.

'Over'

By advertisement in "The Standard" of  
London, August 1st, it is said that on the 19<sup>th</sup>  
July past, at five o'clock P.M., the  
Rev. Mr. H. A. H. & wife at Erie, it was  
known that they had left the steamer at  
Leeds, to arrive at Liverpool at 9 A.M. on the  
20<sup>th</sup> July. -

At 2 P.M. - New York Church in Westfield  
was closed. -

P.C. Established south part Pittsfield Hall. 1828  
H. A. Haight P.M. -

Arrived at Big Ben in Europe 1828 resident of  
Literary papers - London Literary Gazette is in a  
Collection which I made showing this tree would  
certainly have projected not more than six feet  
3000 volumes -

A N.Y. paper says Big Ben is a fossil  
and will be sent to England for 3.  
It is probably produced twice as old as  
the tree -

P.C. Pittsfield - Enclosed June 25, 1828 - It gives  
a measure of about 11' 6" in circumference  
at the top 450 lbs has been measured for its  
size & to be used for other purposes. - The only one  
ever brought into the County -

New Haven Ct. - June 25, 1828 -  
in Church -

Big Walnut said in London at 3.  
15<sup>th</sup> July 1828 says by Mr. H. A. H. & wife  
of the British Museum -

Church in Pittsfield -  
struck by lightning & destroyed July 30<sup>th</sup>.  
Mr. H. A. H. & wife in 1828 - husband Ezra H. H. -  
Architect O. W. Cheever - Name of the Mission  
Silver Creek, Ezra Convis -

The Alibiary started of Salt Spring though a  
few weeks before the 1<sup>st</sup> of August 1828 against  
the Rev. Mr. H. A. H. & wife & his wife  
had a message to him.

The Barnes & son's in town  
in 1809, 1810 & soon had to go to  
the Barnes in 1814 - 1815 at  
John Quincy ~~1814~~ <sup>1815</sup> -  
John Quincy ~~1814~~ <sup>1815</sup>  
John Quincy Bly in 1809 settled at  
Sister Creek <sup>1814</sup> - 1815 settled at  
Aske Bly - Myron Bly Jr now lives  
in Asheville - Ruben Slay from  
the same place (1814) -  
same from the same place -  
John W. B. - son of Estey, was  
born, followed him in 1811 to  
youth 70 <sup>Matthew</sup> - See - In 1811 Obi  
Brown from Canada Co in revolution  
from - Mr. Matthew See died in 1858  
in the 99 year of his age, till he  
died ~~he is said~~ Red River  
Pioneer - his service quite  
during the war - His  
children & wife during a long time from  
1811 - Having gathered lots & a  
large tract of land on the  
basis of the records, his son  
Barnes in 1809 came on with his family  
in 1811 his son & his remains & 4 sons  
Jacob R. Isaac, Fitch & Timothy, came 1811  
about 1815. The mill built about 1815  
is not built & saw will not turn  
a & stockwheels. The mill was built by  
Ruben Slay in Asheville 1810 <sup>1811</sup> a year or  
two later after that a grist mill  
& out of rock found upon his land he  
found a set of oars which were  
likely forty years - not being able  
to retire until 1872 -

left for Birmingham & Edie & Tony<sup>tongue</sup> came back  
the last to Lumberton, fat  
I was - after his settlement at the  
new to Bufford with Capt. Perkins later a major  
for he was no man of it in this "wrecker country"  
open for sale & his return on foot through  
Bufford Mill Woods about  $\frac{1}{2}$  miles beyond  
Catt Creek we heard a report of a gun & felt a  
spur similar to a "ree slings" or looking  
around & this gun was a gun. So we took  
rest in a tree. But while we remained  
& fire as the gun was still. We remained  
quietly until 8 o'clock & then I left  
the party has come at the same time  
as I did & I saw what the  
discovered. It was that the  
body of a tall man, one hundred  
pounds & <sup>Copyright Shady Quaker</sup> through the  
limbs & front (2 feet) &  
was giving to me a terrible pain.  
He had a bullet hole & it was the  
bullet which he had to the left of his  
left side he took it out of his  
right with a piece of lead & cut it what  
he now had a bullet hole, he  
had a bullet hole in his left side  
assistance upon his side & he had to  
go to the station which was about  
one mile from the place where he  
was found. Since he was found  
he attended him but for the first  
time he did not that place, after  
the time of arrival he was  
so weak he could not get up  
but he had his gun & he went to the  
station & got a doctor & a man ready  
to help him. Since he was a  
man of 17 years of age who had  
been shot in the right side made a  
bad condition - the  
bullet was in his chest. He died on

John 17<sup>th</sup> in 1795 being a native of New  
Hampshire & extraction of Purit. - he had  
immigrated from Concord N.H.  
Nov 1810 & settled in Sheridan 1813  
& removed to Maguire where he died  
July 1848 & was buried in the house where his son  
Edward C. Brigham still lives at the age  
of 77 the only survivor of son & two  
daughters - His oldest son Stephen a  
native of Mass came to Sheridan 1816  
from Madison Co. N.Y. his 2<sup>nd</sup> son  
to Sheridan 1818 ~~and~~ accompanied by his  
wife & younger brother Wilson in  
joining the balance of the family  
~~which~~ <sup>Oct 1818</sup> wife came in Oct 1818  
Wilson came up Aug 1809 & selected  
a mill site on the Houghton branch  
where he & Haines in 1810 commenced  
the 1<sup>st</sup> saw mill built in Sheridan & has  
it in operation 1811 -

In 1818 their father came in 1809  
to Sheridan his brother John -  
Wilson soon after completion of the  
1<sup>st</sup> saw mill sold out his interest to Haines,  
& Wilson took it over building  
the 1<sup>st</sup> saw mill at Maguire  
which he sold to the <sup>HISTORICAL SOCIETY</sup> ~~being~~ a subject  
to Haines a Farmer by trade who built  
a 2<sup>nd</sup> mill farmer the 1<sup>st</sup> in Sheridan  
this was on Mill Creek. Wilson after  
finishing the 2<sup>nd</sup> building, he returned  
to Sheridan & constructed the 2<sup>nd</sup> saw  
mill in S which was on Scott Brook  
in 1835 took passage with Capt. James F.  
McClellan bound for Dunkirk but as his  
sea & tree prevailed Capt. perished without  
company & Mr. Brigham died that night  
supposed to have died of Cholera. Haines  
was a good Buffalo but rather more of the  
cow than bull - Lydia wife of Barnabas Cook came  
with her family & settled in Sheridan 1822 -

Lin. & in Ohio -

John Briggleman (the next brother to Jonathan & older than Scand) these 3 are the brothers who came to Eliz. & Co. Scand never lived long enough to bring his family here) came from Madison, Ill. & took up some wild land built a log house opened a farm there he lived till Aug 1825 when his wife died one on 20<sup>th</sup> & the other 2<sup>nd</sup> in the winter he was gone at Frederica

A principal street leading out of Frederica twice on & by time of his return his son John came with wife & child came with his father & his son James married 1811 Fanny Risley son Walter born 1810 Mary Cadiz.

Sam. Nibby man from Eliz. R. I. of the James' estate & in the erection of the Mill - tinsmith & in the establishment of a school & church in Frederica, located the site of 1st grm in the large court.

When Wm. or Briggleman came 1810 he brought upon his back a pack weighing 50 lbs consisting of Carpenter tools, provisions & clothing.

A few months later than Hiram & Winson their father (Jonathan) & another son Edward came (Oct 1810) & after 3 years in Frederica removed to Mayville upon lots 52 & 53 which were selected by Winson who purchased the chance for these lots of John Dexter - In the buildings now standing on the place where occurred, 9 Oct 1811, viz. The present occupants (Edward & Winson) Father, Mother, brother, step mother a servant, Leonard Lincoln & his wife Hannah, & his wife & a tenant Mr. McHugh - Leonard Lincoln a brother of Wm. & came from Geneva 1810 & settled on lot 52 Mayville Edward Briggleman married for a wife Eliza Lincoln young widow of Wm. & son of Wm. & Mrs. J. D. & D.

Jonathan Brigham a native of Mass.  
& extraction of Puritan blood  
Emigrated from Concord N.H.  
Feb 1810 & settled in Sheridan 1813  
removed to Mayville where he died  
1848 or. The house where his son  
Edward Brigham still lives at the age  
of 77 the only survivor of Jonathan's  
family - His eldest son Stephen a  
native of Mass came to Sheridan 1816  
from Madison Co. N.Y. his 2<sup>nd</sup> son  
to Sheridan 1810 ~~and~~ <sup>at</sup> joined by his  
wife & younger brother Wilson in which  
~~joining~~ the balance of the family  
~~joined~~ this also came in Oct following  
Wilson came up Aug 1809 & selected  
a mill site on the 6th Holmes' tract  
where he & Haver in 1810 commenced  
the 1<sup>st</sup> saw mill built in Sheridan had  
it in operation 15/11 -

Jonathan their father came in 1808  
to Mayville his brother John -  
Wilson soon after completion of the  
1<sup>st</sup> mill sold out his interest to Haver,  
& Wilson took contract for building  
the 1<sup>st</sup> tannery building at Mayville  
which he executed he being a carpenter  
& Haver a Farmer by trade who built  
a small tannery the 1<sup>st</sup> in Sheridan  
these were on Mill Creek, Wilson after  
finishing the Co building, he returned  
to Sheridan & constructed the 2<sup>nd</sup> saw  
mill in S which was on Scott Brook  
in 1835 took passage with Capt. Simon Fox  
from Erie bound for Dunkirk but as bad  
weather prevailed Capt. passed without  
landing & Mr. Brigham died that night  
supposed to have died of Cholera. Haver  
sovereign Buffalo but neither none of the family  
ever knew - Lydia wife of Barnabas Cook came  
with her family & settled in Sheridan 1822 -

- 4
- " " Luther Stiles - 1  
" " Will Baudell - 8  
" " and 13 and 29
- Aug 11 Jesse D. Hingom - 28
- Oct 7 " Rebecca McRee - 6
- " " Stephen Ramsey - 4
- Nov " David Knight - } 25  
" " Isaac Mallory - }  
" " Addison Peacock - 8
- Feb 1816 Thos W. Chintick - 16
- Apr " Fann Denning 19, 27 + 32
- " " Simeon Grinnell - 1
- " " Benj Evans - 17
- " " Calvin Amesden 11
- " " John Horne - 39
- June " Bevij Amesden - 11
- July " Ada Hull - - 11
- " " Thomas Horne - 9
- (Oct. " ) 11
- Dec " Lydia Lightner 5
- Feb 1817 Frank Lichlow 32
- Mar " John Patten 61
- " " Elijah Conant } 1
- " " Gilbert Stearn }
- " " Anna E. Macomber 32
- " " Ann M. Miller 6 + 20
- Apr " Reuben Grant - 11
- " " Dyer Carver - 27
- " " Timothy Pope 25
- June " Theodore Hurlbut - 20
- Aug 1818 Dyer Carver - 20
- Aug 11 Jesse Holler } 35
- Feb 11 Charles Saxton - 33
- July 1818 Saml & John Benton 33
- Oct 11 Nathaniel Jones - 29
- July 1822 Ebenezer Harris - 29
- Sept 1823 Richard Gaynor - 16
- Aug 1823 William Reddington - 16
- Mar " Wm J. Howell } 15
- " " Wm. Sexton - }
- May " John Mitchell - 29
- " " Cha T. C. Pepper - 16
- Apr " Daniel S. Andrews - 9
- " " Wm J. Howell 15
- March 1824 Benjamin Bondeffot 20
- Oct 11 Thos 13 Campbell 18

4-14

4-14

Sept 1811	John Engle	28
Oct "	Orange Smith	31
" "	Elias W. Hutchins	
Dec "	John McMahen	5 + 15 chd.
" "	Port McLeanland	17
March 1812	John Newcomer	25
April	Wm. Garrison	27
" "	Horace Potter	33
" "	Eli J. Park	
" "	Grizzia State	12
" "	Wm. T. L. C. A.	
June 1812	Horace Bentle	29
Sept 1812	Wm. Smith	19
" "	Wm. & Isaac Smith	25
" "	James W. Garrison	18
" "	Frederick Rogers	
" "	James & John McLeanland	17
" "	Wm. Dickerson	2
" "	Tho. S. Jr. Jr.	12
" "	Nicholas Glazier	3
" "	Joel A. Clark	12
" "	Josephine Garrison	3
" "	Wm. Lovett	31
March 1813	Benj. Hutchins	31
" "	Oliver Johnson	6
" "	Daniel Dodge	18072
May "	John Garrison	25
Aug "	Andrew Kelsey	30
Sept "	Wm. Dickerson	31
" "	John Smith	
" "	Frederick L. Jr.	17
May 1814	Wm. Bancell	2
" "	Jonathan Nichols	2
June "	Daniel Andrews	2
Sept "	Daniel Andrews	2
Jan 1815	Rufas S. Reed	13
March "	Geo. Case	8
Apr "	J. & I. Clark	4
May "	Gard Andrews	2
" "	Wm. Garrison	
" "	Geo. L. Jr.	4
" "	Wm. H. Coker	5
June "	Moses Hurlbut	19

4-14  
July 1824 John Chamberlin 29  
Aug 1825 John T. Thistle - 9  
May " Hugh Cochran 28  
July " Saml Gracey - 28  
Oct " John McElroy 28  
Oct 1826 Isaac Sackett - 25  
Apr 1830 Augustus A. O. Stowell 9  
June " Henry Abel - 18  
June 1831 Stafford Godfrey 20+21

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Philadelphia City Directories give Paul

1798

Busta name - Borckley & T. May 1870

Paul Buste Gentleman Corn Street & fifth

1800 name not in directory

" 1801 Paul Buste gentlman \$12 - St.

1802

" Paul Buste Merchant 12 - below High St

" 1803 Do " " "

" 1804 Do " " "

" 1805 Do " " "

1806

" Buste Paul Merchant \$12 near High St

1807 name not found

" 1808 Merchant 12 near Chesaquet "

1809 Do 1917 Do

1810 not found

1811 not found

1813 not on

1814

1815 not on

1816 not on

1817 not on

1818 not on

1819 not on

COPYRIGHT OF  
MONROE COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

I desired to know more of Mr. Buste's residence  
Philadelphia but could not learn from anyone in the Bureau or elsewhere

I saw a very intelligent old gentleman nearly  
90 yrs of age who knew Mr. Borckley, says he was an  
extraordinary quiet man, & he thinks he resided out of  
the city limits some years before his death  
E. F. Foster

The first store is said to have been kept at  
at Villanova, [Wright's Corners,] by Grover & Norris,  
the next, by Joseph Hopkins - Present merchants -  
Maples & York. The first merchants at Ham-  
let, it is said, were Daniel Cross and Asel Good-  
year, about 1827. Present merchants - Dry Goods,  
Shepard & Sessions, Brothers; Wilcox & Clark; Atka  
C. & Son. Hardware, John C. Mount & Son.  
Grocer - Edwin Lecworthy

CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

P.M.

Richard L. Gray - Potomac  
Richard L. Gray, who suc-  
ceeded R. Barrett, was born  
on the 11th day of Feb. 1827 at  
Boston, Mass. Co. N.Y. in 1842  
went to the Printers trade, in the  
office of the ~~Cattaraugus~~  
~~Whig~~ at Ellicottville Cattaraugus County and in the  
year 1848 ~~was~~ engaged  
with its original proprietors  
to sell in the publication  
of steel traps in which busi-  
ness he continued until 1854  
when he retired into the busi-  
ness of business at Ellicott-  
ville. He was one of the  
so-called Commissioners of Cat-  
taraugus County from 1853  
to 1855 appointed by Gov. Hunt  
In 1856 removed to Seneca  
was appointed the supplies

1861-entering upon the  
discharge of the duties  
of his office the 17<sup>th</sup>  
of that month. His  
ancestors were among  
the first settlers of New  
England - emigrating from  
England to Massachusetts.  
His grandfather was for some  
years a soldier of the Rev.  
olution.

obituary sketches of the  
late Rev. Barrett from  
which you will be able  
to glean all the infor-  
mation you require in  
regard to him

Yours truly  
R. L. Cony

Judge Foot - I have written  
a brief sketch above. I do  
not know exactly how  
much of this may be  
relevant to <sup>your</sup> purpose. You  
will of course use only what  
is so. I also have procured

COPYRIGHT  
WESTFIELD HISTORICAL SOCIETY  
WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Pell Barrett  
died at Dunkirk  
privately. Cota Co Fe  
History

COPYRIGHT HAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

- Cat. John J. Sonnett's Remains,  
carried off - p 2.
- Robert Capt Gen. John Morgan's Ad-  
venture & escape - p 7
- War Meetings in Jamestown p 32
- Lincoln's Assassination. 56
- Liberia Prison - Reminiscence 57
- (Inquiry about Rebel Prisons -  
Somall (?) executed.)
- Gerrit Smith's Speech 68
- Fort Pillow Massacre 74
- Soldiers' Festival (Elliott) 80
- Frauds in Soldiers' Votes 104
- Riot in New York - 107
- Attempt to burn the City 116
- Greenbacks. Manufacture of, 123  
Slow burning fire in Battle 136 [145]
- Rebel Invasion 156
- Mass Meeting in Jamestown, May 3, '61 169
- Departure of James L. Lewis boat. 172
- Chautauqua Boys in Washington, 180

Departure of the 112 Reg 186  
13000 Troops thrown into Va 187  
President's Message

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY, WESTFIELD, NY 2012

# Cochran Families

Alexander Cochran, from Ireland, settled in 1804, on the farm where his son, John now resides, 1 mile west of Quincy. This family, ~~saw~~ and the families of his two brothers, Robert and Hugh, who came about 14 years later, were from the north of Ireland, and of the class called "Protestant" or "Scotch Irish." He is believed to have been the first settler in the present town of Ripley. The children of Alexander Cochran were: 1. John, born March 7, 1796, who married Mary T. Shifbry. 2. Nancy, wife of Hon. A. Robinson, of North East. 3. Hugh, who m. Rachel Hamton, of North East, and is deceased. Mrs. Cochran resides in Baltimore, Md. 4. Alexander, unmarried, resides at Chicago. 5. Robert, who m. 1st, Catherine Denison; 2d, Julia Bernard; resides at Austinburg, O. 6. William, who m. 1st, Laura Fairchild; 2d, Mrs. Caroline Soolittle; resides in Penn. 7. Samuel, died at 17. 8. Margaret, wife Geddiath Loomis; resides in Westfield. 9. James, who m. Nancy Johnson, and resides in Ripley. 10. Martin, who m. Helen Gates, and is deceased. 11. Andrew, who married Catherine Moore, and is a Presby. minister, residing at Durhamsville, Broida Co., W. Y. 12. David, died in childhood from falling into a tub of hot water. 13. Eleanor, wife of Samuel C. Dickson, ~~and resides at Lancaster, Iowa. Mr.~~ <sup>the former</sup> ~~and resides at Lancaster, Iowa. Mr.~~ Dr. died a few <sup>years</sup> ago. They removed to Independence, Iowa, where Mrs. D. and family reside. Mr. D. died a few years since at Coloma, Mich., while on a visit at that place.

John Cochran, son of Alexander Cochran, came with his father to Ripley Chautauque, (now Ripley) when he was about 8 yrs. of age, and now resides ~~now~~ on the farm taken up by his father in 1804. He married Mary T. Shifbry, and had eleven children: ~~to~~ John John's children were: Mary, Sally, Mary J., all of whom died between the ages of 4 and 14 years; Martin, and Martha. 2. Nancy's children were: Rosanna, who m. Davidson M'Cord, and resides in Phila. Alex., who m. Catharine Ely, and is a banker in Pittsb. Nancy, wife of Dr. Alex. Cochran, who died in Westfield, and left a son Hon R. The widow res. with her mother, widow of Hon. Robinson. Thomas, m. and is a Presb. minister at Harrisburg, Pa. 3. Hugh's children: his, ~~father~~ two are living: David, grammarian, res. at Pittsb.

# Alvin Plumb, & Family.

Alvin Plumb was born at Paris Oneida Co., N.Y., Sept. 6, 1802, and came with his parents to Fredonia in 1810 with his elder brothers, Joseph and Ralph, who established a store at that place. From 1820 he was a clerk in stores at Rochester and Geneva for several years; and at the latter place also attended school at the academy. In 1824, he commenced the mercantile business at Jamestown, and continued it until 1832 or 1833. He was also engaged in the milling business 14 miles below Jamestown on the creek, near its junction with the outlet of the lake Chautauqua lake. In 1842, he was elected clerk of the county. He was a member of the Assembly in 1833, and again in 1837. In 1843 he was elected County Clerk. After the expiration of his official term, he removed to Westfield, where he was for many years engaged in the purchase and sale of lands in the county. He was the first to propose the running of a steamboat on Chautauqua lake. A company was formed for this purpose, and a boat commenced running the 14th of July, 1828. On the 24th of Aug. 1871, Mr. Plumb was on the steamboat Chautauqua when about to land at Mayville, her boiler exploded, killing 8 persons and seriously injuring several others, among whom was Mr. Plumb, who was badly crippled for life. He has been an active friend of the Temperance and anti-slavery causes. He married at Westfield, in 1832 to Mary Ann Davis of Westfield, and had 5 children, of whom two died young. 1. Elizabeth, wife of Capt. Harmon J. Bliss, who died in the late war in the battle of Chancellorsville, leaving a son, Harmon J. 2. Arthur R., who also was in the late war; and was severely wounded in the second battle of Bull Run. He resides at Carthage, Missouri. 3. Samuel Davis, who married Sarah Graham, and resides in Willow, Niagara Co. N.Y.

3. Victoria, wife of Wm. Johnson. 4. Eleanor, wife of Hugh Johnson [See Johnson Family.] 5. Hamilton, m<sup>r</sup>. and removed to Beaufort, N.C.; served in the late war, and was drowned in Duck river, Tennessee. 6. Julia B. wife of Isaac Cockran. 7. William, who m<sup>r</sup>. Sarah Hall, d. of David Hall of Westfield, lawyer, &c. in Lawrence, Kansas. 8. Sarah A., who m<sup>r</sup>. Francis John and res. in Missouri. 9. James, who removed to Clinton, Kansas, and died there. 10. Joseph Addison, married, and resides in Chicago. 11. Hugh, unmarried, res. in Kansas.

COPYRIGHT © 2024 LIBRARY OF CONGRESS  
HISTORICAL SOCIETY OF WESTFIELD

~~1860~~  
Jedediah Orce, from Saratoga County, settled in 1810 in the s. w. part of the present town of Ellery. About the year 1850, he removed to Devilleville, where he died in 1863. He had 8 sons and 2 daughters. William, his eldest son, emigrated in 1850 to the present Westfield, <sup>now Westborough</sup>, on the farm first occupied by Col. James McCormack, settled in 1802. The settle was elected Sheriff in 1858 for the term of three years. He married Caroline Ait, and had 3 sons, Hiram, the eldest, m<sup>r</sup>. Mary Ann McElhinney, and was killed in the late war at Petersburg, Va., Jan 28, 1864. Lafayette, another son, died at Cleveland in 1854.

David L. Cochran, a native of Pa., came from Cayuga Co. to Westfield in 1816 with his father. In 1817, at the age of 21 years, he built a saw-mill below and near the village. He had previously gone through a course of study for navigator. He was also surveyor, and he surveyed in the village and its vicinity, striking the Post road and the ancient road running east from the Amherst road. He also surveyed for the Holland Land Company, and subsequently for the Stewart Company. He still resides in Westfield now where he first settled. He had a son, David A., who died Jan. 1873; and a daughter, Ellen A., wife of Wm. Law, Jr. residents of the village. D.L.C. married a daughter of John Bremer, from Mass., who settled in 1813 about 2 m. east from Westfield village; moved and in 1838, to where Chicago now is, and died in Illinois.

Thomas A. Osborn,<sup>copy</sup> from Troy, Rensselaer Co. to Fredonia, in 1821, thence to Mayville in 1822. He was for several years a law partner of Jacob Houghtow at Fredonia, both those places, and often with Hon. John Burdett, previously Judge of the Eighth Judicial District, who settled in Mayville; and still later with Geo. A. Green Jr. He is still in continuous practice of his profession in Mayville, in his 80th year. He was a member of Assembly in 1834. He held the office of Deputy Collector of Customs under Govm Clinton in the City of New York under George C. Bronson and subsequently under Herman J. Redfield, during the administration of President Pierce. He was married to Mary W. Miller, and after her death to Mary J. Weston, of Saratoga Co., and after to Mary Derby (?) of Mayville, his present wife. His son Gustavus A. died for a time associate editor with his father in the of the Fred. Express with his father, died at 20. A daughter Mary died at 22, at S. C. Albert B. son of present wife.

Israel Palmer, a native of Hutchins Co. emigrated in 1817 to Ripley, and settled in the county of Tioga, where Johnson now resides

GRANGE  
CULTURAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

in Westfield. 3. Rachel, 2d wife of Alpheus Moore,<sup>4th s. d. about 1800.</sup> & Margaret, unmarried.  
4. Alex<sup>t</sup>, who m. 1st, Eliza Howard; 2d. Rachel, d. of Hugh Cockran, and res.  
in the town of Westfield.<sup>7th s. d. about 1800.</sup> 5. Hannah, wife of Nathan Smith, and res. in Buffalo.  
6. Elizabeth, wife of John Thompson; 10. Harriet, wife of Geo. L. Fayfield; the last  
three all residing in Buffalo. 7. David, unmarried. Mrs. Mary Jane Cockran  
died.

Hugh Cockran, from Ireland, settled in 18<sup>00</sup>, in the north-west part of the  
town of Westfield, near the lake, where he died early in 1854, and where his son  
Wm. H. now resides. His children were: 1. Nancy, wife of John Shair, and res.  
in Minn. 2. James, d. at about 20. 3. Sarah, wife of David Johnson, both dec.  
4. John, who died at about 18. 5. Alex<sup>t</sup> who d. at about 23. 6. Wm. H. who  
m. Nancy Johnson. 7. Rachel, wife of Alex<sup>r</sup>. son of Robt. Cockran. 8. Eliza,  
who died at about 18.

### James Montgomery

James Montgomery was born in Co. Pa., and settled in 180<sup>0</sup>, about 2 mi. west of the village of Westfield, there being but one family in the county. The town of Chautauque was formed from the town of Batavia in 1804, and at the first election of town officers, held in 1805, Mr. M. was elected Town Clerk. He was frequently elected to other town offices. He was one of the members of the first Presbyterian church at the Cross Roads, as (now Westfield) the first organized church in the county. He was early chosen a ruling elder, and held the office until during the remainder of his life. He died married Sarah Taylor in Pa. Their children were: 1. William, drowned in the creek at Westfield, at the age of 14. 2. Alex<sup>t</sup>, who Powerful of the Westfield Academy; afterwards minister of Presb. churches at Beaufort, Miss., Chicago, and Beloit, Wis., where he died in 1858 or

John, m. Philena Livingston; reside at Pittsb. Now married at Pittsb.; was a  
lieut in the late war, and promoted to the office of col.; and was in Libby and Andre-  
son prisons. Samuel, unm. and resides with his mother in North East.

3. Hugh, who had 6 ch. & living: Julius, residing in Baltimore; Josephine wife  
Edward Lawrence, Baltimore. - 4. Alex<sup>r</sup>. 5. Robert, Chil.; Susan, wife of John  
Millard; reside in this. Nancy, res. in Ohio. Mary, now in France. By 2d  
wife: Frances, wife Mr. Moore, in Elgin, Ill.; Sophia, Lucy, Alex<sup>r</sup>, Catherine,  
dec., Julia, Emma, Robert, William, deceased. 6. William. Ch. Henry, m. dec. Sarah,  
dec. Harriet, wife of Rue Hutchins, in O. David, m. and res. in O. Luther, who died  
at Gordonville, Va. Avery, m. and res. in Miles. is teacher in the Deaf and Dumb  
Asylum, Sheldon, Nebraska. Andrew, m. and resides in West. Alice and John,  
who res. in Ohio. 7. Samuel, d. at 17. 8. Margaret. Ch. Nancy, wif. of Simon  
McCord, of North East, who served in the late war. Henry Susan, wife of Frank Hall,  
of Westfield. Henry m. Driggs, and resides on the farm. Ella, unm.  
9. James, Ch. Joseph, m. Jessie Fisher, Corning; Elizabeth Farmer, m.  
Helen Moore, and res. in Kansas. Kate, Mary, Sarah, Lucretia, James A., Chas F.  
10. Martin. Ch. Edward, Rose, Mrs. Luther. 11. Andrew. Ch. John, Andrew,  
Levi B., Catherine. 12. David d. 13. Eleanor Oli. Mary, wife of Charles  
Taylor; Alex<sup>r</sup> d. at 16<sup>(?)</sup>. William, Samuel, d. young; Franklin, Rose. from  
others also d. young.

Robert Cochran, brother of Alex<sup>r</sup>, above mentioned, emigrated from Ireland, to and settled in the present by Ripley, Oct. 31, 1815, on the farm on which  
was by and occupied by his son David now resides, his son David now resides,  
where he and on which he resided until his death in Oct. 1854. He had by  
his first wife, a daughter, Jane, born in Ireland, and wife 2d wife of Phil  
Stevens of the town of Westfield. He married,  
2d, also in Ireland, Mary Jane <sup>Wife of Stevens (?)</sup>, by whom he had children, of whom  
the first were born in Ireland: 1. Nancy, 2d wife of Higgins;  
Isaac, who m. Julia, daughter of Geo. Montgomery, of Westfield one of the first settlers.

May 1831 Henry Lovell - - 30  
 " " See Ellis. - - 79  
 June " Wyman & tile } 53  
 " " Franklin Parker }  
 " " Hiram Winter - 48  
 " " Walter S Burgess. - 40

### A STATEMENT

EXHIBITING THE VALUE OF CERTAIN ARTICLES EXPORTED ANNUALLY FROM  
 1821 TO 1852, INCLUSIVE.

Year.	Cotton.	Tobacco.	Rice.	Breadstuffs & Provisions.
1821	\$20,157,484	\$5,648,962	\$1,494,307	\$12,341,901
1822	24,035,058	6,222,838	1,553,482	13,886,856
1823	20,445,520	6,282,072	1,820,985	13,767,847
1824	21,947,401	4,855,566	1,882,982	15,050,484
1825	36,846,649	6,115,623	1,925,245	11,634,449
1826	25,025,214	5,347,208	1,917,445	11,303,496
1827	29,359,545	6,577,123	2,343,908	11,685,556
1828	22,487,220	5,260,960	2,620,696	11,461,144
1829	26,575,311	4,982,974	2,514,370	13,131,858
1830	29,674,883	5,580,365	1,986,824	12,075,430
1831	25,289,492	4,892,388	2,016,267	17,538,227
1832	31,724,682	5,999,769	2,152,631	12,424,703
1833	36,191,105	5,755,968	2,744,418	14,209,128
1834	49,448,402	6,595,305	2,122,272	11,524,024
1835	64,961,302	8,250,577	2,210,331	12,009,399
1836	71,284,925	10,058,640	2,548,750	10,614,130
1837	63,240,102	5,795,647	2,309,270	9,588,359
1838	61,556,811	7,302,020		

3-15	(146)	Ainsel Edwards	- 27	3-15
Apr 1830	John Hill	-	{	
May "	Israel Palmer	52	}	
June "	Justus Otis	-	89	
" "	James Frenchell	--	15	
" "	Horatio Cone	--	36	
Sept "	Tim Corry	--	56	
" "	John Benson	-	54	
Nov "	Abraham Grupper	-	53	
Dec "	Tim Corry	--	55	
Jan 1831	Job Macomber	42		
Feb "	John Thorp	72		
" "	Tim Gileach	40		
Mar "	Sam Barnes	43		
" "	Morris Hause	86		
May "	Geo W Howard	64		
" "	Sethia J Melong	-	50	
" "	Rubben C Holland	-	49	
" "	Nelson Argall	-	50	
" "	Barney J. Wells and wife	-	43 (over)	

miter is taken off his  
please to let the baver  
have fifty sets  
and charge the same  
to me it will be  
*Canaan Jordon*

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

A. Crawford

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Town Clerk of Hinsdale N.Y.

Dr Sir, My mother Sybil violette down of over look  
was born in our town in ~~1795~~ and married Samuel Forte of Gell  
in 1815 ~~and settled~~ In 1820 I was elected a member of the N.Y. Legislature and  
from the County of Ulster  
on the petition for a new town ~~the petition was granted~~ and a reporter  
in its favor and gave the name of Hinsdale to the new town in  
honor of the birth place of my mother. This a very good agricul-  
tural town in Coeymans County - As the County is now nearly ag-  
ricultural history of these towns. The Town Clerk of that town has requested  
me to give <sup>the only</sup> history of that town now 53 years old - I shall give them as  
a fact the way they have been come to be named Hinsdale after your  
town & I should be grateful to give them a florid description of your

Following particular order as  
convenient

Size of your town

length on Creek River

what the width of your meadows

When incorporated

From what did your town derive its  
name? I think it is not derived  
from England for I don't find the  
name in English Gazetteer

and only your town are in Rush  
Shire County <sup>AUCH</sup> Clap and the one in NY

Towson

Stately

concerning my Long-since-arrived  
affection - long  
my worth to dep.

COPYRIGHT CHAS. A. COOK, COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Pine Street School House

Contract Hayes & Brew to build Dated Octr 31 1821

Carpenter & Joiner work \$80. In boards \$2 a hundred

Jesse Smith bought first winter Commencement Jan'y 1822.

R F Fenton bought summer 1822

Col Oliver Sherman moved in County fall of 1828  
He then first caps new bridge at Steam Boat Landing  
and before that no road opened over Swamps above Pine Creek

A Wait moved to Village 1820

A Wait bought land of me about \$30 acre

COPYRIGHT CHATHAM AUDIUM  
BY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

~~beginning~~  
Lebas & Schiff  
~~Do~~  
Eduard F. Rootes

~~Within list of accounts~~  
Jan. 25/49.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

~~beginning~~  
Lebas & Schiff  
Eduard F. Rootes

Post Office Moller

Fredonia Post Ch Rm 11½ Brodway Postor dedicated  
Sunday last 25<sup>th</sup> Jan 1836 in 2½x48x53 brick  
March 2<sup>nd</sup> 1836 Census Month has set in Caldwell  
Heavy snow had been winter there for many years  
March 30 more ice in Lake than for 20<sup>th</sup> yrs past

April 13 1836 S Thompson has written from H.  
British Beacon

May 1<sup>st</sup> 1836 11:15 A.M. Fletcher just married his  
brother (see Town Notice above)

Patricia Felt established at Wren St. in K.  
City, New York all winter

July 6<sup>th</sup> '36 Pat of great talents & nice music &  
A cast to follow

W Patchin Clerk in 20<sup>th</sup> of ADP Aug 1836 &  
ADP elected Clerk Bank of Tracy.

Wm. W. Duncans  
taken from Census  
Land Office Mob Va  
1836

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

No time reservation  
Burke's prolongation  
Court Eagle March 28 1820 No. 45

Roote declines Senate Eagle March 28 No. 45

High Court will adjourn to July 1 August 1826

✓ T. J. H. & Co. decided for him, 1830  
Burrall & Symmes wrote note Answer Oct 20 1830

Answer April 20 1831 & Burwell had majority  
and it was sometimes sufficient Judge Taft Oct 27/31  
Burwell Johnson went to the Lent to Albany;

Wm. L. Chen.

✓ I enclose to open my account <sup>beginning May 29, 1831</sup> for you £72 Roote  
119, re 1831 & 2 issues, days Burwell  
and on June 8 1831 says to enclose 930058 to (Leverton)  
100 subscribers 10 Shillings each year and 10 Shillings remainder  
at interest according to such rates as

✓ 1st class £77 James Hall, Bank Bentlly, R. Miller,  
Other Hartman Jr. Bradbury, Oliver Lee, L. Park, F. G. C. Hartley  
John Sherman, J. Blaine, W. Rotch - £77 including Post

Sabbath School

Wester anti-Dec 21-87



J. J. Foot Esq P.M.

Jamesstown Chautauq Co.

NY

COPYRIGHT CHARTER  
JADSON COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY  
WESTFIELD, NY 2012

Genealogy

Vol. II-3  
Joshua 25-21-22

Christopher Todd 1686

Christopher Todd of New Haven makes his will 25 March 1686.

Be it witness whereof body he be .

To my eldest son John Todd upon thine hundredth year give him <sup>with</sup> the dwelling house thamelot where he resides —

Unto Samuel what I have already given him in his possession dwelling house &

Michael house thamelot bought of John Payne the fourth lot.

My daughter Mary Baffett in full proportion £20

To Grace Todd my loving wife full sum used of my dwelling house, Wood, Garden, &c & my sons keeping all my expenses & my three sons paying <sup>RICHARD CHAPMAN</sup> annually unto her £20, & all the furniture here absolutely to her use if; or if she does not dispose of them then to my sons

Richard Mattacks £5.5. for that he may claim for my dear Grace.

Unto my Grand children sons of my daughter Mary deceased (late wife of Isaac Turner) 20/- apiece as a token of my love and their full portion

All the rest of my estate equally between my three sons.

My son John, & Samuel joint executors

Christopher Todd <sup>his</sup> <sub>month</sub>

Inventories including mill £989.3.8.

Michael Todd

Administration granted on his Estate April 1713 this witness

Elizabeth Todd - Inventory. £388.18.8.

Childrens names <sup>& ages</sup> Elizabeth, Benjamin 19 yrs, Gistow 16, Sarah 14,

Michael 12, Hannah 10, girls 8, Elizab'th, Jethro 7 yrs.

Mother Guardian youngest child

## Samuel Todd

Mary Todd & Jonathan Todd executors presented will of Samuel  
Todd dated 6<sup>th</sup> April A.D. 1714      Samuel <sup>his</sup> & Todd <sup>mother</sup>  
 $\frac{1}{2}$  part of Real & personal to my wife Mary the personal  
absolutely & the real during her natural life  
into my son Samuel Todd the farm whereon he now lives  
58 acres also 10 acres meadow which is his full portion  
All my other real estate of which I may die seized unto  
my other three sons Joseph, Daniel & James  
My daughter Mary Eaton & My daughter Hannah Weston  
£10 each with what they have had in full  
My daughter Abigail Gilbert £5 with what she has received full  
My daughter Mary Todd £55 her full portion  
any residue going to my sons Daniel, Joseph & James

## John Todd

Administrator allowed in his estate unto Caleb Tuttell in eight  
of his wife Sept 4 1727 - Inventory £136=14.0.

## Josiah Todd

Aaron Todd executor to 26 July 1729. unto Hannah Todd  
my wife all my moveable estate for paying my debts & cost for life.  
Abraham Todd my son, all my real estate except use of my thin portion for life.

## Caleb Todd

Administrator to Mary his widow. Month 7<sup>th</sup> 1731/2 total £344,14,4.  
Heziah his son made Administrator of Stephen Todd of Wollingford guardian  
Phoebe Todd minor daughter of Caleb April 24 1741 chose  
Samuel Todd of Motesbury his guardian

June 17 1757 Ruth his guardian of Battiss daughter of Caleb

August 30 1745 Samuel Todd of Motesbury discharged from his guardianship  
but, he producing receipt of Phoebe wife of David Blakeslee of Motesbury for  
her full portion of her late father Caleb Todd's deed.

Benjamin Todd

Will dated 30<sup>th</sup> May 1751  
unto his wife by date 1/3<sup>rd</sup> November

Elder son Benj Todd - Son Titus - wife Mrs Titus  
daughter Lucinda Brocket - wife Patience, Eldest child Todd

David Todd August 1762

Administrator granted to Susanna his widow  
Mary, his mother appointed guardian. She is the only child

Caleb Todd (late of Wellington)

Administrator of estate to his widow, Esther, February 1770  
Estate £274.16<sup>8</sup>d. Children Caleb & Ruthie

Gershon Todd - Dec 1770

Administrator to Ruthie his widow

The New Haven Land records (previous to the  
town of North Haven being set off as a separate  
town) show that the Todds owned considerable land  
in the Parish, afterwards town of North Haven -

The town of North Haven was set off AD 1786.

One of the last conveyances in North Haven land records  
was Gideon Todd to his son Caleb Todd in con-  
sideration of love & natural affection. Dated Jan 29 1785

This Caleb Todd was the father of Lewis G.

and sold this land about 1795 & removed to Fairfield Co.  
Genesee County NY, & again to DeWittville Clinton Co.  
NY about 1820, he taught the (Southworth) farm  
where the County Poor house now (1858) stands, &  
he died there or in that vicinity about AD 1843

He had sons

Lewis G., Turner J.

Michael Todd

Octr 8 1744 Wite presented for Probate  
John Hubbard & Mary Todd executors probated Will dated 26 Feby 1742  
My wife Mary rise yr' sole & absolute yr' personal  
belongings Michael Ely to be brought up to bearing with her  
I have gone through Yale College... All my estate (except a  
aforeward reserved to widow) equally divide between said sons  
*Michael Ely*

Aug 7<sup>th</sup> 1744/5 John Hubbard guardian of Michael

Widow Mary guardian of Ely

Inventory of the estate was £70 28-1-4.

£1751 Michael guardian of his brother Ely

(From Yale College Catalogue it appears that Michael graduated  
in 1746, died in 1776. Ely graduated in 1751 date unknown)

Josiah Todd: Will 25 Octr 1746

Unto Abigail my wife I do now make & give my last will & testament  
also to my widow then surviving among my children  
Grand children by children following record who are then  
wife of Nathl Tuttle my daughter Elizabeth Deborah & Sarah  
my other children of Elizabeth wife of Jonathan Gould  
wife deceased 1760, & surviving executors proprieors in my heir or all

Gorshorn Todd June 8 1748

Administration granted to Hannah Todd widow of David  
Todd son of said decd.

Elizabeth, Ned Phib, Mary Gross had guardian appointed

Benjamin Todd Jr Sept 12 1755

By will Sept 12<sup>th</sup> 1755 to his wife Lois Todd late of Tulle  
the other brother Titus Tulle, executors

Joseph Todd Will <sup>June</sup> 1756, date probated

All to his wife during her life then to his cousin Joseph Pondson

Eleazer Todd

Seth Todd aff' exhibt will April 27, 1771

Given to Lith. daughter Sophia wife of Mr. Weston

Children of my son Marvin Cooper - Ruth Ann

Rev. Charles Todd

Administration to Penobscot August 1772

Stephen Todd

Jacob & Stephen Todd aff' will June 20, 1773  
Lived in my wife's house (son Joseph, Stephen) don't know son Noah, but  
Mary - children of my son Caleb

Wm Michael Todd 4 May 1776

Wife wife Anna Dore Polly Elvina son Michael  
Method of execution unknown

Mrs Todd 1779

Her given to the enemy & late infested

James Todd 1779

Son Ebinger, son Ebinger, grandson James Todd, date will 1771

Asa Todd 1780

Administration to Eliza H. Todd

(great grandfather of Lewis C. Todd)

Gideon Todd Probate Court Dec 18 1781

Wm. Todd - Executor & exhibt will date of will 15 Sept 1781  
To wife Thankful wife of all kinds & moreable estate her  
natural life thus among my children does not name  
Her test afforts his son Ep'r will date 15 Sept 1781

Inventory house & all shop — £ 6

about 4 acres of land — " 15

Moreable estate — 33.15.11

£ 54.15.11

1782 Reported insolvent, widow never set out to her by word of court

I have no doubt this was the grand father of Caleb, Samuel, Malachi Lyman  
and John Todd - Caleb was the father of Lewis C. Todd, & died in Chittenden, Vt.

# Todds

Records of Births & Marriages selected in  
the New Haven records

There no doubt much more might be found  
in the North Haven Parish church records which ex-  
tend back to about 1680, & also to the North Haven  
town records which extend back to 1785.

## New Haven

Simeon son of Simeon born July 1 1672

Simeon son of Simeon in March 6 1716/7

Simeon Todd married to Susanna Toller Sept 16 1698.

Simeon son of Christopher born January 1744/5

Gideon Todd died Jan 7 1734/5

Lydia Todd married to Rev Benj. Doolittle of Wallingford  
and first minister of Westfield Mop Octr. 24 1717.

Rhoda daughter of Gideon born January 1 1729/30

Sarah " " " " February 22 1731/2

Isaac son " " " " May 18 1734

 Gideon " " " " November 3 1737

Charles " " " " April 10 1740

Caleb " " " " July 3 1742

## Marriages

Gideon Todd & Thankful wife of Wallingford married Decr 1712/13.

Gideon son of Michael born May 6 1705

Michael son of Christopher born June 18 1653.

Dr Jonathan Todd appointed surgeon by Connecticut Legislature  
to go to the State troops then in New Jersey (A.D. 1776) as they were  
suffering by sickness & want of medical attendance.

861 reprod by bbl 1200 p.m.  
1982 by bbl 1200 p.m. 1982 p.m.  
1982 by bbl 1200 p.m. 1982 p.m.  
1982 by bbl 1200 p.m. 1982 p.m.

1982 by bbl 1200 p.m. 1982 p.m.

1982 by bbl 1200 p.m. 1982 p.m.

The following entries are from the old family  
bible of Gideon Todd of North Haven now in the hands  
of his youngest son John Todd of North Haven \$1858  
The old bible bears the imprint of Philadelphia \$1807 of course  
the entries were copied from some other book of far recollection  
Births

Gideon Todd was born Bible says "1732" month not given  
Town records say Novr 3<sup>a</sup> 1737/8.

He died in North Haven March 22<sup>d</sup> \$1817 £80  
His wife Prudence was born ~~Augt 31~~ <sup>July 6<sup>th</sup> \$1746</sup>

(who was Prudence? The door of Tuttle of Wallingfd)  
He was married to Prudence & Decr 31 \$1761

Prudence his first wife died Decr 10 \$1798

#### Children of Gideon & Prudence

Celest Eldest son born in North Haven parish Janry 31 \$1764  
He died at Cortlandt County Augt 18 1843 £79.

Lynnian ? March 5 " 1766

He died in North Haven March 13 1845 £79.

Samuel April 5 1768.

Lucinda April 12 1770.

She died March 24 1804

Malicia August 31 1773.

He died August in North Haven Aug. 4 1816 £43

Sally July 17 1796.

Clarissa Novr 26 1779.

Octr 25 1803

Aurilla July 20 1781.

Betsy Janry 28 1787

Die July 12 1795

John July 4 1791

Eunice the second wife of Gideon was born Feby 21 1744

Who was Eunice?

Gideon Todd & Eunice were married (his 2<sup>nd</sup> wife) March 7 1799.  
Married at

John Todd of North Haven is the youngest son of Gideon Todd and was born in North Haven on Feb 4 1791.

Sister the daughter of \_\_\_\_\_ and his wife \_\_\_\_\_

was born in - - - - - on the 5<sup>th</sup> day of April 1795.

John Todd and Lewey u . . . were married by-  
on the 29<sup>th</sup> Nov<sup>r</sup> 1813.

Children of John & Leony Todd

George Clinton Born in North Haven on Decr 1<sup>st</sup> 1816  
- Died Octr 31 1825

~~for me to print them up at the~~

Lowerice Pierpoint born in North Haven on July 7 - A 1822

George Henry      "      "      "      "      January 24 A.D. 1828.

This family are now living in the NE part of the town  
of North Haven on the New Haven & Middletown Turnpike  
about 6 miles from New Haven - The father resided in the  
old mansion where he was born & which was the residence  
of his father Green Tordt. The son resides near him.

Newtmore Taxay AJ 1859 — — — E. J. Toot — — —

The Fosters were early in the United States and were among the early emigrants (from Scotland it is said) to Connecticut. Hartford was settled in 1635 and New Haven in 1638. In the first church records (Rev Dr. Boon's) of New Haven I find the following early baptisms of

## Christopher and Grace Todd's Children

John died 1642 - Samuel April 20<sup>30</sup> 1645

Mary Sept 16 1747 Grace Dec 15 1750

• Michael June 15 1653. Mercy Zby 18 1755  
Christopher Todd (the father) died (as appears by the probate  
of his will) A.D. 1686. Inventory of his property showed he had a  
cow & milch, in the parish of North Haven, town New Haven.

Total Inventory £989-3-8. The eldest son John became a priest of the town - Michael the youngest son had a son John born May 6 1705, & he had a son John Gidion born Nov 3 1737, & he had sons Caleb (the eldest) who died at Newarkville 1843. <sup>at Coatesburg</sup> who was the father of Caleb, Lewis, & Thos Jefferson, his son Tom died in North Haven 1817 A 80. Harry Tode who died near Mayport in some years was the son of Malachy Tode & the grandson of said John Tode. Harry Tode moved back to New Haven

after enjoying these I asked him if he could go in with me upon a  
formerly kept over in existence when he informed me it was denied & that  
the burglar - I went immediately to the office & introduced myself to the  
Surrogate who I am an intelligent Quitting man & told him I was in search  
of the County Court record of Niagara County & had been to the Clerks office  
and they were not to be found & informed him that I had formerly seen those records  
when the office was kept in that building & I came hoping that they might  
be found there - He advised me that they were not there. I asked him  
can it be that the County Clerk has destroyed them - I asked is there  
not another law office in that building held not. He said the  
name of whom ever occupied every part of the office except the Govt he had never been  
in. I asked him if he would permit me to go into the Govt - certainly replied he  
but you find a narrow door you see the way up is hardly sufficient but  
you may pass by the gloomy lighted passage  
I went up & the land for the desk & Clerks & the day was very hot & still  
we could see no body up was pieces of newspaper Clerks & desk - I from being  
determined to find these records if possible I venturing up the narrow passage  
& commenced hunting the rubbish under the desk & Clerks & came to the gloomy  
light of the top of the desk I discovered it was one of the books I returned to my search  
and soon find another by which time was involved severe prostration - Clerks  
and desk were a little going I then made my way down the narrow stairs  
looking I imagine more like a chimney sweep or Scourer than any thing.  
Any gentleman may imagine my feelings at the discovery of such valuable documents  
I first thought I would take the record books away to Chautauque County & deposit them in  
the County Clerks office there as they had by a species of boldness been thrown  
out of the Erie County Clerks Office as unworthy of a place there, but on re-  
flection I know that would not only be illegal but would be punishing the  
good people of Erie Niagara & Cattaraugus who have a just right to their  
compensation for the outrage & misconduct of a former Clerk  
in his office of facts - The burglar, a stranger to me, seemed as  
indignant at my loss as the record had been treated as I did. He at once com-  
menced with ~~book~~ <sup>scowling</sup> stone & brick to remove the desk from my garments  
& gave me some twines with which I prepared myself as well as I could  
to go to the hotel & get clean linens and wardrobe. I left the record books with the Surrogate under the <sup>as</sup> ~~sharp~~ appearance that they should immediately  
be returned to the Clerks office. I should have done it myself but was  
naturally <sup>by any appearance</sup> to be seen in the street until a change of wardrobe - If any one  
wants to know the situation I was placed in that dark corner all that day let  
him witness in one of the worst days of July or August to stay there  
the hour & he will somewhat appreciate my situation in that house  
I first concluded I would say nothing about the matter publicly but as it is  
now <sup>his article Chautauque</sup> ~~now~~ <sup>now</sup> ~~now~~ <sup>now</sup> ~~now~~ <sup>now</sup> ~~now~~ <sup>now</sup> ~~now~~ <sup>now</sup> ~~now~~ <sup>now</sup>  
so far I have <sup>now</sup> ~~now~~ <sup>now</sup>  
I have concluded to make the circumstances public so that plain

a Clark who would be guilty of throwing away those valuable  
The Surrogate in his sympathy commended with him & asked to clear  
my other garments of cloths & drist & furnitures were left with  
working to. I told him I thought of taking the records to the Clerks office at  
Chautauque ~~office~~<sup>copy</sup> for deposit in as much as they had been  
thrown away by your County Clerk but on a moments reflection I knew  
that would be illegal & not a permission to the County Clerk who  
throws away the records but the people of the County of Niagara don't  
know what to do with them records. Sirs who had an interest in these records not merely  
for any legal purpose but for historical facts. That town Spire is the  
~~his~~ <sup>the</sup> ~~his~~ records <sup>for their better</sup> was discovered & mentioned by Mr Turner in his  
<sup>of the Holland purchase</sup> his book under the head of ~~Spire~~ <sup>the</sup> to page 575. By the by the volume  
is a miserable apology for the history of Erie County ~~Spire & Chautauque~~ <sup>as far as</sup>  
under the head of those counties although the work as a whole is valuable.  
I left the last records with the Surrogate, after taking two extracts from them, with  
her assurance that they should be returned without delay to the proper office  
I have not been in the Clerks office since but trust they are there to remain  
as long as any of the records are preserved. The wife come when they will be  
much more referred to than they ever have.

V 1381 2<sup>nd</sup> copy C.P. 1931

5251, b. m. y. my copy

8-8  
5781  
5981

copy 12/12/1931

2546, copy

5781 2<sup>nd</sup> copy 1381 2<sup>nd</sup> copy

1381 2<sup>nd</sup> copy 9181 2<sup>nd</sup> copy 1381 2<sup>nd</sup> copy

APR 27 1931

Annual Town Meeting by proclamation opened April 1817

at E Fletchers

Chase x Palmer Phillips Sup

Wm Matteson

Daniel B Carpenter Assessors

Jos S Penber

x Palmer Phillips

Wm Matteson County Roads

D B Carpenter

P Phillips \$3 Dember & Craig Phelps Comrs of com Schools

X Adol Bishop & Phillips & Noah Bently Constables

x Jonas Danphear, D B Carpenter & Simon Parry Comr's

x Jonas Danphear - Dealer

Wm Matteson Jr - Collector

" " & Noah Chapman - Constables

Abelish Morley & Israel Carpenter - Chrs of Poor

Wm Matteson, Adol Carpenter & Josiah Borrett - Land Inspectors & Tax Assessors

Thos Birney Nick & Webber, Tim Gerrish - Surveyors

Stephen Stillson, Adol Blodgett, Josiah Palmer

Uriah Bently, Noah Chapman & Wm Gerrish

Josad' McElroy, Wm Matteson for D B Carpenter

Asa Martin Eliza Fletcher, Israel Carpenter

Benj Gates Lawrence Smith

For several years following Town Meeting held at House of Jas McElroy who was Town Clerk  
Harmon & Brant

In 1820 The following names appear in addition to above - Danl Stearns - John Morton

Benj Jacobs - Wm C White, Jabez Rice, Wm Williams, O Pi Asa Smith

Adolphus Fletcher, Stephen Card, Cyrus Blodgett, Wm Tarriss, Steph. Potts

Asa Landon, Sylvanus Crane, Elihu Wrig - In 1825 Town Meeting for  
which is now Harmon held at house of Sam'l Hurlbut

Wm Lewis, J. Clark

Y. Clark

Recd.

W. G.

the 1st July 1822

W. G.

1818

W. G.

Aug 1818

Buster 1811 Harmony Record's covering names in Part I

Palmer Phillips  
(Sol. Bishop)

1826

Mariah Bentley

Alvin Frost

Joseph Phillips

Joel Skinner doubtful

Jonas Sampson

Merritt Phillips son

Asaiah Palmer 1817

Isaac Foster

Nick Parker

11 1/2 4 2 4 2 X 11 1/2 9

Stephen Sisson

14 6 2 " 10 2 9 9 1/2 5/08 2  
11 5 6 5 -

Anna Bloodett

9 5 0 8 2 11 1 9/4 6 2  
5 6 5 - 5 1 1/2

John Denning

Lord William

Asa Martin

John J. Gill

Homer Ballou

Anthony Tallman 1818

Abram Burrows

Cyrus P. Cole, etc.

(John Faro and probably)

Hegelish Patchen

Asa Sandon

Simeon Crane

1820

on S.S. in 1820 came Abram

Sherman with Mrs. Gideon

Merritt, Jonathan, Humphrey,

& Abraham, daughter Adelia

Copyright Chautauqua County Historical Society, Wedfield NY 2012

Ames' he bought an acre & half \$26 on the  
Lake road in N.E. corner of Ripley. b. Ap 27, 1802  
from Heeler. Tompkins Co., then to Ripley.

Ch. Adaline or Dorothy Alice (dead)  
Emmeline now in Pa. Jones  
Abby Anne in Japan.

b. 1829  
Isa M. from Ch. came from Park's Co.  
in 1821 to Lodiwy, and a place on a narrow place  
near Rochester on the lake - lot of Elkanah Johnson  
moved to Oddfellow Ilc. when her died  
Apr. 11, 1856 had 13 children all grew to  
maturity and married

Stanley, John H. Joseph Dickinson  
Sarah M. Holmes, Asa  
Hannah, Patricia J. Jessie L. Dickinson  
Abby Jane

Charles F. Jr.

Willard Rev. Selden

George Godrich 1815 Milton, Saratoga Co 1st wife Palmer  
about a year after she died

Geo. G. Milton, Capt. 9th Cavalry  
Sergeant Major 2<sup>nd</sup> Inf. Pa. Reg't.  
Honor in War until the last  
supposed killed

40 00

Evans Mission - live there

21 20

55 00

205 00

18

14

Journal of Albany County

11,50

28 00

2300 2800 11

11 50

2800 2800

8 00

2012

18 50

2300 18

18 18

208

18 00

28 00

8 00

28 00

6 00

28 00

4 00

28 00

2 00

28 00

1 00

28 00

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

1-15

Pg 2nd

15

Dec 17	Daniel J. Smith	39
Feet 1818	Samuel Stockwell	58-59
Dec " Selas H. Atfield		38
Sept 1822 Wm Thompson		3
" " Wm Adams		43
Oct " George Bolls		27
" 1821 - Henry Nutting		64
Feb 1823 - S. De G. Thompson		56
Nov 1821 Joseph Peck		53
Oct " Francis W Colburn		3
Sept 1823 Wm. L. Bolls		35
Oct " Wm. C. Adams		32
Nov 1821 Wm Thompson		3
" " William Berry		2
July 1824 Wm Osgood		32
Aug " Gardner Cleveland		4
Oct " Daniel Curtis		16
Dec " Stephen Burns		14
Dec " David French		11
March 1825 Nathaniel Thompson		3
April " Harvey Miller		13
" " George Cole		33
Nov " Abigail Hartman		8
" " David Alward		11
Dec " Leonard Miller		2
July 1826 Allen Belding		14
" " Eliza Freeman		24
March " Alex Wilson		23
" " John Helme		40
April " Harvey Miller		14
June " Frank & James		32

- Western lands, ceded to general government, 58, 85.  
West India trade, 382, &c.; Gallatin sent to England; negotiation cut off, 384; treaty, 386; M'Lane's arrangement, 528-30; relief from the effects of the treaty prayed for, 784.  
Whisky insurrection in western Pennsylvania, 105, 106.  
White, Hugh L., on Indian bill, 514-15; on expunging resolution, 622; on removals, 628-9.  
Wirt, William, attorney-general, 1000; nominated by anti-masons for president, 564.  
Wolcott, secretary of the treasury, 136.  
Woolens bill, of 1827, 403, &c.  
Woodbury, Levi, on Foot's resolution (powers of government) 498; secretary of the navy, 548; secretary of the treasury, 617.  
Wright, Silas, on spoliation bill, 623; reports sub-treasury, 680; remarks on postponing fourth instalment of the surplus revenue, 689.

COPYRIGHT CHAUTAUQUA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

1-15 (French Creek) FF-15  
base 122

Apr 18 <sup>th</sup>	1812 - Amos Beebe	npt 45
" "	Roswell Cole	pt 39
" 21	Alanson Root	- 46
" 27	Andy Nobles	- 44
May	Leviathan Pier	- 38
July	Zadock Root	- 39
Aug	Elizur Barney	{ - 45 }
Sept	Andy Nobles	
Oct 1	Paul Friesbee	- 37
"	Geo Haskell	- 45 & 46
Nov	Benji Kent	- 51
"	John Ettam	{ 52 & 59 }
"	Erinione Stockwell	
Feb 1816 -	Almon Ives	{ 64 }
" "	Jonathan Springer	
March "	Nathaniel Thompson	{ 31 }
" "	Gardner Cleveland	
" "	Paul Colburn	- 52
Sept	Elijah Drury	- 56
Nov	Habard Polley	
" "	Parley Blodis	{ 46 }
" "	Augustus D. C. -	53
Dec 1817	Chas. Hill	- 31
May "	" " "	- 37
25	" " John St. Lee	- 47

- ed, 975; Walker appointed governor, and Stanton secretary of, 981; election of delegates to Lecompton constitutional convention, 981-2; action of the convention, 982-3; Stanton convenes the legislature to provide for a popular vote, and is removed, 984; votes on Lecompton constitution, 986; state election in, under Lecompton constitution, frauds, Calhoun escapes, 986-7; Stanton's address, 987-8; Lecompton constitution in congress, 988-92; Crittenden, Montgomery, and English's propositions, 991-2; territorial laws in, repealed, 998; new constitutional convention called, constitution formed and adopted, 998, 999; republican party formed in, 998; bill to admit, 1026, and debate on, 1027-8; bill to abolish slavery in, vetoed by Gov. Medary, 1028; admitted as a state, 1102.
- Kernan, of N. Y., on confiscation, 1165; on reconstruction of states, 1184-85.
- Ketchum, of N. Y., at Chicago, on peace, 1196-97.
- King, Preston, senator N. Y., on John Brown investigation, 1005.
- King, of Mo., on repeal of fugitive slave law, 1162.
- Knights of the Golden Circle. (*See Western Conspiracy.*)
- Land bill, vetoed by Buchanan, 996.
- Lands, public, Grow's proposition, and homestead bill, 997-8.
- Lane, Joseph, nominated for vice-president, 1049; speech of, 1060; against coercion, 1124.
- Lecompte, judge, Kansas, singular opinions of, 967.
- Lecompton constitutional convention, action of, 982-3; slavery clause only submitted to the people, 983; vote thereon, 986; subsequently submitted, and rejected, 986; presented to congress, and action thereon, 988-92; submitted with the English proposition, and rejected, 993.
- Lecompton and anti-Lecompton democrats, 1001.
- Legislature of Kansas, territorial, 955; election of, 957; passes an act for a convention, 977; meetings of, 957, 977; acts of, 957.
- Legislature of Kansas, free state, elections of, 959; meetings of, 959, 977, 982; members of, arrested, 977.
- Liberia, representative to, authorized, 1143.
- Liberty bills, (personal,) southern opinions concerning, 1079.
- Lincoln, Abraham, nominated for president, 1048; elected, 1049; journey to Washington, 1131; inauguration and address of, 1131-3; his cabinet, 1133; issues war proclamation, convening congress, and calling for troops; call responded to, 1134-5; second call for troops, 1135; causes arrests and suspends writ of habeas corpus, 1135; message of, to congress, 1136-7; interdicts commercial intercourse with rebel states, 1139; first annual message of, 1141-2; proclamations of confiscation and emancipation, 1143, 1147; recommends gradual emancipation, 1146; recommends banking law, 1146; reply of, to Albany democratic Vallandigham meeting, 1153-5; issues proclamation of amnesty, 1157; proposition of, for peace, 1189; nomination of, in 1864, 1194; letter of, to Hodges, 1199-1201; election of, 1201; meets confederate peace commissioners at Fortress Monroe, 1207; his visit to Richmond, 1209; his death, 1209.
- Loans, five-twenty and ten-forty.
- Mail contractors, payment of, deferred, 1021.
- Mails in seceded states, 1114-16; remarks of southern members on, 1115-16; bill to suspend, passed, 1116, 1131.
- Mallory, senator, Fla., on John Brown investigation, 1003.
- Mallory, of Ky., on national currency, 1160; on repeal of fugitive slave laws, 1161-62.
- Mason, John M., senator, Va., resolution of, concerning John Brown's invasion, 1001, 1008; capture of, on English vessel, 1141.
- McAllister, of Pa., on constitutional amendment, 1206.
- McClellan, Geo. B., nominated for president, 1195; acceptance of, 1197; Democratic opposition to, 1198.
- Medary, Samuel, appointed governor of Kansas, 998; vetoes bill to abolish slavery, 1028.
- Memminger, commissioner from South Carolina to Virginia, 1025.

Warren Clark - son-in-law - he settled and  
lives in Indiana - wife died in 1852  
the other son and - has a home in the village  
Warren - a son - lives on the farm at  
his birthplace

David E. J. Rummel settled on lot 644

Village + - to see \*  
Aug 1st 1900 on lot 9 in on 1st in  
Wayne, & J. T. Moore may  
years Cons. Dep. Sheriff continue in village

Dr. J. W. in Berlin Aug 1911 and others in  
Berlin 1911. ) of Smith HISTORICAL SOCIETY  
and others Dr. J. W. - , Barioti, Iannu,  
and others. See Name in Part 1.

John A. Harris - 36. Son: (inquir.)

David Hettich, 65 years old, died  
Wednesday, August 20, 1913, at home.

East Hough 21

1825. Jan., John Buck Jr., 20. Feb., Xavier  
 Abbot, 10. March, Jairus Buck, 19. May, William  
 Harris, q. Silas Gates, 46. June, David Hatch, 7. Aug.  
 William Nichols, 38. George Martin, 13. Sept., Liban  
 Pero, 19.

1826. May, Asa G. Babcock, 42. Andris M. Huyck,  
 16. June, William F. Knishaw, 7. July, Samuel  
 Brown, Jr., 41. Oct., Nathaniel Barnes, 48. Nov., Abel  
 Taylor, 48. Dec., Samuel Woodcock, 44. Amos Hoag,  
 \*53, [Harmony.] Benj. A. Clayton, 43. Samuel Constock, 42  
 43, 44.

1827. March, Josiah Hurlt, 35. May, Sabey Busley,  
 36. Aug., Charles Chandler, 18. Sept., Norman L. Osborn  
 37. Alexander Young, 24.

The following

Names of original purchasers of Lots or parts of Lots  
 in Busti from Township 2, Range 12, being that  
 part of the same, lying west of the on the south  
 side of the Lake.

Stephen Jenner born in Pittsford Vt  
January 5<sup>th</sup> 1787, removed from Essex County N.Y.  
to Ashville Chen Co N.Y. in the fall of 1832  
and settled on Lot 43 Town 2 Range 12

Seres,  
Stephen M. died in Milwaukee Wis. Jan 27.  
1849 Aged 34 Years.

Asher E. resides in Belvidere Iles aged 56

Elias St. Jenner, resides in Pentic N.Y.

Susan Leaveny resides in Penne Co. Iles.

Ally Bishop wife of Elijae Bishop resides in  
Jamesburg N.Y.

~~Emilia~~ Emilie H. Bishop wife of A D Bishop  
resides in Michigan

12 Second and 1st  
1 Maria, Maria, George, Emily, Sherman, Lydia  
Sarah Livingston Hammett, Benjamin  
Kearie Maria died in South. Maria wif of H. Bush Jr., Cal.  
George died in French Creek. Susanna d. in Cal. Sherman  
H. into Attica, N.Y. Lydia a wif of James Palmer & resds.  
in South. Sarah wif of Charles Hoyt, died in South. Died in  
in New York - both married. Hannah wif of John Gray  
of Jamestown. She is dead. Benjamin lives at 13 Elm St. West.  
Jonathan Palmer has from Livingston Co from Chenango Co in 1824  
on lot 8 & 11 or 12. died before his death. Where he now resides  
is not known. The sons came in 15 yrs. Jonathan lives on lot 46 originally  
purchased by (don't know).

RECORDED  
BY THE  
SCHUYLER COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY WESTFIELD, NY 2012

400 pages Comp. (1537 ems/pge.)	92	300.00
26 Return Paper	16.50	429.00
104 Johns Press Work	75	78.00
Binding 1000 Copies	28	280.00
Extra composition for small type		<u>15.00</u>
		1180.
1200 copies	13.20	Sales <u>3000</u>
Dates	<u>3600</u>	1820
	2260	<u>300</u> Exp
	<u>300</u>	1520
	<u>1960</u>	--

1000 Copies of 650 pages	1280	1200 Cpy 450 pgs	1440
Sales	<u>3000</u>	Sales	<u>3600</u>
	1720		2160
	<u>500</u>		<u>300</u>
	<u>1220</u>		<u>1860</u>